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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$50,000,000"
FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
Florence County Public Facilities Corporation
Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds
(Comprehensive Facilities Improvements)
Series 2023

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover pages and the Appendices hereto, is to
furnish certain information in connection with the sale by Florence County Public Facilities Corporation of
$50,000,000* in aggregate principal amount of its Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (Comprehensive Facilities
Improvements) Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Bonds™). Definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement
and not otherwise defined herein are set forth in the documents contained in Appendix B-1, B-2 and B-3 to this Official
Statement.

This Introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement and is intended only for quick reference. Itis
only a brief description of and guide to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, more complete and detailed
information contained in the entire Official Statement, including the cover pages and the Appendices hereto, and the
documents summarized or described herein. Potential investors should fully review the entire Official Statement. The
offering of the Series 2023 Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official Statement,
including the Appendices hereto. No person is authorized to detach this Introduction from the Official Statement or
to otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto.

The Issuer

Florence County Public Facilities Corporation (the “Issuer”), the issuer of the Series 2023 Bonds, is a
nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina. For more complete
information, see “THE ISSUER” herein.
The County

Florence County, South Carolina (the “County™), is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision
of the State of South Carolina. For more complete information, see “THE COUNTY™ herein.

The Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the “Trustee”) will act as trustee, as bond registrar,
and as paying agent for the Series 2023 Bonds under the hereinafter defined Trust Agreement.

Purpose of the Series 2023 Bonds

The Issuer is issuing the Series 2023 Bonds for the purpose of (i) providing funds for construction of
acquisition, construction, renovation and expansion of County facilities (the “Capital Projects”); and (ii) paying the
costs of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCING” herein.

Security and Sources of Payment for the Series 2023 Bonds

The Series 2023 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Issuer, payable solely from and secured by the
hereinafter defined Trust Estate pledged under the Trust Agreement, as described below.

“Preliminary, subject to change.



In connection with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, the County and the Issuer will enter into a Base
Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 2023 (the “Base Lease”), pursuant to which the County will lease the Real
Property (as defined in the Base Lease) to the Issuer, and a Public Facilities Purchase and Occupancy Agreement dated
as of December 1, 2023 (the “Facilities Agreement™), pursuant to which the County will purchase the Project Facilities,
which are located on the Real Property, from the Issuer. The Project Facilities are further described in “PROJECT
FACILITIES” herein. By purchasing the Series 2023 Bonds, the owners of the Series 2023 Bonds will be deemed
to have consented to the Base Lease and the Facilities Agreement. The Facilities Agreement will obligate the
County to make semiannual installment payments of purchase price, also referred to as “Acquisition Payments”, to
the Issuer. The Acquisition Payments will be in amounts sufficient to allow the Issuer to make payments on the Series
2023 Bonds.

The financial obligations of the County under the Facilities Agreement do not constitute general
obligations of the County to which its faith and credit or taxing power are pledged, but are subject to and
dependent upon lawful appropriations of funds being made by the County Council of the County (“County
Council”) to pay the installment payments of purchase price due in each fiscal year under the Facilities
Agreement. The County’s obligations under the Facilities Agreement are from year to year only and do not
constitute a mandatory payment obligation of the County in any fiscal year in which funds are not appropriated
by the County to pay the installment payments of purchase price due in such fiscal year. The County has no
continuing obligation to appropriate funds to pay installment payments of purchase price due under the
Facilities Agreement and may terminate its obligations under the Facilities Agreement on an annual basis
without any penalty.

To secure its obligations under the Series 2023 Bonds, the Issuer will enter into a Trust Agreement dated as
of December 1, 2023 (the “Trust Agreement”), with the Trustee, pursuant to which the Issuer will (i) assign to the
Trustee, and grant a first priority security interest in, all of its right, title, interest, and remedies in and to (a) the
Facilities Agreement (except for certain rights reserved to the Issuer) and all amounts to be received thereunder and
(b) the Base Lease, (ii) assign and pledge to the Trustee, and grant a first priority security interest in, all revenues and
receipts derived from the Issuer’s ownership interests in the Project Facilities, and (iii) assign and pledge to the
Trustee, and grant a first priority security interest in, all moneys held by the Trustee in certain funds and accounts
created under the Trust Agreement (the “Trust Estate™).

For more complete and detailed information, see “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
SERIES 2023 BONDS” herein.

Description of the Series 2023 Bonds
Redemption. The Series 2023 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

Denominations. The Series 2023 Bonds are issuable in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof.

Book-Entry Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in the denomination of
one bond per aggregate principal amount of the stated maturity thereof, and, when issued, will be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, an automated
depository for securities and clearing house for securities transactions, which will act as securities depository for the
Series 2023 Bonds. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Series 2023
Bonds purchased. Purchases of beneficial interests in the Series 2023 Bonds will be made in book-entry only form
(without certificates), in authorized denominations, and, under certain circumstances as more fully described in this
Official Statement, such beneficial interests are exchangeable for one or more fully registered bonds of like principal
amount and maturity in authorized denominations. For more complete information, see “THE SERIES 2023
BONDS - Book-Entry Only System” herein.

Payments. So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the registered owner of the Series 2023 Bonds,
payments of the principal of and interest on the Series 2023 Bonds will be made directly to Cede & Co., which will
remit such payments to the DTC participants, which will in turn remit such payments to the Beneficial Owners (as
defined herein) of the Series 2023 Bonds.



For a more complete description of the Series 2023 Bonds, see “THE SERIES 2023 BONDS” herein.
Tax Exemption

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming continuing compliance by the Issuer with certain covenants,
interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing
statutes, regulations and judicial decisions. Interest on the Series 2023 Bonds is not an item of tax preference for
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax; however, such interest is taken into account in determining the annual
adjusted financial statement income of applicable corporations (as defined in Section 59(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended) for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations for
tax years beginning after December 31, 2022. See “TAX MATTERS?” for a brief description of certain federal income
tax consequences to certain recipients of interest on the Series 2023 Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds and the interest
thereon will also be exempt from all State, county, municipal and school district and other taxes or assessments
imposed within the State of South Carolina, except estate, transfer and certain franchise taxes.

Professionals Involved in the Offering

Certain legal matters pertaining to the Issuer and its authorization and issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds are
subject to the approving opinion of Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina, Bond Counsel. Copies
of such opinion will be available at the time of delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds, and a copy of the proposed form of
such opinion is attached hereto as Appendix C. Stephens Inc. (the “Underwriter”) is serving as the underwriter for
the Series 2023 Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its counsel, Turner, Padget, Graham
& Laney, P.A,, Florence, South Carolina, for the County by its counsel, D. Malloy McEachin, Jr., Florence, South
Carolina, and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP, Columbia, South Carolina.
First Tryon Advisors, Charlotte, North Carolina, is acting as Financial Advisor to the Issuer and the County, and
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina, is acting as Disclosure Counsel. The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. is serving as Trustee. The basic financial statements of the County as of June 30, 2022,
and for the year then ended, attached hereto as Appendix A, have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC, Columbia,
South Carolina (“Mauldin & Jenkins”), independent certified public accountants, to the extent and for the period
indicated in its report thereon, which appears in Appendix A hereto. See “MISCELLANEQUS - Independent
Auditors” herein.

Legal Authority

The Series 2023 Bonds are being issued and secured pursuant to the authority granted by the laws of the State
of South Carolina and under the provisions of a Bond Resolution of the Issuer, adopted by the Board of Directors of
the Issuer on November 16, 2023. For more complete information, see “THE SERIES 2023 BONDS - Legal
Authority” herein.

Offering and Delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds

The Series 2023 Bonds are offered when, as, and if issued by the Issuer and accepted by the Underwriter,
subject to prior sale and to withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice. The Series 2023 Bonds in definitive
form are expected to be delivered through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company in New York, New York,
approximately three weeks following the sale of the Series 2023 Bonds.

Continuing Disclosure

The Issuer has determined that none of its financial or operating data concerning the Issuer is material to any
decision to purchase, hold, or sell the Series 2023 Bonds, and the Issuer will not provide any such information. The
County has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds
as described below, and the Issuer will have no liability to the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds or any
other person with respect to such disclosures.

The County will covenant in the Facilities Agreement and a Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement (the
“Disclosure Agreement”), between the County and Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C. (the “Dissemination
Agent”), for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds, to provide certain financial information



and operating data relating to the County (the “Annual Report”) by not later than 210 days after the end of each fiscal
year of the County, commencing with Fiscal Year 2023, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated
events, if material. The Annual Report and the notices of material events will be filed by the Dissemination Agent
with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) system.
The form of the Disclosure Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix D. These covenants have been made in order
to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule.

The County has provided annually to the Dissemination Agent all information required by its continuing
disclosure undertakings to be included in its annual reports, and has been informed by the Dissemination Agent that
all such annual reports have been timely filed. However, a review of continuing disclosure compliance in March 2021
determined that the County’s annual reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was incomplete in several respects.
A supplemental filing entitled “2018-2016 Operating Data — Supplemental” providing such omitted information was
filed through the facilities of the Dissemination Agent on March 30, 2021.

The County previously failed to file event notices with respect to its 2020C Bond, 2021 Bond, 2021A Bond,
2022 Bond, and 2023 Bond (the “Incurrence of Indebtedness Notices™) as required by the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent Agreements (“DDAA”) for the County’s $22,000,000 Taxable General Obligation Bond, Series 2020B,
$120,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, and Florence County Public Facilities Corporation’s
$37,870,000 Installment Purchase Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2021. A failure to file notice regarding
the Incurrence of Indebtedness Notices was filed pursuant to the DDAA on November 1, 2023, along with an event
notice for the Incurrence of Indebtedness Notices.

Investment Considerations
General

In analyzing the Series 2023 Bonds and the security and sources of payment therefor and in order to make
an informed investment decision, potential investors should carefully consider the following investment
considerations prior to making a decision to purchase the Series 2023 Bonds. The following investment considerations
are not intended to be exhaustive of the general or specific investment considerations relating to the purchase of the
Series 2023 Bonds. Additional investment considerations relating to the purchase of the Series 2023 Bonds are
described throughout this Official Statement, whether or not specifically designated as investment considerations.
Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to making an informed investment
decision.

Nonappropriation

The debt service on the Series 2023 Bonds will be payable primarily from installment payments of purchase
price made by the County pursuant to the Facilities Agreement. The obligation of the County to make installment
payments of purchase price under the Facilities Agreement is limited to funds that are specifically budgeted and
appropriated annually for that purpose. The County may terminate the Facilities Agreement annually without any
penalty.

Each installment payment of purchase price made by the County under the Facilities Agreement will cause
an undivided interest in the Project Facilities, equal to that percentage of the total debt service (principal and interest)
payable on the Series 2023 Bonds funded from such installment payment, to transfer from the Issuer to the County.
The Facilities Agreement provides that upon its termination, either by reason of default or nonappropriation, the
Project Facilities will be partitioned between the Issuer and the County based upon their respective percentages of
undivided interests in the Project Facilities. The determination of which particular portion of the Project Facilities
will remain with the Issuer and which portion will be transferred to the County will be made by a consultant appointed
by the Trustee, who is directed by the Facilities Agreement to protect the interests of the owners of the Series 2023
Bonds in preparing the partition plan to the extent permissible. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE SERIES 2023 BONDS” herein.

The decision to budget and appropriate funds to make installment payments of purchase price under the
Facilities Agreement will be made on the basis of various factors, including the continuing need of the County for the
portions of the Project Facilities in which an undivided interest has not transferred to the County.



Continuing Need for/Decreasing Interest in the Project Facilities

As the County makes installment payments of purchase price over the term of the Series 2023 Bonds, it will
increase its undivided interest in the Project Facilities and reduce the Issuer’s undivided interest in the Project
Facilities. As a result, the County’s need for the portion of the Project Facilities retained by the Issuer will diminish
as the Issuer’s undivided interest in the Project Facilities decreases. Moreover, as installment payments of purchase
price are made, the County’s proportionate undivided interest in the Project Facilities will increase at a relatively faster
rate than the outstanding principal amount of the Series 2023 Bonds will be reduced. In the later years of the term of
the Series 2023 Bonds, the unpaid principal amount of the Series 2023 Bonds might exceed the fair market value of
the Issuer’s undivided interest in the Project Facilities. In the event the Facilities Agreement is terminated and the
Project Facilities are partitioned between the Issuer and the County, the Facilities Agreement directs the consultant
preparing the partition plan to protect the interests of the owners of the Series 2023 Bonds. See “SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2023 BONDS - Facilities Agreement” herein.

Remedies Upon Nonappropriation

The Issuer has not granted any lien on or security interest in the Project Facilities to secure the Series 2023
Bonds. In the event the County terminates the Facilities Agreement, the Series 2023 Bonds will be payable from such
moneys, if any, as may be held or made available by the Trustee from the leasing until the expiration of the Base Lease
(June 1, 2033) of the portions of the Project Facilities that remain with the Issuer after the partitioning described above
is accomplished. The Project Facilities are designed to be used solely for governmental purposes. There can be no
assurance of the value of the Project Facilities for any use other than governmental purposes in the event of termination
of the Facilities Agreement or that the Trustee will be able to lease the portion of the Project Facilities remaining with
the Issuer in such event. Thus, in the event of termination of the Facilities Agreement, the revenues from leasing the
Project Facilities, if any, may be substantially less than the amount of remaining debt service on the Series 2023
Bonds.

Ability to Issue Future General Obligation Debt

The ability of the County to issue general obligation debt during the term of the Series 2023 Bonds to provide
funds to make all or a portion of the installment payments of purchase price under the Facilities Agreement will depend
upon, among other things, future credit market conditions, the future credit condition of the County and the ability of
the County to issue general obligation debt pursuant to the provisions and limitations of the South Carolina
Constitution and the South Carolina Code (as defined herein). Title 4, Chapter 9 of the South Carolina Code provides
that within 60 days of the enactment of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds, upon the
presentation of a petition signed by at least 15% of the qualified electors in a county, a referendum shall be held on
the question of repealing such ordinance. Article X, Section 14 of the South Carolina Constitution empowers each
county in the State of South Carolina to incur general obligation debt in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed
value of all taxable property within the county without holding a referendum.

Other Information
This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change.

This Official Statement contains forecasts, projections, and estimates that are based on current expectations but
are not intended as representations of fact or guarantees of results. If and when included in this Official Statement,
the words “expects,” “forecasts,” “projects,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” and analogous expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements as defined in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and any such
statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date of this Official Statement. The Issuer and the County each disclaim any obligation or undertaking
to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained herein to reflect any change
in its expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions, or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.
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This Official Statement, including the cover page and the Appendices hereto, contain brief descriptions of,
among other matters, the Issuer, the County, the Series 2023 Bonds, and set forth in their entirety the forms of the
Project Facilities, the Trust Agreement, the Facilities Agreement, the Base Lease, the Disclosure Agreement, and the
security and sources of payment for the Series 2023 Bonds. Such descriptions and information do not purport to be
comprehensive or definitive. The summaries of various constitutional provisions and statutes, contracts, and other
documents are intended as summaries only and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such laws and documents,
and references herein to the Series 2023 Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof included
in the Trust Agreement. Forms of the Trust Agreement, Base Lease, and the Facilities Agreement are attached hereto,
and copies of such other contracts and documents and information are available, upon request and upon payment to
the Trustee of a charge for copying, mailing, and handling, from the Trustee. During the period of the offering of the
Series 2023 Bonds, copies of such other contracts and documents are available, upon request and upon payment to the
Underwriter of a charge for copying, mailing, and handling, from the Underwriter at 3344 Peachtree Road NE, Suite
1650, Atlanta, Georgia 30326.

For purposes of compliance with Rule 15¢2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission,
as amended, and in effect on the date hereof (the “Rule”), this Preliminary Official Statement constitutes an official
statement of the Issuer that has been deemed final by the Issuer as of its date except for the omission of no more than
the information permitted by the Rule.

Information in this Official Statement has been obtained by the Underwriter from the Issuer, the County and
other sources believed to be reliable by the Underwriter. The Issuer has not provided information regarding the County
and does not certify as to the accuracy or sufficiency of the disclosure practices of or content of the information
provided by the County and is not responsible for the information provided by the County.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its
responsibilities under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction; however,
the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances create an implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the Issuer or the County, or the other matters described herein since the date hereof or the
earlier dates set forth herein as of which certain information contained herein is given. References to web site
addresses presented herein are for informational purposes only and may be in the form of a hyperlink solely for the
reader’s convenience. Unless specified otherwise, such web sites and the information or links contained therein are
not incorporated into, and are not part of, this final official statement for purposes of, and as that term is defined in,
the Rule.

The Series 2023 Bonds and their underlying obligations have not been registered under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the Trust Agreement has not been qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended,
in reliance on exemptions contained in such Acts.

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there
be any sale of the Series 2023 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make
such offer, solicitation, or sale.

No dealer, broker, salesman, or other person has been authorized by the Issuer, the County or the Underwriter
to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if
given or made, such other information or representations should not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
Issuer, the County or the Underwriter. Except where otherwise indicated, all information contained in this Official
Statement has been provided by the Issuer or the County. The information set forth herein has been obtained by the
Issuer or the County from sources that are believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness
by the Underwriter. The Issuer has not provided information regarding the County and does not certify as to the
accuracy or sufficiency of the disclosure practices of or content of the information provided by the County and is not
responsible for the information provided by the County. The information contained herein is subject to change without
notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances
create an implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the County, or the other matters



described herein since the date hereof or the earlier dates set forth herein as of which certain information contained
herein is given.

In connection with this offering, the Underwriter may over-allot or effect transactions that stabilize or
maintain the market prices of the Series 2023 Bonds at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open
market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

THE ISSUER

The Florence County Public Facilities Corporation is a South Carolina nonprofit corporation organized and
operated exclusively to support the governmental operation of the County. The Issuer is governed by a five-member
Board of Directors (the “Board of Directors”). Directors are appointed by the then current Board of Directors for five-
year terms. The Issuer will have a leasehold interest in the Land and the Project Facilities and will have no taxing
authority and no net worth. The Issuer is established as a single-purpose corporate entity which is prohibited from
engaging in any business other than to own and lease facilities to be used for governmental functions in connection
with the financing of such facilities.

The Issuer has issued numerous bonds and entered into other financing arrangements in support of the County
since the early 1990s. The Issuer has outstanding its $11,100,000 original principal amount Installment Purchase
Revenue Bond, Series 2017A (the “Series 2017A Bond”), the proceeds of which were used to construct a parking
garage for the Florence County Complex, the County’s administration building (the “Parking Garage Project”) and its
$37,870,000 original principal amount Installment Purchase Revenue Refunding Bonds Taxable Series 2021, (the
“Series 2021 Bonds™), the proceeds of which were used to refinance the callable outstanding portion of its $42,000,000
Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (Judicial Center Project) Series 2015, the proceeds of which were used to finance
the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing the County’s judicial center. The Series 2017A Bond is secured by
a leasehold interest in and acquisition payments with respect to the Parking Garage Project and the real property on
which the Parking Garage Project is located, which is unrelated to the Real Property on which the Project Facilities
relating to the Series 2023 Bonds is located. The Series 2021 Bonds are secured by the amounts pledged under the
2021 Supplemental Trust Agreement dated as of April 1, 2021 with respect to the Judicial Center Project and the real
property on which the Judicial Center Project is located, which is unrelated to the Real Property on which the Project
Facilities relating to the Series 2023 Bonds is located.

THE SERIES 2023 BONDS
Description

The Series 2023 Bonds will be dated as of the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rates per annum
set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
twelve 30-day months, payable on December 1, 2024 and semiannually thereafter on June 1 and December 1 of each
year (each a “Bond Payment Date) and will mature on the dates and in the amounts set forth on the inside cover page
of this Official Statement, unless earlier called for redemption.

Each of the Series 2023 Bonds will bear interest from the later of the date of delivery or the date to which
interest has been paid immediately preceding the authentication date thereof, unless the authentication date thereof is
a Bond Payment Date, in which event each such Series 2023 Bond will bear interest from the earlier of such
authentication date or the date to which interest has been paid or, in the event no interest has been paid, from date of
delivery.

The Series 2023 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in the denomination of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Purchases of beneficial ownership interests in the Series 2023 Bonds will be
made in book-entry form, and purchasers will not receive certificates representing interests in the Series 2023 Bonds
so purchased. If the book-entry system is discontinued, Series 2023 Bonds will be delivered as described in the Trust
Agreement, and Beneficial Owners will become the registered owners of the Series 2023 Bonds. See “THE SERIES
2023 BONDS - Book-Entry Only System” herein.



Redemption
The Series 2023 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
Book-Entry Only System

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2023 Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds will be issued as
fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Series 2023 Bond will be issued for each
maturity of the Series 2023 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited
with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct
Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and
other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges
between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard &
Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com (which is not intended to be an active
hyperlink).

Purchases of the Series 2023 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Series 2023 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of the Series 2023 Bonds (“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial
Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2023 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on
the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 2023 Bonds, except in the event that use of the
book-entry system for the Series 2023 Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, Series 2023 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2023 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge
of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2023 Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct
Participants to whose accounts such Series 2023 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.
The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Series 2023 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices
of significant events with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed



amendments to any of the resolutions under which any Series 2023 Bonds is issued. For example, the Beneficial
Owners of Series 2023 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 2023 Bonds for their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Series 2023 Bonds of a maturity are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to
be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series
2023 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy
assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 2023 Bonds
are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption payments and principal and interest payments on the Series 2023 Bonds will be made to Cede
& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit
Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Issuer or the
paying agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the paying agent, or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption payments and principal and interest
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the
responsibility of the Issuer or the paying agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds at any time
by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the registrar or paying agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that
a successor depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Discontinuance of Book-Entry-Only System

In the event that the Series 2023 Bonds are no longer in book-entry only form, the following provisions shall
apply with respect to such Series 2023 Bonds: The Issuer will appoint another securities depository for the Series
2023 Bonds or the Series 2023 Bonds held by DTC will be cancelled and the Issuer will execute and deliver the Series
2023 Bonds in fully certificated form to DTC. If no other securities depository is named, principal and interest on the
Series 2023 Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner at maturity upon presentation and surrender thereof to a
paying agent appointed by the Issuer at its principal corporate trust office. The Issuer would then maintain through
the paying agent books of registry for the purpose of registering ownership and transfer of the Series 2023 Bonds.
The Series 2023 Bonds would be transferable by the registered owner in person or by his duly authorized attorney
upon surrender of the Series 2023 Bond to be transferred together with a written instrument of transfer duly executed
by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. The paying agent will, upon receipt thereof, authenticate and
deliver a new bond or bonds in like principal amount as the Series 2023 Bond so presented. The Issuer and the paying
agent will deem and treat the person in whose name each Series 2023 Bond is registered as the absolute owner thereof
for all purposes.



Legal Authority

The Series 2023 Bonds are being issued and secured by the Issuer pursuant to the authority granted by
Title 33, Chapter 31 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “South Carolina Code™), known
as the “South Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1994.” The Series 2023 Bonds are being issued under the
provisions of a Bond Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Issuer on November 14, 2023.

Title 4, Chapter 9 of the South Carolina Code authorizes the County to enter into the Base Lease and the
Facilities Agreement and to perform its obligations thereunder.

The execution, delivery, and performance of the Issuer’s obligation under the Facilities Agreement and the
Base Lease with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds were authorized and approved pursuant to an ordinance adopted by
County Council on November 16, 2023.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE SERIES 2023 BONDS

Facilities Agreement

Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, the County agrees to pay to the Issuer installment payments of purchase
price for the Project Facilities in such amounts and at such times as will be sufficient to enable the Issuer to make
payments on the Series 2023 Bonds, as and when the same shall become due and payable. See “FORM OF TO
PUBLIC FACILITIES PURCHASE AND OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT” in Appendix B-2 hereto.

The financial obligations of the County under the Facilities Agreement do not constitute general
obligations of the County to which its faith and credit or taxing power are pledged, but are subject to and
dependent upon lawful appropriations of funds being made by County Council to pay the installment payments
of purchase price due in each fiscal year under the Facilities Agreement. The County’s obligations under the
Facilities Agreement are from year to year only and do not constitute a mandatory payment obligation of the
County in any fiscal year in which funds are not appropriated by the County to pay the installment payments
of purchase price due in such fiscal year. The County has no continuing obligation to appropriate funds to pay
installment payments of purchase price due under the Facilities Agreement and may terminate its obligations
under the Facilities Agreement on an annual basis without any penalty.

The County’s exercise of its option to terminate its obligations under the Facilities Agreement is determined
by the failure of County Council to budget specifically and appropriate moneys to pay all Acquisition Payments for
the next fiscal year of the County, determined by July 1 of each year. As more fully set forth in definitions found in
Appendix B hereto, the term “Acquisition Payments” includes the Base Payments and the Additional Payments, the
term “Base Payments” means the amount payable by the County under the Facilities Agreement, sufficient in time
and amount to enable the Issuer to pay the Series 2023 Bonds, and the term “Additional Payments” means the cost of
maintenance and repair, cost of insurance, administrative expenses, all costs and expenses of the Issuer and the Trustee
under the Facilities Agreement and other costs payable by the County with respect to the Project Facilities pursuant
to the Facilities Agreement.

Under the terms of the Facilities Agreement, upon each payment or prepayment of Base Payments, an
undivided interest in the Project Facilities, equal to that percentage of the “Acquisition Price” (defined to mean the
sum of all Base Payments, which equals the total principal and interest payable on the Series 2023 Bonds) represented
by such payment or prepayment, will transfer from the Issuer to the County. Under the terms of the Facilities
Agreement, payment by the County of Base Payments also entitles the County to the use and occupancy of all of the
Project Facilities during the applicable Fiscal Year in which such Base Payments are made.

The Facilities Agreement provides that upon its termination, either by reason of default or nonappropriation,
the Project Facilities will be partitioned between the Issuer and the County based upon their respective percentages of
undivided interests in the Project Facilities. The determination of which portion of the Project Facilities will remain
subject to the leasehold interest of the Issuer and which portion will be transferred to the County will be made by a
consultant appointed by the Trustee, who is directed by the Facilities Agreement to protect the interests of the owners
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of the Series 2023 Bonds in preparing the partition plan. The Facilities Agreement provides that, in making the
determinations of which portion of the Project Facilities is to be allocated to the Issuer to protect the interests of the
owners of the Series 2023 Bonds, the consultant preparing the partition plan may take into account the market value
of such portion and the relative importance of such portion to the County, all to determine which portion will best
protect the interests of the owners of the Series 2023 Bonds. The Facilities Agreement obligates the County to
relinquish its right of possession to the portion of the Project Facilities partitioned to the Issuer and obligates the Issuer
to release from the Base Lease the portion of the Project Facilities Real Property and Project Facilities partitioned to
the County. See “FORM OF PUBLIC FACILITIES PURCHASE AND OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT - Event of
Nonappropriation” and “-Surrender of Possession Upon Termination” in Appendix B-2 hereto.

Use of Capital Project Sales Tax Proceeds to Pay Base Payments

The County intends to make Base Payments from excess proceeds of the County’s Capital Project Sales Tax
(the “CPST 111 Excess”), a one percent sales and use tax that has been imposed in the County since May 1, 2021 and
that terminates on April 30, 2028. This Capital Project Sale Tax (“CPST H17) is authorized by Article I11 of Chapter
10 of Title 4 of the South Carolina Code (the “CPST Act”) and the successful results of a referendum held in the
County on November 3, 2020 (the “Referendum”). The proceeds of the CPST are required by law to be used to pay
the cost of capital projects approved in the Referendum, but the CPST Act allows for excess collections of CPST llII
not required to pay the costs of the projects approved in the Referendum to be used to pay the cost of additional
projects of the type allowed under the CPST Act, such projects to be designated by ordinance of County Council.

The projects approved in the Referendum were financed by the County through its $120,000,000 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 (the “2021 General Obligation Bonds™”). All such projects have been completed, and
the final payment on the General Obligation Bonds is June 1, 2028. Based on actual collections to date of $64,366,040,
the County projects that CPST 111 will generate approximately $80,000,000 in excess of the amount required to pay
all amounts due on the 2021 General Obligation Bonds to maturity. Accordingly, and as authorized by the CPST Act,
County Council has designated the Capital Projects and the Ancillary Projects as the object of the expenditures of the
CPST 111 Excess, and has expressed its intent to utilize the CPST |1l Excess, subject to annual appropriations, to pay
all Base Payments under the Facilities Agreement.

The following table shows projected CPST 111 Proceeds, debt service on the 2021 General Obligation Bonds,
and CPST Il Excess available to pay the Series 2023 Bonds.

Fiscal Projected CPST 111 2021 General CPST 1l
Year Proceeds™® Obligation Bonds Excess

2022 $29,759,012 $20,958,333 $8,800,679
2023 34,607,828 20,958,750 13,649,078
2024 32,457,928 20,956,750 11,501,178
2025 32,457,928 20,955,750 11,502,178
2026 32,457,928 20,958,750 11,499,178
2027 32,457,928 20,958,500 11,499,428
2028 32,457,928 20,958,000 11,499,928

(@ Reflects actual collections through June 2023.
Source of Base Payments

The County may budget and appropriate any moneys for the purpose of making Base Payments, including
ad valorem property taxes. The County is also authorized to levy an unlimited ad valorem tax to pay its general
obligation bonds issued to make the Base Payments, and is authorized by the South Carolina Constitution to incur
general obligation debt without voter approval in an amount not exceeding eight percent of the assessed value of all
taxable property of the County. See “DEBT STRUCTURE - Legal Debt Limit of the County” herein.

The County expects to make the Base Payments from either (1) ad valorem taxes levied to fund Base

Payments or (2) proceeds of general obligation bonds or general obligation bond anticipation notes the County would
issue for the purpose of making the Base Payments due on the 15" day preceding the following Bond Payment Date.
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In the event such general obligation bonds are issued, the County would levy an annual ad valorem tax sufficient in
amount to retire its general obligation debt to be issued to fund Base Payments.

The County has agreed in the Facilities Agreement that it reasonably believes that it will pay Base Payments
due or coming due in order to use the Project Facilities and that it will have adequate capacity to issue general
obligation debt that does not require voter approval in amounts sufficient and at times to pay such Base Payments.
The County further represents that it presently intends to maintain its capacity to issue general obligation debt that
does not require voter approval, in amounts and at times sufficient to make Base Payments when due; provided that
nothing in the Facilities Agreement shall be construed to limit the County from providing funds from other sources to
pay Base Payments. These covenants of the County contained in the Facilities Agreement are subject to termination
if the Facilities Agreement is terminated by the County upon nonappropriation.

For information concerning the eight percent debt capacity of the County, see “DEBT STRUCTURE - Legal
Debt Limit of the County” herein.

Trust Agreement

As security for its obligations under the Series 2023 Bonds, the Issuer will, by way of the Trust Estate,
(1) assign and pledge to the Trustee, and grant a first priority security interest in, all of its right, title, interest, and
remedies in and to (a) the Facilities Agreement, including all moneys, revenues, and receipts to be received thereunder
(except for certain rights reserved to the Issuer), and (b) the Base Lease, (2) assign and pledge to the Trustee, and grant
a first priority security interest in, all revenues and receipts derived from the Issuer’s ownership interests in the Project
Facilities, and (3) assign and pledge to the Trustee, and grant a first priority security interest in, all moneys held by
the Trustee in certain funds and accounts created under the Trust Agreement, all pursuant to the Trust Agreement. See
“FORM OF TRUST AGREEMENT” in Appendix B-3 hereto.

The Issuer has not granted any lien on or security interest in the Project Facilities to secure the Series
2023 Bonds. In the event the County terminates the Facilities Agreement, the Series 2023 Bonds will be payable
from such moneys, if any, as may be held or made available by the Trustee from the leasing until the expiration of the
Base Lease (June 1, 2033) of the portions of the Project Facilities that remain with the Issuer after the partitioning is
accomplished that is described herein under “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2023
BONDS - Facilities Agreement.”

Limited Obligations

The Series 2023 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the Trust Estate
pledged under the Trust Agreement. The Series 2023 Bonds are not payable from and are not secured by a lien,
security interest, or encumbrance upon any other funds or assets of the Issuer.

The Series 2023 Bonds shall not constitute a general obligation of the County nor a debt, indebtedness,
or obligation of, or a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of, the County or the State of South Carolina
or any political subdivision thereof, within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever.
Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of South Carolina, the County, or any political
subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on the Series 2023 Bonds or other
costs incident thereto. The Issuer has no taxing power.

Additional Bonds

Under certain circumstances, the Trust Agreement permits the Issuer, for specified purposes, to issue
Additional Bonds which will be equally and ratably secured under the Trust Agreement on a parity basis with the
Series 2023 Bonds that will remain outstanding. Prior to the delivery of any Additional Bonds, the Issuer and the
Trustee will enter into a Supplemental Trust Agreement providing the terms of and security for the Additional Bonds.
The Trust Agreement further requires a Supplemental Facilities Agreement to be filed with the Trustee, pursuant to
which the Base Payments must be increased and the term of the Facilities Agreement must be extended, if necessary,
S0 as to assure that the additional Base Payments are in an amount sufficient to allow the Issuer to provide for the
retirement of the Additional Bonds by making available sufficient money for the payment when due of principal and
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interest. For additional requirements for issuing Additional Bonds, see “FORM OF TRUST AGREEMENT” attached
as Appendix B-3 hereto.

In the event that the Issuer issues a series of Additional Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement, as
supplemented by a Supplemental Trust Agreement, to provide funds to defease a portion of the Outstanding Series
2023 Bonds, then the Project Facilities Real Property and the Project Facilities may be partitioned and allocated to the
Series 2023 Bonds which thereafter shall remain Outstanding and to the Series of Bonds refunding a portion of the
Series 2023 Bonds as set forth in the Facilities Agreement. See “FORM OF PUBLIC FACILITIES PURCHASE
AND OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT?” attached as Appendix B-2 hereto.

Title Insurance

A title insurance policy that insures the Issuer’s interest in the Project Facilities Real Property and names the
Trustee as the insured party will be delivered to the Trustee at the time the Series 2023 Bonds are issued. Such title
insurance policy will be in an amount at least equal to the par amount of the Series 2023 Bonds. Generally, a claim
against a title insurance policy may only be made in an amount which is the lesser of the actual value of the real
property and the amount of the title insurance policy.

Enforceability of Remedies

The realization of value from the pledge of the Trust Estate under the Trust Agreement upon any default or
nonappropriation of sufficient funds to make Base Payments due under the Facilities Agreement will depend upon the
exercise of various remedies specified by the Trust Agreement and the Facilities Agreement. These and other remedies
may require judicial actions, which are often subject to discretion and delay and which may be difficult to pursue.
The enforceability of rights and remedies with respect to the Series 2021 Bonds and the Series 2023 Bonds may be
limited by state and federal laws, rulings, and decisions affecting remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization,
insolvency, or other laws affecting creditors’ rights or remedies heretofore or hereafter enacted. Under existing law
(including particularly federal bankruptcy law), certain remedies specified by the Trust Agreement or the Facilities
Agreement may not be readily available or may be limited. A court may decide not to order the specific performance
of the covenants contained in the Trust Agreement or the Facilities Agreement.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds will be
qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by state and federal laws,
rulings, and decisions affecting remedies and by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, or
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.

The undertakings of the County should be considered with reference to Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code,
11 U.S.C. Section 901, et seq., as amended, and other laws affecting creditors’ rights and municipalities generally.
Chapter 9 permits a municipality, political subdivision, public agency, or other instrumentality of a state that is
insolvent or unable to meet its debts as such debts mature to file a petition in the United States Bankruptcy Court for
the purpose of effecting a plan to adjust its debts; directs such a petitioner to file with the court a list of its creditors;
provides that the filing of the petition under that Chapter operates as a stay of the commencement or continuation of
any judicial or other proceeding against the petitioner; directs the petitioner to file a plan for the adjustment of its
debts; permits the petitioner in its plan to modify the rights to payment of its creditors; and provides that the plan must
be accepted in writing by or on behalf of creditors of each impaired class of claims holding at least two-thirds in
amount and more than one-half in number of the creditors that have accepted or rejected the plan. The plan may be
confirmed notwithstanding the negative vote of one or more classes of claims if the court finds that the plan is in the
best interest of creditors, is feasible, and is fair and equitable with respect to the dissenting classes of creditors. A
petitioner has the right to reinstate indebtedness under its plan according to the original maturity schedule of such
indebtedness or alter the payment terms, maturity schedule, and other provisions governing the indebtedness
notwithstanding any provision in the documents under which the indebtedness arose relating to the insolvency or
financial condition of the petitioner before the confirmation of the plan, the commencement of a case under the
Bankruptcy Code, or the appointment of or taking possession by a trustee in a case under the Bankruptcy Code or by
a receiver or other custodian prior to the commencement of a case under the Bankruptcy Code.
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PROJECT FACILITIES
The Project Facilities which are being sold by the Issuer to the County pursuant to the Facilities Agreement
consist of the Florence County Complex (the “County Complex™). The County Complex consists of approximately

168,000 square feet on eleven (11) floors and houses the primary offices of Florence County government, including
County Council.

PLAN OF FINANCING
Estimated Sources and Applications of Funds; Use of Proceeds

The sources and applications of funds in connection with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds are estimated
below.

Estimated Sources of Funds:

Par Amount of Series 2023 Bonds $
[Net Original Issue Premium]
Total Sources of Funds $

Estimated Applications of Funds:

Deposit into Project Fund $
Costs of Issuance!
Total Applications of Funds $

YIncludes underwriting compensation, legal and accounting fees, financial advisor’s fees, initial Trustee’s fees, printing costs,
rating agency’s fee, and other costs of issuance for the Series 2023 Bonds.

The Capital Projects

The Capital Projects being contemplated consist of primarily of replacement of the original HVAC system
and retrofitting third floor to be used as office space.

The Ancillary Projects

The ancillary projects will consist of acquisition, construction, furnishing, and equipping of a variety of
improvements to the County, municipal, and other local government facilities in the County, including road
improvements; infrastructure serving economic development property; cultural, recreational, and historic facilities to
include public land; fire protection facilities; municipal water and sewer improvements; and other improvements to
County facilities.
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Set forth below are the principal and interest payment requirements with respect to the Series 2017A Bond,
the Series 2021 Bonds and the Series 2023 Bonds. The County may elect not to appropriate such amounts with respect
to the Series 2017A Bond, the Series 2021 Bonds and the Series 2023 Bonds, in which case it will forfeit the right to
occupy a portion of the Project Facilities with respect to each of the Series 2017A Bond, the Series 2021 Bonds and
the Series 2023 Bonds, but will not be deemed in default. The payment requirements are shown below.

Year Ending  Series 2015 Bond  Series 2017A Bond*  Series 2021 Bonds? Series 2023 Bonds Total Debt Service
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2024 $2,698,013 $1,565,240 $ 1,338,566
2025 1,538,054 3,311,670
2026 1,507,994 3,341,198
2027 3,357,252
2028 3,409,132
2029 3,406,507
2030 3,451,216
2031 3,454,216
2032 3,483,500
2033 3,504,393
2034 3,544,493
2035 3,563,468
2036 3,591,971
Totals $2,698,013 $4,611,288 $42,757,580

Restructured on March 31, 2021 in order to obtain a lower interest rate. Bonds issued to defray costs of the Parking Garage Project;
secured by a lease of the parking garage and separate from facilities leased and securing the Series 2021 Bonds and the Series 2023
Bonds.

2Bonds issued to refund a portion of the original principal amount $42,000,000 Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (Judicial
Center Project), Series 2015, which were used to defray costs of County Judicial Center; secured by a lease of judicial center and
separate from facilities leased and securing the Series 2023 Bonds.

A description of the debt service requirements of the County is set forth herein under “DEBT
STRUCTURE - Composite Debt Service.”

THE COUNTY
General Description

The County was established in 1888 and is located in the northeast section of South Carolina, which is also
known as the Pee Dee region. The County has an area of 806 square miles and is bordered on the east by the Great Pee
Dee River, on the south by Clarendon and Williamsburg Counties, on the southwest by Sumter County, on the west by
Darlington and Lee Counties, and on the north by Darlington, Marlboro, and Dillon Counties. The County’s population
in 2020 was 137,064. The City of Florence, the largest municipality in the County and the county seat, had a 2020
population of 39,950.

Form of Government

The County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government in accordance with Title 4, Chapter
9 of the South Carolina Code. A nine-member County Council is elected from single-member districts for staggered
four year terms. The Chairman is appointed by County Council at its first meeting in January of each year. Vacancies
of members of County Council are filled through special elections, or by appointment by the Governor, depending on
the balance of the term of office. County Council is responsible for adopting an annual budget for all county departments
and ordering the levy of ad valorem taxes necessary to carry out County functions and to pay County indebtedness.
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The present members of the Florence County Council, their respective occupations and years of service, are as
follows:

Years of
Name Occupation Service
Willard Dorriety, Jr., Chairman Self-Employed/Farmer 10
Alphonso Bradley Educator 16
Kent C. Caudle Commercial Real Estate Broker 10
Stoney C. “Toney” Moore Construction 1
Waymon Mumford Retired 28
Roger M. Poston Retired 12
C. William Schofield Retailer 1
Jason Springs Safety & Loss Prevention Consultant/Civil Engineer 9
Jerry Wayne Yarborough, Jr. Retailer 3

County Council employs a County Administrator who acts as the chief administrative officer of the County and
is responsible for the administration of all departments of the County government which County Council controls. The
County Administrator serves at the pleasure of County Council. The powers and duties of the Administrator include:
(1) to execute policies, directives and legislative actions of County Council; (2) to direct and coordinate the operational
agencies and administrative activities of the County; (3) to prepare annual operating and capital improvement budgets
for submission to County Council; (4) to supervise the expenditure of appropriated funds; (5) to prepare reports for
County Council regarding financial and administrative activities of the County; (6) to administer the County’s personnel
policies; and (7) to be responsible for employment and discharge of personnel in those departments of the County in
which employment authority over personnel is vested in County government.

The County Administrator is Kevin Yokim. Mr. Yokim was appointed to his position on February 20, 2023.
Mr. Yokim previously served as Assistant City Manager for the City of Florence beginning in 2019. Prior to his time
with the City, Mr. Yokim served as Finance Director for the County, a position he held for over 23 years. Prior to his
time as finance director, Mr. Yokim worked for ten years in public accounting, first with the firm of Arthur Young and
Company and more recently with Webster Rogers LLP. Mr. Yokim received his Bachelor of Science degree in
Accounting from Bob Jones University in 1986 and his Master of Public Affairs degree from Indiana University in 2014.
He became a CPA in 1988 and a Certified Government Finance Officer in 2001. Mr. Yokim has been a member of
numerous professional and community organizations and has held leadership roles in most of these organizations.

The County Finance Director is Ashley D. Davison, who has been employed in that position since November
1,2023. Ms. Davison has been with the County since August 2022 serving as accounting manager before being appointed
Interim Finance Director on July 22, 2023. Ms. Davison has 13 years of accounting experience in the private and public
sector at Nucor Steel Darlington, Sonoco Products, Florence School District No. 1, and the County.

Services Provided By the County

The County operates on a fiscal year basis, with each fiscal year beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30
(each a “Fiscal Year”), and references herein to a Fiscal Year followed by a year (e.g. Fiscal Year 2023) shall mean the
Fiscal Year ended on June 30 of the year stated. The County operates and maintains various programs which are funded
from County revenues, as reflected in its annual budgets for Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024, summaries of which are shown
below under “Summary of General Fund Budget.” These programs include:

@ General Government
(b) Public Safety
(©) Public Works

(d) Health
(e) Welfare
® Culture & Recreation

9 Education

During Fiscal Year 2023, the County employed approximately 832 employees, consisting of 746 full-time
employees and 86 part-time employees.
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Services Provided By Other Governmental Entities
The nine municipalities within the County also provide some of the services listed above and additional services,
including water and sewer services, not provided by the County.
FINANCIAL AND TAX INFORMATION

Five-Year Summary of General Fund Operations

The following table sets forth a summary of the County’s General Fund operations as of June 30 of each of
the Fiscal Years shown:

2019 2020 2021 2022 20231

Revenues
Taxes® $38,897,052 $40,634,518 $43,102,960 $44,905,889 $50,448,518
Licenses and Permits 2,495,643 2,048,134 2,338,545 2,306,053 1,559,990
Fines and Fees 3,316,967 2,958,129 3,179,702 3,680,734 3,124,425
Intergovernmental Revenues 6,905,819 7,033,484 7,655,799 7,387,563 7,514,436
Sales and other functional revenues 9,090,770 7,595,052 8,742,191 9,117,877 10,489,885
Miscellaneous 1,652,849 939,117 897,721 457,632 3,732,359
Total Revenues $62,359,100 $61,208,434 $65,916,918 $67,855,748 $76,869,613
Expenditures
General Government $23,157,815 $22,975,682 $17,103,114 $23,370,248 $29,800,638
Public Safety 21,812,195 22,072,816 20,591,811 23,159,094 26,223,865
Public Works 2,054,312 1,416,285 973,927 986,372 0
Health 9,515,691 9,344,216 8,971,180 10,479,802 10,643,066
Welfare 352,037 352,731 341,637 347,753 339,747
Culture and recreation 6,140,900 6,076,669 5,627,589 6,361,313 7,425,409
Education 4,515 4,515 4,515 4,515 4,515
Capital Outlay 2,139,109 574,714 0
Debt Service 404,116 759,450 0
Total Expenditures $63,037,465 $62,242,914 $56,156,998 $66,043,261 $74,437,237
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures ($678,365) ($1,034,480) $ 9,759,920 $ 1,812,487 $2,432,376
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of leases $ 7,456 3 0
Proceeds from sale of capital assets $211,872 $ 173,577 273,814 551,825
Operating transfer in 806,504 806,504 802,807 839,631 548,000
Operating transfer out (954,253) (954,253) (954,253) (1,089,253) (1,095,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ($147,749) S 64,123 $ 22,131 $ 31,648 $4,825
Net Change in Fund Balance ($826,114) ($970,357) $ 9,782,051 $ 1,844,135 $2,437,201
Fund Balance - July 1 $18,983,286 $18,157,172  $17,186,815 $26,968,866 $28,813,001
Change in Reserve for Inventory
Fund Balance - June 30 $18,157,172 $17,186,815 $26,968,866) $28,813,001 $31,250,202

@ Includes Local Option Sales Tax.

@ Unaudited.

@ Increase in Fund Balance from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021 is a result of the receipt of approximately $7,000,000 in Cares
Act funds as well as a hiring freeze.
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Financial Statements

The financial statements of the County for the year ended June 30, 2022, were audited by Mauldin & Jenkins.
The financial statements of the County for the years ended June 30, 2018 through 2021 have been audited by Elliott
Davis, LLC, Certified Public Accountants. A copy of the general purpose financial statements of the County for the
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022 is attached to this Official Statement as Appendix A. Copies of complete audited
financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022 and prior years are available for inspection in the office
of Ashley D. Davison, Finance Director, 180 N. Irby Street, Florence, South Carolina 29501, telephone (843) 665-
3013 and on the County’s website at http://florenceco.org/offices/finance/ (which is not intended to be an active
hyperlink).

Budget Procedure and Accounting Policies

The State Constitution requires each county to prepare and maintain annual budgets which provide for
sufficient income to meet its estimated expenses for each year. If a county’s expenses exceed income in any year, the
governing body of the county is required in the following year to levy taxes in an amount which, when added to all
other sources of income will be sufficient to pay such deficiency and the estimated expenses for such year.

Pursuant to Section 4-9-10 et seq., of the South Carolina Code (the “Home Rule Act”) provides that the fiscal
year for county governments begins on July 1 of each year and ends on June 30 of the following year. The County
Council is required to adopt annually, prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, operating and capital budgets for the
operation of county government. The budgets must identify the sources of anticipated revenue, including taxes
necessary to meet the financial requirements of the budgets adopted.

Each year, all agencies of the County submit requests for appropriations to the County Finance Director so
that a proposed budget may be formulated. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity and includes
information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. The proposed
budget is presented to County Council for review and revision. A public hearing, after due notice has been provided,
is held to allow public input as to the proposed budget. Pursuant to the provision of the Home Rule Act, County
Council must then take formal action by an ordinance in adopting its annual budget. All ordinances are required to
be read at three public meetings of County Council on three separate days with an interval of not less than seven days
between the second and third reading. In order to modify the original ordinance adopting the budget, formal action
must again be taken by ordinance with due notice provided.

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, as appropriate.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds for the purpose of conducting specific
activities in accordance with laws, regulations or other restrictions.

The County’s accounting methods and procedures conform to generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governmental entities. The financial statements include all funds, account groups, agencies, boards,
commissions and authorities of the County and its component unit.

Pursuant to Section 6-1-320 of the South Carolina Code, the County’s annual millage rate for operations may
increase only at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population
growth of the County. This limitation may be overridden by a vote of two-thirds of the governing body of the County,
but only for the following purposes and only in a year in which such condition exists:

D) a deficiency of the preceding year;

2 any catastrophic event outside the control of the County Council such as a natural disaster,
severe weather event, act of God, or act of terrorism, fire, war, or riot;

3) compliance with a court order or decree;

4) taxpayer closure due to circumstances outside the control of the County Council that

decreases by ten percent or more the amount of revenue payable to the taxing jurisdiction
in the preceding year; or
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(5) compliance with a regulation promulgated or statute enacted by the federal or state
government after the ratification date of this section for which an appropriation or a method
for obtaining an appropriation is not provided by the federal or state government.

Summary of General Fund Budget

The following is a summary of the General Fund Budgets of the County (as originally adopted) for the Fiscal
Years 2023 and 2024:

2023 2024

General Fund Revenues

Taxes $48,501,455 $52,615,646
Licenses and Permits 1,890,080 1,823,480
Fines and Fees 3,385,487 3,049,000
Intergovernmental 8,333,418 8,453,280
Revenue from service charges & fees 9,353,118 9,797,600
Miscellaneous transfers in/out (net) 4,593,627 8,688,531
Total Revenues $76,057,185 $84,427,537
General Fund Expenditures

General Government $30,763,242 34,489,067
Public Safety 26,392,599 29,499,391
Public works® 0 0
Health 11,414,616 12,203,457
Welfare 348,457 348,457
Culture and Recreation 7,133,756 7,887,165
Education 4515 0
Total Expenditures $76,057,185 $84,427,537

@ Public works accounted for in separate special revenue fund.
Note: See “COVID-19” on page 4.
Source: County Finance Director.

County Operating Revenues

Because the County receives a substantial amount of funding from State sources, including $6,126,604 in
Fiscal Year 2022, and an unaudited $6,140,454 in Fiscal Year 2023, any reductions in State budgeted funds for local
governments will have an impact on the County’s Fiscal Year 2024 budget.

The audited financial statements of the County for Fiscal Year 2022, indicate that 65.91% of general fund
revenues came from taxpayers of the County; 10.84% came from intergovernmental revenues; 8.79% came from fees,
fines, charges and services charged by the County; and 14.46% came from other revenue sources.

Revenues from Ad Valorem Taxes. The largest source of County operating revenues comes from ad valorem
taxes (excluding amounts received from the Local Option Sales Tax) paid by taxpayers within the County. A
discussion of general tax information, tax rates and millage levied upon taxpayers of the County for County purposes
is presented below. All the revenues from ad valorem taxes and fees in lieu of taxes (see “CERTAIN LEGAL
MATTERS - Payments in Lieu of Taxes”) are either general fund revenues and may therefore be used by the County
on an unrestricted basis or are collected for the purposes of paying debt service on general obligation bonds of the
County, or with respect to fees in lieu of taxes, special source revenue bonds of the County.
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During the past five Fiscal Years for which information is available, the County received the following
amounts as general fund revenues from ad valorem taxes and fees in lieu of taxes:

Fiscal Year Local Fee-in-Lieu
Ended June 30 Revenues of Taxes
20230 $28,777,845 $3,305,103
2022 25,749,570 2,716,392
2021 24,504,584 3,470,714
2020 23,445,717 3,331,027
2019 23,404,988 3,301,671

1) Unaudited.
Source: County Finance Director

Local Option Sales Tax

A one percent sales tax (the “Local Option Sales Tax) was imposed in the County beginning May 1, 1994.
The sales tax is authorized pursuant to Sections 4-10-10 et seq, of the South Carolina Code, and a referendum by
which the imposition of the tax in the County was approved. The Local Option Sales Tax may be terminated upon
approval thereof by referendum; a referendum shall be called upon the filing of a petition signed by at least 15% of
the qualified electors of the County.

Revenues collected from the Local Option Sales Tax are by law divided into a “Property Tax Credit Fund”
and a “County/Municipal Revenue Fund.” Presently, 100% of all collections are allocated to the Property Tax Credit
Fund. The Property Tax Credit Fund is distributed to the county government (67%) and all municipalities within the
county (33% total). The municipalities’ 33% share is allocated based upon the population of each municipality as
compared to the total municipal population within the county. All amounts allocated from the Property Tax Credit
Fund must be applied to a reduction in ad valorem property tax millage; the reduction applicable to a given parcel or
item of taxable property is based upon the assessed value of such property compared to the assessed value of all
property within the taxing jurisdiction.

Revenues not distributed to the Property Tax Credit Fund, if any, must be deposited in the County/Municipal
Revenue Fund. Fifty percent of such revenue is distributed based upon the location of the sale, and the remaining
50% is distributed based upon population. County/Municipal Revenue Fund moneys may be deposited to the general
fund of a county or municipality, or applied to provide additional millage rollback. As to those counties in which
annual Local Option Sales Tax collections exceed five million dollars or more, the State Treasurer is charged with
withholding a portion of such collections, not to exceed five percent, for distribution to other counties which have
adopted the Local Option Sales Tax but have not collected an amount at least equal to a defined annual minimum
amount. The annual minimum amount is equal to two million dollars in the first year of collections within a county,
and increases annually based upon a statutory formula.

The following table shows total Local Option Sales Tax Collections for the Fiscal Years shown:

Fiscal Total Applied to Reserved for Rollback
Year Receipts Rollback In Future Years
20230 $20,874,841 $21,243,690 ($368,849)
2022 19,173,388 18,396,469 776,919

2021 17,896,016 16,780,611 1,115,405

2020 15,746,746 16,148,357 (401,611)
2019 15,499,567 16,002,626 (503,059)

1) Unaudited.
Source: County Finance Director
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Capital Project Sales Tax

Since May 1, 2007, there has been a 1% capital project sales tax (the “Sales Tax”) imposed in the County
pursuant to Section 4-12-33 et seq. of the South Carolina Code and the favorable results of referenda held in the County
on November 7, 2006, November 5, 2013, and November 3, 2020. The proceeds of the first Sales Tax were used to
defray the cost of various road improvement projects in the County. The proceeds of the second Sales Tax and third
Sales Tax were used to defray the cost of various improvement projects in the County, including fire department, water
and sewer system projects, municipal projects, recreational improvements, and County road improvements. The Sales
Tax is administered and collected by the South Carolina Department of Revenue (“DOR”) in the same manner as other
sales and use taxes. The revenues of the tax are remitted to DOR and placed on deposit with the State Treasurer and
credited to a fund separate and distinct from the General Fund of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds
made and costs to the DOR of administering the tax (not to exceed 1% of the revenues), the State Treasurer distributes
the net revenues quarterly to the County Treasurer and the net revenues may only be used for the purposes stated in the
referenda. Unless extended pursuant to another referendum, the Sales Tax will end no later than April 30, 2028.

Sales Tax Collections

The table below sets forth the amount of Sales Tax revenues remitted to the County Treasurer during the past
five Fiscal Years.

Prior
Fiscal Year Sales Tax Received
2023 $34,607,828W
2022 29,759,012
2021 27,289,609
2020 24,002,860
2019 23,788,203

M Unaudited.
Source: County Finance Director

Local Hospitality and Accommodations Fees

The County also imposes a local hospitality fee (the “Hospitality Fee”) on all amounts paid for prepared food
and beverages purchase in the County pursuant to Article 7 of Chapter 1 of Title 6 of the South Carolina Code (the
“Hospitality Fee Act”). The Hospitality Fee is imposed by the County at a rate of 2% in unincorporated areas on the
County and an effective rate of 1% within seven of the County’s nine municipalities, with 1% in those seven
municipalities either collected by or remitted to the municipality in question. The County’s other two municipalities
(Florence and Pamplico) have their own hospitality fee which predates and preempts that of the County.

Imposition of the Hospitality Fee began October 1, 2008. The table below sets forth the amount of net
Hospitality Fee revenues remitted to the County Treasurer during the past five Fiscal Years.

Hospitality
Fiscal Year Fees Received
2023 $2,683,219M
2022 2,100,085
2021 1,824,947
2020 1,624,018
2019 1,661,779

@ Unaudited.
Source: County Finance Director

In addition to the Hospitality Fee, the County imposes a local accommodations fee (the “Accommodations
Fee™) pursuant to Article 5 of Chapter 1 of Title 6 of the South Carolina Code (the “Accommodations Fee Act”). The
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Accommodations Fee is imposed by the County at the rate of 3% throughout the County on amounts paid for
accommodations furnished to transients in the County.

The table below sets forth the amount of net Accommodations Fee revenues remitted to the County Treasurer
during the past five Fiscal Years.

Accommodations

Fiscal Year Fees Received
2023 $2,751,001@
2022 2,588,986
2021 1,990,659
2020 2,002,292
2019 2,307,211

1) Unaudited.
Source: County Finance Director

The receipts of both the Hospitality Fee and the Accommodations Fee must be used for “tourism-related”
expenditures, which include:

Q) tourism-related buildings including, but not limited to, civic centers, coliseums, and aquariums;
2 tourism-related cultural, recreational, or historic facilities;

(3) beach access, renourishment, or other tourism-related lands and water access;

4) highways, roads, streets, and bridges providing access to tourist destinations;

(5) advertisements and promotions related to tourism development; or

(6) water and sewer infrastructure to serve tourism-related demand.

In addition, because the County has exceeded $900,000 in annual collections of accommodations taxes
imposed by the State of South Carolina, revenues from both the Hospitality Fee and the Accommaodations Fee may be
used for operation and maintenance of those items provided in (1) through (6) above, including police, fire protection,
emergency medical services, and emergency-preparedness operations directly attendant to those facilities.

On December 8, 2015, the County issued its $3,238,000 Hospitality Fee Refunding Revenue Bond, Series
2015 (the “Hospitality Fee Bond”). The Hospitality Fee Bond is secured by and payable from revenues of the
Hospitality Fee, and its proceeds were used to pay a portion of the cost of a new, 27,000 square foot County Museum
building. As of June 30, 2023, there was outstanding $2,178,000 principal of the Hospitality Fee Bond and the final
maturity of principal will be March 1, 2035.

On December 17, 2015, the County issued its $16,015,000 Accommodations Fee Revenue Bonds, Series
2015 (the “Accommodations Fee Bond”). The Accommodations Fee Bond is secured by and payable from revenues
of the Accommodations Fee, and its proceeds were used to pay a portion of the cost of expansion of the Florence
Center, a regional civic center owned by the County and the City of Florence. As of June 30, 2023, there was
outstanding $15,125,000 principal of the Accommodations Fee Bond and the final maturity of principal will be May 1,
2040.

Permitted Investments

Pursuant to Section 6-5-10 of the South Carolina Code (“Section 6-5-10"), money under the control and
jurisdiction of the County Treasurer is permitted to be invested in the investments specified thereunder or in the South
Carolina Pooled Investment Fund. Section 6-5-10 provides the following investments: (1) obligations of the United
States and its agencies; (2) general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units; (3) savings
and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the federal government; (4) certificates
of deposit and repurchase agreements which are collaterally secured by securities of the type described in subsections
(1), (2) or (3) of this paragraph; and (5) certain no load open-end or closed-end management type investment
companies or trusts which are, in essence, an indirect investment in investments of the kind described in (1) and (2)
above or repurchase agreements collateralized by such investments. The South Carolina Pooled Investment Fund is
managed by the South Carolina State Treasurer.
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Pension Obligations and Retirement Benefits

South Carolina Retirement Systems. The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the “Retirement Systems™)
maintain five independent defined benefit plans and issues its own publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (“Retirement System ACFR”). The Retirement System ACFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information; copies may be obtained from the South Carolina Retirement Systems, 202 Arbor Lake
Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29223. See Note 10 to Financial Statements included in Appendix A.

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina Constitution provides that the governing body of any retirement
or pension system in the State funded in whole or in part by public funds shall not pay any increased benefits to
members or beneficiaries of that system unless that governing body first determines that funding for such increase on
a sound actuarial basis has been provided or is concurrently provided. The General Assembly must annually
appropriate funds and prescribe member contributions for any State operated retirement system which will ensure the
availability of funds to meet all normal and accrued liability of such system on a sound actuarial basis as determined
by the governing body of such system. The South Carolina Constitution prohibits diversion or use of the assets and
funds established, created and accruing for the purpose of paying obligations to members of the retirement systems of
the State and political subdivisions for any other purpose. Accordingly, each plan is administered independently, and
assets of each plan may be used only to benefit participants of that plan. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code prescribes
requirements relating to membership, benefits, and employee and employer contributions for each plan.

The majority of employees of the County are covered by the South Carolina Retirement System (“SCRS”),
one of the defined benefit plans maintained by the Retirement Systems. SCRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan, established effective July 1, 1945, for the purpose of providing retirement allowances
and other benefits for employees of the State, including political subdivisions, agencies and departments thereof.
Membership is required as a condition of employment, unless exempted by State law. Both employers and employees
must contribute. At this time, SCRS has two classes of membership: Class Two and Class Three. Class Two members
are generally employees who have earned service credit for a period of service prior to July 1, 2012. Class Three
members are generally those employees who have not earned service credit prior to July 1, 2012. Benefits vest after
five years of service for Class Two members and vest after eight years of service for Class Three members. Class Two
vested members who retire at age 65, or who retire with 28 years of service at any age, receive an annual benefit
payable monthly for life. The benefit is based on length of service and “Average Final Compensation,” an annualized
average of the employee’s highest 12 consecutive quarters of compensation. Class Three members with at least eight
years of earned service credit must meet the Rule of 90 to be eligible for full retirement benefits. The Rule of 90 means
the employee’s age and years of service must add up to 90.

The County contributes to the SCRS. Employer contributions are set at a percentage of the total member’s
annual compensation, plus a percentage for group life insurance, and a percentage for retiree health insurance. Plan
members are required to contribute 9% of their annual compensation.

Total employer retirement contributions to the SCRS paid on behalf of the County are shown in the following

table:

Fiscal Employer Group Life Total % Total

Year Contribution Insurance Contribution Contribution
20230 17.41% 0.15% 17.56% $6,819,481
2022 16.41 0.15 16.56 5,691,127
2021 15.41 0.15 15.56 5,404,221
2020 15.41 0.15 15.56 6,079,185
2019 14.41 0.15 14.56 4,787,579

@ Unaudited.

Act No. 13 of the 2017 Acts and Joint Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State addresses funding
of the SCRS. Significant features of this law include:

e Increases the employer contribution rate by 2% to 13.56% beginning July 1, 2017. Employer rates will
continue to increase annually by 1% through July 1, 2022, which would result in the employer rate totaling
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18.56% for Fiscal Year 2023 and thereafter. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the SCRS did not
increase the employer contribution rate by 1% on July 1, 2020 for Fiscal Year 2021.

e Increases and caps the employee contribution rate to 9% as of July 1, 2017.

e  After June 30, 2027, authorizes the decrease in employer and employee contribution rates in equal amounts
if the ratio between the actuarial value of SCRS assets and the actuarial value of SCRS liabilities is equal to
or greater than 85%.

e Effective July 1, 2017, lowers the assumed annual rate of return from 7.5% to 7.25% and provides for a reset
of the assumed rate of return every four years.

e Reduces the funding period (or amortization period) of unfunded liabilities, beginning in Fiscal Year 2018,
from 30 years to 20 years for Fiscal Year 2028 and thereafter.

All uniformed County law enforcement and fire personnel, as well as magistrates, participate and are covered
under the Police Officers Retirement System (“PORS”), a defined contribution plan. The PORS provides retirement
and death benefits.

Total employer retirement contributions to the PORS paid on behalf of the County are shown in the following

table:
Group
Fiscal Employer Life Total % Total
Year Contribution  Insurance Contribution Contribution
20230 19.84% 0.20% 20.04% $3,454,024
2022 18.84 0.20 19.04 2,840,180
2021 17.84 0.20 18.04 2,807,970
2020 17.84 0.20 18.04 2,999,027
2019 16.84 0.20 17.04 2,675,832

@ Unaudited.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the South Carolina General Assembly suspended the scheduled 1% increase
in the employer contribution to SCRA and PORS, which was scheduled to be effective July 1, 2020.

The County also participates in the statewide health and dental insurance program administered by the South
Carolina Employee Insurance Program (the “Program”). Employer contributions are made on behalf of the employees
at fixed rates. The contributions for health and dental insurance fringe benefits are as follows:

Fiscal County

Year Amount

2023M $6,164,436
2022 5,541,390
2021 5,653,714
2020 6,463,573
2019 6,193,529

@ Unaudited.

The County has paid all required contributions for fringe benefits and insurance as they come due and there
are no liabilities for underfunding of such benefits.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

The County is required to pay as part of its pension contributions a surcharge for retiree health and dental
insurance. Except for such payments, post-employment benefits such as health insurance for County employees are
the responsibility of the State. The County has no liability for such benefits, and will make no disclosure pertaining
to such benefits under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45. Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 75, nonetheless, requires the County to report its proportionate share of the State’s
liability for Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) in its Statement of Net Position. For Fiscal Year 2022, the
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County reported its proportionate share of the State’s net OPEB liability at $50,115,099. For Fiscal Year 2022, the
County reported its proportional share of PORS liability at $43,732,282 and the SCRS at $17,749,032. See Note 11
to Financial Statements included in Appendix A.

Liability Insurance

Subject to specific immunity set forth in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, local governments including
the County are liable for damages not to exceed $300,000 per incident/person and $600,000 per occurrence/aggregate.
No punitive or exemplary damages are permitted under the Act. Insurance protection to units of local government is
provided from either the South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund established by the State Budget and Control Board,
private carriers, self insurance or pooled self insurance funds. The County currently maintains liability insurance
coverage with the South Carolina Counties Property and Liability Trust. In the opinion of the County Administrator,
the amount of liability coverage maintained by the County is sufficient to provide protection against any loss arising
under the Act.

CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS
Property Taxation and Assessment

Article X, Section 1 of the Constitution requires equal and uniform assessments of property throughout the State
of South Carolina for the following classes of property and at the following ratios of fair market value of such property:

(1) Real and personal property owned by or leased to manufacturers, utilities and mining operations and
used in the conduct of such business - 10.5% of fair market value; *

(2) Real and personal property owned by or leased to companies primarily engaged in transportation for
hire of persons or property and used in the conduct of such business - 9.5% of fair market value;

(3) Legal residence and not more than five contiguous acres - 4% of fair market value (if the property
owner makes proper application and qualifies);

(4)  Agricultural real property used for such purposes owned by individuals and certain corporations - 4%
of use value (if the property owner makes proper application and qualifies);

(5)  Agricultural property and timberlands belonging to corporations having more than 10 shareholders -
6% of use value (if property owner makes proper application and qualifies);

(6)  All other real property - 6% of fair market value;

(7)  Business inventories - 6% of fair market value (as of 1988, there is available an exemption from taxation
of property in this category, hence this item is no longer significant, except that the assessed value of
business inventory as of tax year 1987 is taken into account in determining total assessed value for
purposes of the bonded debt limit)

(8)  Motor vehicles for personal use — 6.0%; and

(9)  All other personal property - 10.5% of fair market value.

1 Act No. 40. Pursuant to Act No. 40 of 2017 (“Act No. 40”), for property tax years beginning after July 1, 2017, there will be
six equal (2.38095%) and cumulative exemptions for the property of manufacturers which will total 14.2857%. The Act No.
40 exemption begins in 2018, effective for taxes levied in Fiscal Year 2019. Act No. 40 requires political subdivisions and
school districts to be fully reimbursed by the State for the new exemption in the same manner as from the Trust Fund for Tax
Relief. Under Act No. 40, to the extent that the aggregate value of the exemption exceeds $85 million in any year, the amount
of the exemption is required to be decreased so that the total value of the exemption for the year is reduced to $85 million.

The County Assessor appraises and assesses each year all real property and mobile homes located within the
County and certifies the results to the County Auditor (with the exception of Manufacturer’s Real Property which is
certified by the DOR). The County Auditor appraises and assesses all motor vehicles (except for large trucks, which are
appraised and assessed by the DOR), marine equipment, business personal property and airplanes. The DOR furnishes
guides for use by the County in the assessment of automobiles, automotive equipment and certain other classes of
property and directly assesses the real and personal property of public utilities, manufacturers and business equipment.

In each year, upon completion of its work, the DOR certifies its assessments to the County Auditor. During
August and September of each year the County Auditor prepares assessment summaries from the respective certifications,
determines the appropriate millage levies, prepares the tax bills and then in September charges the County Treasurer with
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the collection. With the exception of motor vehicles, the South Carolina tax control date is December 31st for the ensuing
tax year. South Carolina has no state-wide property tax.

The DOR has been charged with the responsibility of ensuring equalization of assessments statewide in order
that all property is assessed uniformly and equitably throughout the State, and may require reassessment of any part or
all of the property within the County. Under law enacted by the South Carolina General Assembly in 1995, every fourth
year the County and the State are required by law to effect an appraisal of all property within the County and to implement
that appraisal as a new assessment in the following year. Regulations of DOR effectively require that a reappraisal
program must be instituted by a county if the median appraisal for all property in such county (as a whole or for any class
of property) is higher than 105% or lower than 80% of fair market value. In addition, in its 1995 session, the South
Carolina General Assembly enacted provisions requiring each county to appraise and equalize the properties under its
jurisdiction once every fourth year and requiring each county to assess all properties on the newly appraised values every
fifth year. The latest reassessment in the County was completed in and implemented in Fiscal Year 2019. The next
reassessment is scheduled to occur in Fiscal Year 2024. The governing body of the County may, under existing law,
elect to delay implementation until Fiscal Year 2025.

Homestead Exemption—-Property Tax Relief

South Carolina provides, among other exemptions, for homesteads, a general exemption from all ad valorem
property taxes and applies to the first $50,000 of value of the dwelling place of persons who are over 65 years of age,
totally and permanently disabled or legally blind (the “Homestead Exemption”). In the case of the Homestead
Exemption, the State pays each taxing entity the amount to which it is entitled by April 15 of each year from the State’s
general fund. The following table shows amounts received by way of reimbursing appropriations from the State for
Homestead Exemption for all purposes by all taxing entities with the County:

Tax Homestead
Year Exemption
2022 $3,070,441
2021 3,226,458
2020 2,759,674
2019 2,841,754
2018 2,584,028

Source: County Finance Director
Payments in Lieu of Taxes

The State has adopted an array of property tax inducements and incentives to promote investment in the State.
Qualifying investments of $2.5 million ($1 million in some counties and for certain “brownfield” sites) or more may
be negotiated for payments in lieu of taxes for periods up to 30 years (up to 40 years for certain large investments)
using assessment ratios of as little as 6% and using millage rates that are either fixed for the term of the incentive or
adjusted every fifth year. In some cases, owners of projects may also design a payment schedule so long as the present
value of the payments under the schedule are equal to the present value of the payments that would have been made
without the schedule. The State also provides a more generous inducement for enhanced investments, that is, those
projects creating at least 125 new jobs and providing new invested capital of not less than $150 million, projects with
a total investment of $400 million by a single sponsor and certain defined economic development projects. For these
enhanced investments the fee-in-lieu of tax payments may be negotiated based on assessment ratios as low as 4% and
for a term up to 50 years.

The State provides alternative provisions respecting the distribution of payments in lieu of taxes to entities
having taxing jurisdiction at the location of the investment: (i) revenues received in respect of property that is not included
in a multicounty industrial park (“MCIP”) are allocated annually in proportion to the amounts that would have been
received by the taxing entities if the payments were taxes, based on the relative millage rates of overlapping taxing entities
in a given year; (ii) revenues received from property that is in an MCIP, however, is distributed in accordance with the
agreement creating the park; the amount of the distribution to each taxing entity is, for all practical purposes, controlled
by the County. Property may be included in an MCIP under terms of agreements between two or more counties with
individual sites being determined primarily by the county in which they are located. Payments in lieu of taxes may be
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diverted from taxing entities to fund projects which support economic development activities, including projects that are
used solely by a single enterprise, either directly or through the issuance of special source revenue bonds secured by
payments in lieu of taxes. A county government may also divert payments in lieu of taxes derived from an MCIP to its
own corporate purposes or those of other taxing entities in that county.

Several of the largest taxpayers in the County pay a “fee-in-lieu” of taxes with respect to new manufacturing
projects, and each year new fee-in-lieu arrangements are made with other new manufacturing investments.

Projects on which these payments in lieu of taxes are made are considered taxable property at the level of the
negotiated payment for purposes of calculating bonded indebtedness limits and for purposes of computing the index of
taxpaying ability pursuant to the South Carolina Education Financing Act. If the property is situated in an MCIP, the
calculation of assessed value for debt limit purposes is based upon the relative share of payments received by all taxing
entities which overlap the MCIP. Accordingly, a recipient of payments from an MCIP is able to include only a fraction
of the assessed value of property therein in calculating its debt limit.

If a county, municipality or special purpose district pledges to the repayment of special source revenue bonds
any portion of the revenues received by it from a payment in lieu of taxes, it may not include in the calculation of its
general obligation debt limit the value of the property that is the basis of the pledged portion of revenues. If such political
subdivision, prior to pledging revenues to secure a special source revenue bond, has included an amount representing the
value of a parcel or item of property that is the subject of a payment in lieu of taxes in the assessed value of taxable
property located in the political subdivision and has issued general obligation debt within a debt limit calculated on the
basis of such assessed value, then it may not pledge revenues based on the item or parcel of property, to the extent that
the amount representing its value is necessary to permit the outstanding general obligation debt to not exceed the debt
limit of the political subdivision.

As an alternative to the issuance of special source revenue bonds, the owners of qualifying projects may receive
a credit against payments in lieu of taxes due from the project to pay certain project costs. If a county, municipality or
special purpose district agrees to allow a credit against the payments in lieu of taxes it would otherwise receive, it is
subject to the limitations on calculation of its debt limit as described in the preceding paragraph.

Exempt Manufacturing Property

Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution provides that all new manufacturing establishments located in any
county after July 1, 1977, and all additions (in excess of $50,000) to existing manufacturing establishments are exempt
from ad valorem taxation for five years for county taxes only. No exemption is granted from school or municipal taxes,
although municipal governing bodies may grant a similar exemption to manufacturing establishments. The table below
shows the level of tax-exempt manufacturing property located within the County for the tax years shown below.

Tax Exempt
Year Assessed Value
2022 $5,849,800
2021 3,957,240
2020 3,789,774
2019 4,031,810
2018 5,379,910

Source: County Finance Director
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Millage History

The millage assessed for County general fund operations and debt service in each of the last five Fiscal Years
is set forth below:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Operations 77.3 78.2 79.6 80.6 84.4
Debt Service 12.7 125 14.9 14.9 13.6
Total 90.0 90.7 945 955 98.0

Source: County Auditor

Assessed Value

Set forth below is the assessed value of taxable real and personal property of the County for the last five Fiscal
Years for which data is available.

Tax Real Personal Total
Fiscal Year Year Property Property Assessed Value
2023 2022 $377,876,870 $153,239,748 $531,116,618
2022 2021 363,938,795 151,524,381 515,463,176
2021 2020 359,466,951 149,408,150 508,875,101
2020 2019 346,051,814 136,631,624 482,683,438
2019 2018 341,129,774 139,430,927 480,560,701

Excludes the assessed value of motor carrier reimbursements, reimbursements of manufacturer’s depreciation, assessment of
property otherwise subject to negotiated fees in lieu of taxes, property situated in a multi-county industrial park and Merchants’
Inventory. Also excludes manufacturing property exempt from county taxes.

Source: County Auditor

Tax Year 2022 Market Value/Assessment Summary of the County

Assessment

Class of Property Market Value Ratio Assessed Value
1. Real Estate (Non-manufacturing) Farm $ 225,482,529 4.00/6.00% $ 9,209,231
2. Real Estate (Non-manufacturing) Non-Farm 7,455,966,833 4.00/6.00 357,661,968
3. Mobile Homes 234,184,860 4.00/6.00 11,005,671
4. Business Personal 28,186,790 10.50 2,959,614
5. Watercraft 60,195,249 6.00 3,611,711
6. Aircraft 6,244,500 4.00 249,780
7. Utilities 343,681,039 10.50 36,086,510
8. Manufacturer’s Furniture & Fixtures 136,861,103 10.50 14,370,417
9. Manufacturers’ Real Estate 69,364,143 10.50 6,925,486
10. Manufacturers’ Personal 103,319,276 10.50 10,848,525
11. Railroads 34,523,175 9.50 3,279,702
12. Vehicles 1,174,094,029 6/10.5 74,908,003
TOTAL $9,872,103,526 $531,116,618

Excludes the assessed value of Merchant’s Inventory in the amount of $4,218,081; motor carrier reimbursements pursuant to
§12-37-2810 et seq. of the South Carolina Code in the amount of $4,663,744; reimbursements of manufacturer’s depreciation
pursuant to §12-37-935(b) of the South Carolina Code in the amount of $9,359,230; assessment of property otherwise subject to
negotiated fees in lieu of taxes in the amount of $1,449,314; and property situated in a multi-county industrial park in the amount
of $53,668,739. Also excludes manufacturing property exempt from County taxes.

Source: County Auditor
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Tax Collection Procedure

Real and personal taxes in the County are due on or before January 15 of each year with the exception of taxes
on motor vehicles. All personal property taxes on motor vehicles are due on or before the last day of the month in which
the license tag for each such motor vehicle expires. If property taxes, other than taxes on motor vehicles, are not paid
before January 16, a penalty of 3% is added; if not paid before February 2, an additional penalty of 7% is added; if not
paid before March 17, an additional penalty of 5% is added and taxes go into execution. Taxes on motor vehicles are
subject to similar penalties measured from due date thereof. Unpaid taxes, both real and personal, constitute a first lien
against the property. The County Treasurer is responsible for the collection of delinquent taxes and is empowered to
seize and sell so much of the defaulting taxpayer’s estate - real and personal or both - as may be sufficient to satisfy the
taxes.

Tax Collections in the County

The following table shows the amount of taxes levied in the County (adjusted to include additions, abatements,
and nulla bonae), and taxes collected as of June 30 of the year following the year in which the levy was made, for Fiscal
Years 2018 through 2022. Delinquent taxes include taxes levied in prior years but collected in the year shown. The
County cannot predict the impact, if any, of COVID on property tax collections for Fiscal Year 2022 or thereafter.

Fiscal Taxes Subject Current Current % Delinquent Tax Total Total %
Year to Collection Collections Collected Collections® Collections Collected
2022 $40,923,443 $38,967,814 95.22% $ 788,844 $38,967,814 95.22%
2021 40,425,206 37,908,787 93.78 1,003,452 37,908,787 96.26
2020 37,230,645 34,708,280 93.23 843,981 35,552,261 95.49
2019 36,307,201 35,515,588 97.82 499,435 36,015,023 99.20
2018 34,850,908 34,074,791 97.77 446,292 34,521,083 99.05

Includes homestead exemptions and manufacturers exemption.
MIncludes taxes levied in previous years.
Source: County Finance Director

Ten Largest Taxpayers

The ten largest taxpayers in the County, the 2022 assessed value (as of December 31, 2022) of the taxable
property of each located within the County and the amount of Fiscal Year 2023 taxes paid to all taxpaying entities in the
County are shown in the following table:

Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Taxes Paid®
1. Duke Energy Progress, Inc. $18,691,960 $6,497,568
2. FCWC JIPC Nanya 2,816,046 1,969,596
3. McLeod Regional Medical Center 3,856,830 1,235,035
4, Dominion Energy South Carolina 3,497,780 1,221,976
5. CSX Transportation, Inc. 2,960,102 1,015,684
6. PR Magnolia LLC 3,142,290 996,680
7. Spectrum Southeast LLC 1,735,270 601,924
8. Santee Electric 1,553,620 539,703
9. Clarios LLC 1,692,370 520,299
10.  Patheon API Inc 1,835,620 516,175

M As of February 2, 2023. Does not include fee-in-lieu of tax.
Source: County Auditor
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DEBT STRUCTURE
Legal Debt Limit of the County

The County may incur general obligation debt in principal amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed valuation
of property within its jurisdiction without approval by referendum. General obligation debt approved by referendum is
subject to no limits as to principal amount. Payment on debt service of the County’s obligations is handled by the
Florence County Treasurer. The County’s estimated debt limitation is computed below, based upon estimated valuations.

2022 Assessed Value $531,116,618
Plus Assessed Value -- Merchants’ Inventory 4,218,081
Plus Property Situated in a Multi-County Business Park 53,668,739
Property Subject to Negotiated Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 1,449,314
Net Assessed Value for Computation of Legal debt margin $590,452,752

X 8%
Constitutional Debt Limit $ 47,236,220
Outstanding Debt Subject to Limit (as of June 30, 2023) $ 25,304,000
Legal Debt Available without a Referendum $ 21,932,220

The foregoing calculation excludes debt limit capacity derived from the assessed value of property subject to a
fee-in-lieu of taxes and principal of obligations maturing in calendar year 2023 for which taxes have been collected or
funds otherwise appropriated as provided by law. The value of such property for debt limit purposes varies from year to
year based upon the payments received by the taxing entity. The issuance of the Bonds will have no impact on the
County’s debt limit.

Outstanding Debt
The outstanding general obligation bonded indebtedness of the County includes the following issues:

@ The outstanding $990,000 of the original principal amount $5,000,000 General Obligation
Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011 (the “2011 Bonds”), of the County which mature on
March 1 in the years 2024 through 2026, inclusive;

(b) The outstanding $19,415,000 of the original principal amount $22,000,000 Taxable
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020B (the “2020B Bonds”), of the County which mature on April 1 in the
years 2024 through 2040;

(c) The outstanding $90,735,000 of the original principal amount $120,000,000 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 (the “2021 G.O. Bonds”), of the County which mature on June 1 in the years
2024 through 2028. The 2021 G.O. Bonds were issued pursuant to a referendum and are not chargeable
against the County’s constitutional debt limit; and

(d) The outstanding $4,899,000 of the original principal amount $4,899,000 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2023 (the “2023 G.O. Bonds”), of the County which matures on March 1, 2024.
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Composite General Obligation Bond Debt Service of the County

The table below shows annual principal and interest requirements on the outstanding general obligation bonds
of the County.

Calendar 2011 20208 2021 2023
Year Bonds Bonds G.O. Bonds! G.0. Bonds
2024 $ 342,013 $ 1,400,833 $ 20,546,250 $5,035,356
2025 343,681 1,400,333 20,524,750
2026 344,675 1,398,433 20,506,125
2027 1,400,033 20,483,250
2028 1,395,133 20,459,000
2029 1,398,633
2030 1,395,433
2031 1,408,128
2032 1,406,755
2033 1,404,134
2034 1,405,480
2035 1,405,413
2036 1,403,585
2037 1,404,890
2038 1,404,215
2039 1,401,500
2040 1,402,313
Total $1,030,369 $23,835,239 $102,519,375 $5,035,356

Note: May not add due to rounding.

The 2021 G.O. Bonds are payable from the proceeds of the Sales Tax. Such general obligation bonds were approved by referendum
in connection with the extension of the Sales Tax on November 3, 2021 and are not chargeable against the County’s general obligation
debt limit.

Capital Leases and Other Debt

The County was the obligor under certificates of participation issued by the Issuer in the original principal
amount of $42,545,000 on October 1, 1990 (the “1990 COPS”), to provide funds for the construction of a law
enforcement/detention center, the Florence Center (hereinafter defined), and acquiring certain equipment. On
December 1, 1992, the Issuer issued Certificates of Participation in the original principal amount of $45,880,000 (the
1992 COPS”) refunding the 1990 COPS; on March 3, 2003 the Issuer issued Certificates of Participation in the original,
principal amount of $29,515,000 (the “2003 COPS”) refunding the 1992 COPS; and on November 23, 2010, the Issuer
entered into a Lease-Purchase Financing with Branch Banking and Trust Company in the original principal amount of
$21,158,666 (the “2010 Lease Financing”) refunding the 2003 COPS financing and paying the cost of capital
improvements of the County. The County further refunded the 2010 Lease Financing, adding approximately $6,000,000
in principal for various capital improvements, by and through its $22,487,000 Facilities Refunding and Improvement
Lease-Purchase Financing, Series 2013 (the “2013 Lease Financing™), and is the obligor with respect to the 2013 Lease
Financing, but its obligation to make payment with respect thereto is subject to annual appropriation.

The amounts outstanding under the 2013 Lease Financing bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.824984%.
Because the portion of the principal amount of the 2013 Lease Financing that was used to refund the 2003 COPS
is not chargeable against the County’s general obligation debt limit, and that portion used to finance capital improvements

is so chargeable, payments under the 2013 Lease Financing were divided into Series A Payments (applicable to that
portion of the outstanding principal of the 2010 Lease Financing that is not chargeable against the County’s general
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obligation debt limit) and Series B Payments (applicable to that portion that is so chargeable). As of June 30, 2023, the
total amount of Series B Payments principal of the 2013 Lease Financing was as follows:

Due
May 1 Principal
2024 $422,000
2025 430,000
2026 437,000
2027 445,000
2028 453,000

See “-Outstanding Debt” herein.

On December 23, 2014, the County entered into a capital lease in the amount of $5,804,102 as part of an
energy savings performance contract, including installation of various heating and air conditioning equipment,
lighting, and water conservation measures. As of June 30, 2023, there was $3,452,671 of principal amount of this
capital lease outstanding with a final maturity on January 1, 2031.

Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds
The County is also an obligor under installment purchase revenue bonds of the Issuer.

€)] The original principal amount $11,100,000 Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A. The proceeds of the Series 2017A Bond were used to defray the costs of a new parking garage at the
County’s Administration building; and

(b) The original principal amount of $37,870,000 Installment Purchase Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Taxable Series 2021. The proceeds of the Series 2021 Bonds were used to defray the costs of the
proceeds of which were used to refinance the $42,000,000 Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (Judicial
Center Project) Series 2015, the proceeds of which were used to finance the costs of acquiring, construction
and installing the County’s judicial center.

Legal Debt Limit of Incorporated Municipalities and Special Purpose Districts

Under the provisions of Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution, each county, incorporated municipality
and special purpose district may, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the General Assembly shall
prescribe by general law, incur general obligation debt authorized by a majority vote of the qualified electors thereof
voting in a referendum, without limitation as to amount, and incur, without an election, general obligation debt (in
addition to bonded indebtedness existing on November 30, 1977, and bonded indebtedness authorized by a majority
vote of qualified electors) in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed value of all taxable property therein.

Special Tax Districts

The Constitution and the Home Rule Act empower counties to tax different areas at different rates of taxation
related to the nature and level of governmental services provided. Special tax districts may be created for a variety of
purposes and by several procedures which require a petition of electors or freeholders (signed by a requisite percentage
of the electors or freeholders) in a proposed special tax district. A petition signed by 15% of the electors requires a
subsequent election in order to create the special tax district. After one of the above procedures, a special tax district
is created by ordinance of the county council. Special tax districts in the entire unincorporated area of a county may
be established by ordinance of the county council.

Sections 14 and 12 of Article X of the South Carolina Constitution provide that bonded indebtedness may be
incurred by counties for sewage disposal or treatment, fire protection, street lighting, garbage collection and disposal,
water service, or any other service or facility benefiting only a particular geographical section of a county, such as a
special tax district as described in the preceding paragraph, provided a special assessment, tax, or service charge, in
an amount designed to provide debt service on bonded indebtedness incurred for such purposes, shall be imposed
upon the area or persons receiving the benefit therefrom; and general obligation debt so incurred shall not be
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considered in computing the bonded indebtedness of counties under the 8% debt limitation. The County presently has
outstanding such general obligation bonds as follows:

@ The outstanding $579,000 of the original principal amount $3,560,000 General Obligation
Bonds (Florence County Fire Protection District), Series 2015B (the “2015B Bonds”), of the County which
mature on October 1, 2024 through 2030.

(b) The outstanding $7,246,000 of the original principal amount $8,207,000 General
Obligation Bonds (Florence County Fire Protection District), Series 2015C (the “2015C Bonds”), of the
County which mature on October 1, 2024 through 2035.

(c) The outstanding $540,000 of the original principal amount $1,000,000 General Obligation
Bonds (Florence County Fire Protection District), Series 2018C (the “2018C Bonds”), of the County which
mature on March 1, 2024 through 2028.

Legal Debt Limit of School Districts

Article X, Section 15 of the Constitution empowers each school district of the State of South Carolina to
incur general obligation debt in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the General Assembly shall
prescribe by law. After November 30, 1982, each school district may incur general obligation debt, upon such terms
and conditions as the General Assembly may prescribe, in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed value of all
taxable property of such school district. Bonded indebtedness existing on November 30, 1982, and bonded
indebtedness authorized by a majority vote of the qualified electors of a school district voting in a referendum will not
be considered in the computation of the 8% limitation.
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ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS
Description of Florence County, South Carolina

The local economy of the County enjoys a well-balanced industrial, agricultural and manufacturing base.
The County’s growth has been underpinned by the expansion of the two hospital systems, McLeod Regional Medical
Center and MUSC Health Florence Medical Center, f/k/a the Carolinas Hospital System, and the growth of the two
major higher education institutions, Francis Marion University (“FMU”), and Florence-Darlington Technical College.

The County has seen significant growth in locating new industries, as well as the expansion of several
existing businesses due to its prime location near interstates 1-95 and 1-20. In addition, culture abounds in the County
with the construction of the FMU Performing Arts Center in the City of Florence, the Florence County Museum and
the Florence Little Theatre over the past several years. The FMU Performing Arts Center was partially funded through
a substantial gift from the Doctors Bruce & Lee Foundation as well as through a partnership between FMU and the
City of Florence. The 61,000 square-foot facility includes an 849-seat mainstage with a fly tower, a 100-seat flexible
Black Box space and an Academic Wing for the Department of Fine Arts. Additionally, the building houses offices
for the Florence Symphony, the Masterworks Choir and the Drs. Bruce and Lee Foundation. The FMU Performing
Arts Center stimulates economic development and tourism growth, and its downtown location contributes to the
revitalization of the city center while promoting the area as a cultural arts destination.

The Florence Center, formerly known as the Florence Civic Center, recently completed construction of a
$16 million, 28,000 square-foot expansion, making big-named conventions, conferences, trade shows, expos and
sporting events a reality for the County. The Florence Center is the largest convention, entertainment and exhibition
facility in northeast South Carolina and has a major economic impact on the County. ConventionSouth magazine, a
national multimedia resource for planning events held in the South, presented the Florence Center with a 2018 Top
New or Renovated Meeting Site award. The sixth annual SC AgriBiz & Farm Expo, which promotes opportunities
for agribusiness in South Carolina, was the first event hosted in the newly renovated Florence Center. In addition, the
National Horseshoe Pitching World Tournament was held at the Florence Center in July, 2018. Forty-seven states as
well as Canada, South Africa and Norway competed in this event.

Commerce and Industry

In March 2023, Carter Lumber announced plans to expand its operations in South Carolina by renovating an
existing facility in the County. This will mark the company’s third South Carolina location, but first facility in the
County. The company will renovate a 120,000 square foot facility which will be used to manufacture roof and floor
trusses along with hanging interior door units, and will serve as a millwork warehouse for stock moldings. The
products from the new facility will be delivered to residential, commercial and multi-family job sites. The company’s
$26 million investment is expected to create 80 new jobs.

In December 2022, Envision AESC, a world-leading Japanese electric vehicle battery technology company,
announced plans to build a state-of-the-art battery cell gigafactory in the County. Located in Technology and
Commerce Park with convenient access to the interstate and Inland Port Dillon, the new plant will encompass
approximately 1.5 million square feet and will supply technology-leading battery cells to support the next generation
electric models produced at the BMW Group’s Plant in Greer. The $810 million investment will create 1,170 new
jobs.

In June 2022, Carolina Precision Foods, LLC, a joint venture of Carolina Fresh Foods and owners of Lake
Foods, announced plans to establish operations in the County. As a poultry “further processing” company, the new
facility will partner with regional poultry processors in “custom further processing” of poultry products. The
company’s $10 million investment is expected to create 402 new jobs.

In May 2022, Buc-ees, a Texas chain gas station and convenience store, opened its doors, and represents an
investment of approximately $35 million in the County. Buc-ee’s location near 1-95 is the first in South Carolina and
features 120 gas pumps and a 50,000 square foot store showcasing everything from fresh-cooked barbeque, unique
snacks to home goods.

In February 2022, Cheney Brothers, a leading broadline food distributor, announced plans to construct a new
distribution center at Pee Dee Commerce City East Industrial Park in the County. The project will consist of a modern
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400,000 square foot refrigerator/freezer distribution facility, over 45 loading docks, a Cheney Express and an exquisite
culinary kitchen. The company’s $66 million investment will create 280 new jobs.

In December 2021, Innovative Construction Group (ICG), a subsidiary of PulteGroup, Inc., announced a
$35.6 million investment to establish operations in the County as part of PulteGroup, Inc.’s ongoing expansion of its
ICG platform. The company’s new 200,000 square foot facility was dedicated in October 2022, and they have already
hired 60 employees with plans to hire more. The Florence facility makes wall panels and trusses that are used to build
houses in the Myrtle Beach region.

Major Employers

Set forth in the following table are ten of the top public and private sector employers located in the County,
their type of business and approximate number of employees. There can be no assurance that any employer listed
below will continue to be located in the County. No independent investigation has been made of, and no representation
can be made as to, the stability or financial condition of the employers listed below:

Approximate Number

Employer Product/Service of Employees
McLeod Regional Medical Center Health Care 6,500
Florence County School District One Education 2,267
MUSC Health Florence Medical Center Health Care 1,986
QVvC Distribution and Returns Center 1,342
Ruiz Foods Frozen Mexican Food Manufacturing/Distribution 1,200
PGBA/Tricare Healthcare Administrative Services 1,200
Assurant Insurance Services 1,100
Honda of South Carolina Mfg. Manufacturer of ATVs & SBS 931
Florence County Government 814
Performance Food Service Food Service Industry 672

Source: Florence County Economic Development Office.
Unemployment

The County’s unemployment rate was 2.4% in August, 2023. The following table shows County, State and
national unemployment rates for the years shown.

Year Florence County South Carolina United States
2022 3.2% 3.2% 3.6%
2021 4.0 3.9 5.3
2020 5.4 6.0 8.1
2019 2.9 2.8 3.7
2018 3.6 34 3.9
2017 45 4.2 4.4

Source: U.S. Department of Labor; Bureau of Labor Statistics.
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Labor Force and Employment

The labor force participation rates of resident of the County (by place of residence) for the last five calendar
years for which information is available is as follows:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Civilian Labor Force 65,938 65,678 65,524 65,641 64,887
Employment 63,798 63,043 61,967 63,767 62,583
Unemployment 2,140 2,635 3,557 1,874 2,304

Source: U. S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
Population

The following table shows the population of Florence County over the last three decades and the most current
calendar year available.

Year Population
20220 136,721
2020 137,064
2010 136,885
2000 125,761

Source: Board of Economic Advisors and Office of Economic Research of the State Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office; U.S.
Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Facilities Serving the County

Transportation. The County’s location within the region is complimented by a highway transportation
network consisting of interstate highways 1-20 and 1-95 and U.S. highways 52, 76, 301 and 378, as well as numerous
State highways. Motor freight carriers serve the County, with 20 nearby terminals. Bus service is provided by
Greyhound. The Pee Dee Regional Transportation Authority (PDRTA) provides public transportation within the City
of Florence and to many rural locations within the County. Rail transportation in the County is provided by CSX
Transportation and passenger service is provided by Amtrak.

The Florence Regional Airport is located two miles east of downtown Florence and has provided service for
over 75 years. The airport offers daily flights by American Airlines and is heavily used for general aviation. The
runways are paved and lighted, 150 feet wide and approximately 6,500 feet long. The airport offers a full-service
Fixed-Base Operation, aircraft servicing and maintenance services. The hub service the Airport is the Charlotte-
Douglas International Airport.

Higher Education. Florence-Darlington Technical College (“FDTC”) is one of 16 technical colleges that make
up the South Carolina Technical Education System, which is under the coordination of the South Carolina Board for
Technical and Comprehensive Education. FDTC is a two-year technical school which offers more than 75 degrees,
diploma and certificate programs that lead to careers in business, engineering technology, health care, human services,
manufacturing and many other fields of study. Students may choose degree programs offered through the College’s three
divisions: (1) Division of Health and Human Services; (2) Division of Technical and General Education; and (3) the S.C.
Virtual College of FDTC (Online College.) In addition to the main campus, FDTC has five off-campus sites: Hartsville,
Lake City, Mullins, a Cosmetology Center located less than one mile from the main campus, and a Health Sciences
Campus in downtown Florence. Special programs and services offered at FDTC include the Advanced Welding and
Cutting Center, the Caterpillar Dealer Academy and a CISCO systems training laboratory. The Southeastern Institute of
Manufacturing and Technology (“SiMT™) is located on a 146-acre tract with customized training, laboratory, research,
manufacturing, convention, and administrative space. The facility contains an Additive Manufacturing Center (3D
printing), a Social Media Listening Center which provides consulting and social media monitoring services to large and
small businesses, and the Gould Business Incubator. SIMT offers businesses the cutting-edge, strategic training and
manufacturing technology solutions to maximize workforce productivity in the Southeast. FDTC had a Fall 2021
enrollment of 2,861 students.
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Francis Marion University (“FMU”) is a four-year, comprehensive university founded in 1970, and offers a
broad range of undergraduate degrees enhanced by professional schools of the School of Business, School of
Education and School of Health Sciences as well as the College of Liberal Arts. FMU also offers graduate programs
in business, education, psychology and nursing, A four-year program of the Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC)
is available. Housed on the FMU campus is the Pee Dee Education Center which is a regional educational consortium
serving area school districts. FMU works closely with the Center to provide resources and services to school districts
in the Pee Dee such as the Pee Dee Mathematics and Science Regional Center. In addition, the Center provides early
childhood services to schools and space for the FMU School of Education’s Center of Excellence. The 36,000 square-
foot Dr. Frank B. Lee, Jr. Nursing Building houses offices, classrooms, the Elizabeth W. Barnes Clinical Laboratory,
a computer lab, conference rooms and the Dr. John M. Thomason Auditorium for the Department of Nursing Program.
FMU also has a growing presence in downtown Florence. The Luther F. Carter Center for Health Sciences represents
the future of health and medical education at FMU and in the Pee Dee region. The Center is equipped with a simulation
center, 52,000 square feet of classroom and office space and dedicated laboratory space for anatomy, physical
examinations and clinical skills training. The FMU Performing Arts Center (PAC), located in downtown Florence,
houses the Music industry program of FMU and provides training for students seeking an alternative to traditional
performance and/or education paths to music. The PAC includes lab space and practice rooms for classes taught
onsite. FMU had a Fall 2021 enrollment of 3,923 students.

The Continuum is a $25 million, 46,000-square foot regional education and workforce center located in the
City of Lake City, and is part of an educational initiative partnership between the Darla Moore Foundation, Francis
Marion University and Florence-Darlington Technical College. It provides training and workforce development skills
for students, courses that lead to 2 and 4-year degrees, dual credit courses for high school students and programs for
K-12 students in science and innovation.

Library. The Florence County Library provides service through a main library, five branch libraries in the
surrounding municipalities, and a bookmobile. The Drs. Bruce and Lee Foundation Library is a state-of-the-art library
consisting of 81,000 square feet on two floors and includes a 215-seat meeting room and a conference room; computer
classes and workshops; wireless internet access for the public; the E.N. Zeigler South Carolina History Room with
one of the largest genealogical collections in northeastern South Carolina; and a state-of-the-art children’s library.

Recreation. The City of Florence has 17 parks and athletic facilities for baseball, softball, basketball, tennis
and soccer. Newly completed Carolina Bank Field is a championship-caliber baseball field and home to the Flamingos
baseball team. The arena includes six additional baseball fields, a track and field facility, seating for over 1,000, 360
chairback seats, locker rooms, an umpire room and a medical room. The Florence Trail System offers biking, jogging
or walking with more than 20 miles of trails and connectors. Lynches River County Park is a 676-acre park featuring
a splash pad, archery range, hiking trails, canopy trails and an environmental discovery center. The Rotary Club of
Florence maintains a 13-mile beauty trail year round that features azaleas, yellow jessamine, dogwoods and wisteria
in the spring and fall, and holiday lights in November and December.

Health Care. Florence County serves as the regional medical center for the northeastern half of South
Carolina. McLeod Regional Medical Center (McLeod) is the largest employer in the County. With 904 acute licensed
beds, McLeod is the teaching hospital and referral center for an 18-county area. McLeod’s acute-care facilities provide
flexibility to care for those outside the County through McLeod Health (McLeod Health) composed of seven hospitals
including McLeod: McLeod Health Cheraw, McLeod Health Clarendon, McLeod Behavioral Health Darlington,
McLeod Dillon, McLeod Loris, McLeod Seacoast and McLeod Carolina Forest in Horry County. MclLeod Health
offers a diverse array of services from an accredited Cancer Center and Stereotactic Radiosurgery program to three
dedicated open heart surgery suites and two vascular hybrid OR’s within the Heart and Vascular Institute as well as a
dedicated Neuro-Interventional Biplane X-ray suite for thrombectomy procedures. McLeod also provides the region’s
only Children’s Hospital which includes a 48-bed Neonatal intensive care unit and a 6-bed Pediatric Intensive Care
Unit. The new McLeod Emergency Department has 81 patient rooms and is designed to serve nearly 110,000 patients
annually. McLeod Health and its McLeod Regional Medical Center offer three outstanding residency programs —two
Family Medicine and one Pharmacy.

MUSC Health Florence Medical Center (“MUSC Florence”) is part of the Medical University of South
Carolina located in Charleston, South Carolina. MUSC Florence is a leading regional acute care facility comprised of
396 patient beds, more than 1,400 employees and nearly 425 physicians representing all primary specialties. MUSC
Florence offers heart and vascular care, diagnostic services, women’s health, cancer treatment, general, orthopedic

37



and robotic surgery, rehabilitation, emergency/trauma care, stroke care, kidney, lung and liver transplants, GYN
oncology, endocrinology, rheumatology and multiple telehealth services such as palliative and inpatient psychiatric
care.

MUSC Health Florence broke ground in January 2021 on a new hospital that opened in January 2023 known
as MUSC Health Black River Medical Center which replaced two existing hospitals - Lake City Community Hospital
and Williamsburg Regional Hospital. The 64,000 square foot rural hospital allows residents of the community to have
access to a full range of modern diagnostic and interventional capabilities such as 3-D mammography, MRI, nuclear
medicine, CT scanning, on-site pharmacy and a complete imaging department. The new facility features 25 inpatient
beds, four observation beds, two operating rooms and 16 emergency treatment rooms.

LEGAL MATTERS
Pending Litigation

The County, like other similar bodies, is subject to a variety of suits and proceedings arising in the ordinary
conduct of its affairs. The County, after reviewing the current status of all pending and threatened litigation with its
counsel, believes that, while the outcome of litigation cannot be predicted, the final settlement of all lawsuits and
proceedings that have been filed and of any actions or claims pending or threatened against the County or its officials
in such capacity are adequately covered by insurance or self-insurance reserves maintained by the County or will not
have a material adverse effect upon the financial position or results of operations of the County.

There is no litigation now pending or, to the knowledge of the Issuer or the County, threatened that restrains
or enjoins the issuance or delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds, the provision of the security for the payment of the Series
2023 Bonds, or the use of the proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds or that questions or contests the validity of the Series
2023 Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they are to be issued. Neither the creation, organization, or
existence of the Issuer or the County, nor the title of the present members or other officials of the Issuer or the County
to their respective offices, is being contested or questioned. There is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the
Issuer, threatened that in any manner questions the right of the Issuer to enter into the Trust Agreement, the Base
Lease, or the Facilities Agreement or to secure the Series 2023 Bonds in the manner provided in the Trust Agreement.
No litigation and no proceedings are pending against the County or its officials, or to their knowledge are threatened,
that would affect the sale of the Series 2023 Bonds, the security therefor, or the ability of the County to enter into and
perform its obligations under the Facilities Agreement or the Base Lease.

TAX MATTERS
Federal Income Tax Generally

On the date of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina
(“Bond Counsel), will render an opinion that, assuming continuing compliance by the Issuer with the requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable regulations promulgated
thereunder (the “Regulations™) and further subject to certain considerations described in “Collateral Federal Tax
Considerations” below, under existing statutes, regulations and judicial decisions, interest on the Series 2023 Bonds
is excludable from the gross income of the registered owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. Interest on the
Series 2023 Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum
tax; however, such interest is taken into account in determining the annual adjusted financial statement income of
applicable corporations (as defined in Section 59(k) of the Code) for the purpose of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on corporations for tax years beginning after December 31, 2022. The Code contains other
provisions that could result in tax consequences, upon which no opinion will be rendered by Bond Counsel, as a result
of (i) ownership of the Series 2023 Bonds or (ii) the inclusion in certain computations of interest that is excluded from
gross income.

The opinion of Bond Counsel will be limited to matters relating to the authorization and validity of the Series

2023 Bonds and the tax-exempt status of interest on the Series 2023 Bonds as described herein. Bond Counsel makes
no statement regarding the accuracy and completeness of this Official Statement.
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The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly addressed
by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the Series 2023 Bonds for
federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel’s opinions are based upon existing law, which is subject to change. Such
opinions are further based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel as of the date thereof. Bond Counsel
assumes no duty to update or supplement its opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come
to Bond Counsel’s attention or to reflect any changes in law that may thereafter occur or become effective. Moreover,
Bond Counsel’s opinions are not a guarantee of a particular result, and are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service
(the “IRS™) or the courts; rather, such opinions represent Bond Counsel’s professional judgment based on its review
of existing law, and in reliance on the representations and covenants that it deems relevant to such opinions.

The opinion of Bond Counsel described above is subject to the condition that the Issuer comply with all
requirements of the Code and the Regulations, including, without limitation, certain restrictions on the use,
expenditure and investment of the gross proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds and the obligation to rebate certain earnings
on investments of such gross proceeds to the United States Government, that must be satisfied subsequent to the
issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has covenanted to comply with each such requirement. Failure to comply
with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the Series 2023 Bonds in gross income for
federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel
delivered on the date of issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds is conditioned on compliance by the Issuer with such
requirements and Bond Counsel has not been retained to monitor compliance with the requirements subsequent to the
issuance of such Series 2023 Bonds.

Collateral Federal Tax Considerations

Prospective purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds should be aware that ownership of tax-exempt obligations
may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial
institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, life insurance companies, certain foreign corporations, certain
S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be
deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations. The Series 2023
Bonds have not been designated “bank qualified tax-exempt obligations” under Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. Bond
Counsel expresses no opinion concerning such collateral income tax consequences and prospective purchasers of
Series 2023 Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability thereof.

Future legislation, if enacted into law, or clarification of the Code may cause interest on the Series 2023
Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation, or otherwise prevent owners from realizing the
full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The introduction or enactment of any such future legislation or
clarification of the Code may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Series 2023 Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the Series 2023 Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding any pending or proposed federal
tax legislation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

The IRS has established an ongoing program to audit tax-exempt obligations to determine whether interest
on such obligations is includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel cannot predict
whether the IRS will commence an audit of the Series 2023 Bonds. Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the
Series 2023 Bonds ends with the issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is
not obligated to defend the Issuer or the Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Series 2023 Bonds in the event
of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has taken the position that, under the standards of practice before the
IRS, Bond Counsel must obtain a waiver of a conflict of interest to represent an issuer in an examination of tax exempt
bonds for which Bond Counsel had issued an approving opinion. Under current procedures, parties other than the
Issuer and their appointed counsel, including the Owners, would have little, if any, right to participate in the audit
examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-
exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with which the Issuer legitimately
disagrees, may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Series 2023
Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the
market price for, or the marketability of, the Series 2023 Bonds, and may cause the Issuer or the Owners to incur
significant expense, regardless of the ultimate outcome. Under certain circumstances, the Issuer may be obligated to
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disclose the commencement of an audit under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. See “CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE” herein.

[Original Issue Discount

The Series 2023 Bonds maturing in the years _ through ___, inclusive, have been sold at initial public
offering prices which are less than the amount payable at maturity (the “Discount Bonds™). The difference between
the initial public offering prices to the public (excluding bond houses and brokers) at which price a substantial amount
of each maturity of the Discount Bonds is sold and the amount payable at maturity constitutes original issue discount,
which will be treated as interest on such Discount Bonds and to the extent properly allocable to particular owners who
acquire such Discount Bonds at the initial offering thereof, will be excludable from gross income for federal income
tax purposes to the same extent as other interest on the Series 2023 Bonds. As discount is accrued, the purchaser’s
basis in such Discount Bond is increased by a corresponding amount, resulting in a decrease in the gain (or an increase
in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such Discount Bond prior
to its maturity.

The Code contains certain provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount in the case of
subsequent purchasers of obligations such as the Discount Bonds. Owners who do not purchase Discount Bonds in
the initial offering at the initial offering price at which a substantial amount of such Discount Bonds were sold should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the ownership of the Discount Bonds.

Owners who may acquire Series 2023 Bonds that are Discount Bonds should consult their tax advisors with
respect to the determination for federal income tax purposes of the amount of original issue discount or interest
properly accruable with respect to such Series 2023 Bonds, other tax consequences of owning Discount Bonds and
the state and local tax consequences of owning Discount Bonds.]

[Original Issue Premium

The Series 2023 Bonds maturing in the years through have been sold at an initial public offering
price which is greater than the amount payable at maturity (the “Premium Bonds™). An amount equal to the excess
of the purchase price of the Premium Bonds over their stated redemption prices at maturity constitutes premium on
such Series 2023 Bonds. A purchaser of a Premium Bond must amortize any premium over [FOR YIELD TO CALL
BONDS ONLY - the earlier of (i)] such Series 2023 Bond’s term [FOR YIELD TO CALL BONDS ONLY - or
(ii) the first optional redemption date for such Premium Bonds] using constant yield principles, based on the
purchaser’s yield to maturity [FOR YIELD TO CALL BONDS ONLY -or earlier redemption, as applicable]. As
premium is amortized, the purchaser’s basis in such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount, resulting
in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or
disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser’s basis is reduced, no federal
income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of any Series 2023 Bonds at a premium, whether at the time of initial
issuance or subsequent thereto, should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination and
treatment of premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to state and local tax consequences of owning
such Series 2023 Bonds.]

State Tax Exemption

Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that the Series 2023 Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from
all taxation by the State of South Carolina, its counties, municipalities and school districts except estate, transfer or
certain franchise taxes. Interest paid on the Series 2023 Bonds is currently subject to the tax imposed on banks by
Section 12-11-20 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, which is enforced by the DOR as a
franchise tax. The opinion of Bond Counsel is limited to the laws of the State of South Carolina and federal tax laws.
No opinion is rendered by Bond Counsel concerning the taxation of the Series 2023 Bonds or the interest thereon
under the laws of any other jurisdiction.
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MISCELLANEOUS
Closing Certificates

At closing of the sale of the Series 2023 Bonds by the Underwriter, the Issuer and the County will each
deliver to the Underwriter a certificate (1) that no litigation is pending or threatened against it that would have a
material effect on the issuance or validity of the Series 2023 Bonds or the security for the Series 2023 Bonds or on its
financial condition, and (2) that the information contained in this Official Statement relating to it does not contain any
misstatement of a material fact and does not omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements herein
contained, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

Rating

The Series 2023 Bonds received a rating of “Aa3” from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”). Such
rating reflects only the views of Moody’s and an explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from
Moody’s. The Issuer has furnished Moody’s with certain information and materials respecting the Issuer, County and
the Series 2023 Bonds. Generally, Moody’s bases its ratings on such information and materials and on investigations,
studies and assumptions furnished to and obtained and made by them. There is no assurance that such rating will
remain unchanged for any period of time or that it may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by Moody’s, if in its
judgment circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Series 2023 Bonds.

Underwriting

The Series 2023 Bonds will be purchased for reoffering by the Underwriter from the Issuer at an aggregate
purchase price of , representing the par amount of the Series 2023 Bonds plus net original issue premium of
$ and less Underwriter’s discount of $ . The Underwriter has entered into a Bond Purchase
Agreement, which provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Series 2023 Bonds, if any are purchased. The
obligation of the Underwriter to accept delivery of the Series 2023 Bonds will be subject to various conditions
contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

The Underwriter intends to offer the Series 2023 Bonds to the public initially at the offering prices set forth
on the inside cover page of this Official Statement, which offering prices may subsequently be changed from time to
time by the Underwriter without any requirement of prior notice. The Underwriter has reserved the right to permit
other securities dealers who are members of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. to assist in selling the
Series 2023 Bonds. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series 2023 Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers
depositing Series 2023 Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices set forth on the
inside cover page of this Official Statement or otherwise allow concessions to such dealers who may re-allow
concessions to other dealers. Any discounts or commissions that may be received by such dealers in connection with
the sale of the Series 2023 Bonds will be deducted from the Underwriter’s underwriting profits.

Financial Advisor

First Tryon Advisors has acted as Financial Advisor to the Issuer and the County in connection with the
issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds. The Financial Advisor does not assume any responsibility for the information,
covenants, and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income tax status
of the Series 2023 Bonds, or the possible impact of any present, pending, or future actions taken by any legislative or
judicial bodies. The Financial Advisor has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with,
and as part of, its responsibilities to the Issuer and the County and, as applicable, to the investors under the federal
securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Financial Advisor does not
guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

Independent Auditors

The basic financial statements of the County as of June 30, 2022, and for the year then ended, attached hereto
as Appendix A, have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, to the extent and for the period indicated in its report thereon,
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which appears in Appendix A. Such financial statements have been included herein in reliance upon the report of
Mauldin & Jenkins.

Enforceability of Remedies

The realization of value from the pledge of the Trust Estate under the Trust Agreement upon any default or
nonappropriation of sufficient funds to make Base Payments due under the Facilities Agreement will depend upon the
exercise of various remedies specified by the Trust Agreement and the Facilities Agreement. These and other remedies
may require judicial actions, which are often subject to discretion and delay and which may be difficult to pursue.
The enforceability of rights and remedies with respect to the Series 2023 Bonds may be limited by state and federal
laws, rulings, and decisions affecting remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, or other laws affecting
creditors’ rights or remedies heretofore or hereafter enacted. Under existing law (including particularly federal
bankruptcy law), certain remedies specified by the Trust Agreement or the Facilities Agreement may not be readily
available or may be limited. A court may decide not to order the specific performance of the covenants contained in
the Trust Agreement or the Facilities Agreement.

Additional Information

Use of the words “shall,” “must,” or “will” in this Official Statement in summaries of documents or laws to
describe future events or continuing obligations is not intended as a representation that such event will occur or
obligation will be fulfilled but only that the document or law contemplates or requires such event to occur or obligation
to be fulfilled.

Any statements made in this Official Statement involving estimates or matters of opinion, whether or not so
expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the
estimates or matters of opinion will be realized. Neither this Official Statement nor any statement that may have been
made orally or in writing is to be construed as a contract with the owners of the Series 2023 Bonds.

References to web site addresses presented herein are for informational purposes only and may be in the form
of a hyperlink solely for the reader’s convenience. Unless specified otherwise, such web sites and the information or
links contained therein are not incorporated into, and are not part of, this Official Statement.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter, have
been duly authorized and approved by the Issuer and the County. Certain of the information set forth in the Official
Statement and in the appendices hereto has been obtained from sources other than the County that are believed to be
reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by the Underwriter or the County.

FLORENCE COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES
CORPORATION

By:
Its: Chairman, Board of Directors

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:
Its: County Administrator
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FLORENCE COUNTY

Finance Department
February 21, 2023

To the Chairman, Members of County Council, and Citizens of Florence County

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Florence County, South Carolina, (the “County”)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is submitted herewith. State statutes require the County to
annually issue a report on its financial position and activities, and that this report be audited by an
independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the accuracy of this
presented data and the completeness and fairness of this presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the County’s management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data
is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly both the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the various funds of the County. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial
activities have been included.

This annual report is in a format that complies with the financial reporting model developed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments
(GASB Statement No. 34). This model improves financial reporting by including government-
wide statements that are based on full accrual accounting and include capital assets and long-term
debt. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 are explained in some detail within
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which immediately precedes the basic financial
statements in the financial section of this report.

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards. Information related to this single audit, including a Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, is included in the single audit section of this report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The County is located in the northeast section of the State, and is bounded on the north and east
by the Pee Dee River, on the south by Williamsburg County, and the west by Darlington County.
The County was established in 1888 as a railroad community and since that time has grown into
the commercial, retail, and medical center for this region of the State. Being at the intersection of
U.S. [-95 and I-20 has facilitated this growth, as well as being the mid-way point on [-95 between
New York City and Miami, Florida.

County Complex
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The County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government. The County’s Council
is comprised of nine single member districts. The County Council annually elects one member to
serve as Chairman, one member to serve as Vice-Chairman, and one member to serve as Secretary-
Chaplain. The County Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting
the budget, and appointing the Administrator.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report includes all funds of the County that are controlled
by this governing body, and are considered to be the “reporting entity”. The County provides a full
range of services including public safety, public works, health and social service, culture and
recreation, economic development, family court, magistrates, probate court, general sessions court,
solicitor, public defender, and general administration. Other entities and political subdivisions
including the County’s five school districts and nine cities and towns have been excluded from the
County’s funds and accordingly, each entity has sufficient discretion in the management of its own
affairs. However, the County Treasurer is responsible for the collection of property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other revenues for the political subdivisions. The year-end
balances and results of that fiduciary responsibility are included as agency funds in the basic
financial statements.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The County is continuing to experience a strong increase in economic growth. This growth comes
primarily from four areas: manufacturing companies, distribution, the medical community, and
tourism.

Manufacturing

The County is an international center for manufacturing. Nan Ya Plastics Corporation of America,
a polyester fiber producing company based in Taiwan, is one of the County’s largest taxpayers as
it continues to grow towards its goal of investing $1 billion in the Florence County/Williamsburg
County Joint Industrial Park.

In December 2022, Envision AESC, a world-leading Japanese electric vehicle battery technology
company announced it will build a state-of-the-art battery cell gigafactory in Florence County. The
$810 million investment will create 1,170 new jobs and will support the company’s multi-year
partnership with the BMW Group.

Honda Motors Corporation of America (Honda) expanded its current facility to include an engine
plant for its all-terrain vehicles. Honda now employs more than 1,000 people in its assembly and
engine plants. This is the first time that engines for any Honda vehicle have been produced in the
United States. Two suppliers to the Honda plant are also located in the County, South East Express
and North American Assemblies.

During early 2013, Otis Elevator opened a facility in order to construct its next generation of
elevators. Otis produces the Gen2, Gen3 and Hydrofit elevators at their Florence facility and
employs over 600.




Ruiz Foods announced its second major expansion in 2017 estimated at $79,000,000 and 705 new
jobs. The company manufactures frozen Mexican food entrées under the EI Monterey and Tornado
brands. Ruiz again announced a $40 million dollar expansion in 2020. Employee headcount at the
facility is now over 1,000.

West Rock invested $470 million dollars in new equipment in 2019. When coupled with the
recently completed modern woodyard, the Westrock Florence mill will become one of the lowest
cost kraft linerboard mills in North America.

McCall Farms runs a canning operation in Florence County and produces canned products under
nationally recognized brands like Glory Foods, Bruces Yams, Peanut Patch, Allen’s, Margaret
Holmes and others. During October 2019, McCall Farms announced additional new investment of
$50,000,000 and 140 new jobs at the Effingham facility.

In 2020, Niagara Bottling, the largest privately held water bottling company in the United States,
constructed a 720,000 square foot bottled water manufacturing facility. Niagara has since invested
over $150 million dollars in Florence County and employs over 200 people.

In 2021, Innovative Construction Group announced plans to locate a manufacturing and
distribution facility in Florence County. The company anticipates investing over $35 million
dollars in Florence County and creating approximately 180 jobs. The began operations in their
200,000 SF building in 2022.

In 2022, Carolina Precision Foods, LLC — a joint venture of Carolina Fresh Foods and owners of
Lake Foods announced plans to establish operations in Florence County. Carolina Precision
Foods, LLC is a poultry further processing company that specializes in deboning, portioning,
marination, custom further processing and mechanically separating food. The company’s $10
million investment will create 402 new jobs.

Solar power generation is becoming a growing industry in the county. In the past few years,
Soltage, LLC has invested over $19,000,000, NARENCO is investing $20,000,000, and Coronal
Energy is investing over $15,000,000 in clean, renewable solar power generation.

Distribution

Given its location at the intersection of Interstates 1-95 and 1-20, the County is a center for
distribution facilities. Fedex, Performance Foodservice, Pepsi of Florence, W. Lee Flowers and
Company, QVC, Clarios and Yahnis Company all have distribution facilities in Florence County.

FedEx operates out of a 75,000 square foot distribution facility. QVC, Inc. constructed a 1,000,000
square foot distribution facility that opened during the spring of 2007. This resulted in an
investment of almost $75,000,000 and the addition of several hundred jobs to the local economy.
In 2021, QVC announced an expansion of $27,500,000 and 360 new jobs. The QVC Florence
facility is now the east coast returns center for all of QVC.



Clarios, LLC, formerly Johnson Controls, Inc. moved into a 300,000 square foot spec. building in
the Pee Dee Touchstone Energy Commerce Center in order to distribute automotive batteries. This
facility opened during the spring of 2007 and resulted in an investment of approximately
$35,000,000.

Performance Foodservice, a restaurant food supplier, announced plans in 2021 to expand their
operations and will invest over $11,000,000 in constructing an 80,000 SF addition to their facility.
This expansion will create 150 jobs.

Cheney Brothers, a leading broadline food distributor, announced plans to construct a new
distribution center in Florence County in February 2022. The company’s $66 million investment
will create 280 new jobs.

Medical Community

The County continues to serve as the medical center for the eastern half of South Carolina. McLeod
Regional Medical Center (McLeod) is the largest employer in the County, with over 5,800
employees. McLeod has, in the past few years, constructed a women’s hospital pavilion as well as
a four-story medical office building. McLeod also has completed construction on an additional
five-story medical office building. During 2007, McLeod completed the expansion of the women’s
hospital pavilion from its current five floors to a total of twelve floors at a cost in excess of $100
million. During 2010, McLeod was awarded the American Hospital Association-McKesson Quest
for Quality Prize. This national award is presented to one hospital annually and, since its inception
during 2002, has been awarded to major national hospitals such as the Duke University Hospital
and The Johns Hopkins Hospital. McLeod is the first hospital in South Carolina to receive this
award.

MUSC Health Florence Medical Center is also located in the County. MUSC is a subsidiary of the
Medical University of South Carolina location in Charleston, SC. MUSC Health Florence Medical
Center’s Stroke Center, recognized by The Joint Commission, shows the hospital’s commitment
to the highest standards in the country. MUSC Health was recognized by US News and World
Report as high performing hospitals for 2021-2022 in four categories — COPD, heart attack, heart
failure, and kidney failure.

HopeHealth, a nonprofit community health center in Florence, accepts all insurance types to ensure
that quality healthcare is affordable and accessible to citizens. The community health provider
employs several hundred people in the County. HopeHealth provides integrated health services for
more than 50,000 patients in areas surrounding Aiken, Clarendon, Florence, Orangeburg, and
Williamsburg counties. With over 100 providers covering primary care, dental care, chiropractic
care, rheumatology, endocrinology, behavioral health and psychiatry, pain management, substance
use treatment, and women’s health services, HopeHealth is meeting a critical need in our
community.

Also headquartered in the County is Palmetto Government Benefits Administrators, a division of
Blue Cross & Blue Shield of South Carolina. This division processes health insurance claims from
military personnel and their dependents from all across the nation and around the world. They



currently employ several hundred people in the County. In addition, Assurant located an insurance
processing facility in the County that currently employs over 900 people.

Tourism

With such attractions as the Darlington Raceway, the Florence Center, Freedom Florence, a nine-
field softball complex, Carolina Bank Field, and the Dr. Eddie Floyd Tennis Center, the County
continues to see an increase in tourism every year. This has resulted in the construction of several
new hotels and motels including the Hyatt Place in downtown Florence, as well as a new Tru by
Hilton. The Florence area offers visitors well over 5,000 quality hotel rooms.

The County’s moderate climate attracts tourists year-round to come to shop, eat, and play golf at
one of over 10 golf courses located within 30 miles of the City of Florence. In addition, the
Florence Center continues to significantly increase economic impact to the community providing
75,000 square feet of conference, convention, social events and trade shows attracting more and
larger events to the facility. Major sporting events such as basketball, gymnastics, cheerleading
and Esports have had a major impact on the number of out of town visitors to our area hotels,
shopping and restaurants. Events are currently booked as far as four years out. Along with this
continued growth several additional hotels, restaurants and retail stores have come on line in the
past year. The Freedom Florence recreation complex consists of a nine-field softball facility, a
gymnastics center, and a four-field football and soccer complex. These facilities are designed for
competitive use and are regularly used for tournaments and events that bring in visitors from all
over the Southeast. The City of Florence constructed a 30-court tennis center that opened during
June 2011. This center regularly hosts regional, State and National tournaments including the
USTA Pro Circuit tournament and Peachbelt Conference Championship. The Darlington
Raceway, which is next door to the County, also hosts two NASCAR Cup Series, Xfinity Series
and Camping World truck series races each year on Mothers Day weekend and on Labor Day
weekend. The Labor Day Weekend is the largest weekend sporting event in the State with Xfinity
Series and NASCAR Cup Series races both on Labor Day weekend, beginning in 2015. These
races bring international exposure to Florence through ESPN and major network telecasts. The
raceway has also added lights to the track to provide the opportunity for night-time racing as well.

Downtown Florence also serves as a destination for travelers. Over the past decade, Downtown
Florence has seen tremendous growth with more than $300 million in public and private
investment. Downtown Florence is now home to two hotels, multiple restaurants, retail
establishments, businesses, cultural and entertainment venues. In 2021, Downtown Florence
received Main Street America Recognition. Each year, Main Street America recognizes Affiliate
programs in recognition of their dedication to creating positive change in their downtowns and
commercial districts using the Main Street Approach, a framework for preservation-based
economic development and community revitalization.

Buc-ees, a Texas chain gas station and convenience store, invested over $35 million dollars in a
53,000 square foot facility and now employs over 150. Buc-ees’ location off I-95 is expected to
further spur development along the interchange as it is on the path to Myrtle Beach.




MAJOR INITIATIVES

The County has embarked on several initiatives that center primarily on increasing service to its
residents.

EMS Improvements

During 2000, the County made major improvements to its EMS System. Four new state of the art
ambulances were purchased, as well as four new quick response vehicles. During February 1999,
the County broke ground on a new 7,500 square foot EMS headquarters. The building was
completed during December 1999.

During 2004, the County completed the construction of two new EMS substations in rural areas
of the county, and constructed a third rural substation during early 2012. With funding from the
second capital project sales tax, the County constructed another substation during 2017 and during
2019.

Recreation Improvements

During 1999, a recreation master plan for the entire county was prepared by an outside consulting
company. During 2020, Coastal Carolina University conducted a needs assessment survey and
compiled the results. With this data, the Recreation Commission completed and established a new
five year plan for Parks and Recreation.

On October 31, 2002, the State of South Carolina deeded the Lynches River County Park to the
County. The park consists of 675 acres near the geographic center of the County. This park attracts
20,000 to 30,000 visitors per month. Many improvements have been completed and continue to
be made at the park. Some features include a major renovation of the community building at the
park was completed and a canoe launch and a 1,200 foot boardwalk was constructed. In addition,
two cabins and a bathhouse were purchased and installed and are available to be rented. A
splashpad was added to the park. An environmental discovery center opened during 2008, and
includes a rope bridge walk through the treetops adjacent to the center. Future plans include the
addition of an equestrian center and horse trail network along with camp sites.

In North Florence, a local park has been enhanced by the addition of a community building and a
walking trail. In West Florence, additional land was acquired adjacent to an existing ball field and
five tennis courts, a picnic shelter and a playground were constructed. The tennis courts were
recently resurfaced completely

In the Lake City area, land was acquired for a local park and a walking trail was constructed. This
land also includes a pond; therefore, a fishing deck and a walking bridge over the pond have been
constructed. With a recent acquisition of Lions Park and new playground, the County continues to
develop the Lake City area. During 2004, the County acquired three parcels of land to expand two
existing baseball leagues and to construct a neighborhood park. During 2018, the County finished
construction on an 8 acre lake in the Lake City area and constructed a Miracle League field. Major
portions of these projects were funded by private donations. An additional 500 acres in the Lake
City area was acquired in 2022 and will be used in the future to address outdoor recreation needs.
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During 2019, the County completed construction and began league play on a new 5-field
baseball/softball complex in Johnsonville. Five tennis courts and a practice wall have been
resurfaced recently.

The recreation department opened the Timmonsville Community Center in 2022. This center is
home to a new senior citizen program and new after school children’s programs for the residents.

Libraries

During 2004, the County completed construction of an 80,000 square foot main library. This new
facility more than doubled the existing space of the previous facility and provides more than three
times the number of public access computers. During 2010, the County completed the last of four
branch libraries in its rural areas. Each of these libraries is more than twice as large as the previous
facilities and patronage at each of these new facilities has increased dramatically.

Economic Development

During 1999, the County entered into an agreement with a local private business group to form the
Florence County Economic Development Partnership. This is a joint partnership that was formed
to increase economic development throughout the County and is funded equally by public and
private funds.

Florence County actively works to continue industrial growth through the development of
industrial parks throughout all Florence County. Florence County Council approved the issuance
of a 22-million-dollar general obligation bond in February 2020 to further support economic
development initiatives in the County.

Florence County is actively developing the Florence County Industrial Park South, Florence
County Industrial Park East, Florence County Industrial Park West, and the Envision Technology
and Commerce Park. Additionally, Florence County received grant funding from Commerce to
purchase the remainder of acreage available at the Lake City Commerce Center. Florence County
purchased over 2,000 acres of industrial property in the last three years, and is focused on
developing industrial sites to ensure they are shovel ready — meaning water, sewer and road
infrastructure are present and improved at all county-owned industrial sites.

Capital Project Sales Tax

During November 2021, the voters of the County approved a referendum for a one cent capital
project sales tax, as well as the issuance of a general obligation bond in an amount not to exceed
$120,000,000, the debt service payments of which will be funded from the sales tax. This sales tax
began being collected on May 1, 2021 by the merchants in the County and will be collected for a
period of seven years.

Included in this referendum was a funding plan for over 400 separate projects. Among other things,
this plan includes the following items:

e $16,000,000 for fire stations and equipment
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$2,665,128 for a new emergency medical station

$15,166,000 for municipal water and sewer improvements

$43,900,000 for municipal infrastructure improvements, including roads
$41,533,000 for general road improvements in each of the council districts

Judicial Center

During June 2015, the County issued $42,000,000 in installment purchase revenue bonds to
construct a new 120,000 square foot judicial center. This building opened in March 2018.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure to ensure that its assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that data
compiled will allow for the preparation of financial statements that are in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Because the cost of an internal control should not exceed the benefits to be derived from the
control, the objective of the internal control structure is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
assurance, that the financial statements are free of any material misstatement.

Financial Audit. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, we are also responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management of the County and our external auditors.

The results of the County’s financial statement and compliance audit for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 provided one material weakness in internal control over financial reporting.

Budgetary Controls. A formal budget is adopted for the General Fund and various special
revenue funds of the County at the account level. In the General Fund, a budget is prepared for
each department of the County. Encumbrance accounting is used to record estimated amounts for
purchase orders, contracts and other commitments prior to release to vendors. Commitments that
would result in over expended funds are not made until available funds are transferred via a budget
adjustment approved by the County Administrator and the Finance Director.

Proprietary Operations. The County has three proprietary funds. The Florence County Utility
System Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the water and sewer system. The
Florence County Landfill Fund accounts for the operation of the County’s 15 manned convenience
centers and the transportation of the waste from these centers to a private landfill outside the
County and the tipping fee at this private landfill. The Florence County E911 System Fund
accounts for the mapping and establishing of the E911 system throughout the County.

Debt Administration. In accordance with South Carolina State Law, the County must maintain its
general obligation bonded debt within a limit of eight percent of its total assessed value of its real
and personal property. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, this requirement has been met.

Capital Assets. The capital assets of the County are those used in the performance of general
govemment functions. These assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
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actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value on the acquisition date. The County, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34,
began recognizing depreciation on all its capital assets. In addition, in further compliance with this
Statement, the County capitalized all infrastructure assets, including roads and bridges.

Independent Audit. The South Carolina Code of Laws requires an annual audit of financial records
and transactions of the County by an independent certified public accountant selected by the
County Council. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was audited by the accounting firm of
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC, and its report on the basic financial statements is included in the
Financial Section of this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Financial Policies. The primary financial policy of the County is embodied in a resolution adopted
by the County Council requiring the maintenance of a General Fund fund balance in an amount of
at least 25% of General Fund expenditures. As a result of various revenue reductions over the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 2011, and 2012, primarily from the State of South Carolina, the
County had used a portion of General Fund fund balance to balance the General Fund budget each
fiscal year. In addition, the County included a 3% across-the-board reduction in the General Fund
budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. During fiscal years 2013 and 2014, the County
continued to hold the line on expenditure growth in order to restore fund balance back to the 25%
threshold.

Certificate of Achievement. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States
and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
to the County for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. This was the twenty-first year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one
year only. Due to recent year employee turnover in key positions the June 30, 2019, 2020, and
2021 audit and Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports were not submitted or awarded
Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report could not
have been accomplished without the dedicated service of the Finance Department and the technical
expertise and efforts of our independent auditors, Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC. We would like to also
commend the County Council for realizing the need for, and the benefits derived from timely
financial reporting.

Sincerely,

James M. Goff, CPA
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the County Council
of Florence County
Florence, South Carolina

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison statement for the
General Fund, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of a Matter
As described in Notes 1 and 8 to the financial statements, the County adopted new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No. 87, Leases, as of July 1, 2021. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (on pages 5 through 16), the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (on
page 95), the Schedules of County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (on page 96), and the
Schedules of County’s Pension Contributions (on pages 97 and 98) be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying General Fund Detail Schedule of Revenues — Budget
(Budgetary Basis) and Actual, General Fund Detail Schedule of Expenditures by Department — Budget (Budgetary
Basis) and Actual, the combining General Fund schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Uniform Schedule of Court Fines, Assessments and Surcharges (per
ACT 96), as required by the State of South Carolina are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the General Fund
Detail Schedule of Revenues — Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual, General Fund Schedule of Expenditures by
Department — Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual, the combining General Fund schedules, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, and
the Uniform Schedule of Court Fines, Assessments and Surcharges (per ACT 96) are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements,
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude
that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 2023, on
our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

W euddin, ¢ Gpiner KC

Columbia, South Carolina
February 21, 2023



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

As management of Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”), we offer readers of the
County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our Letter of
Transmittal, which can be found on pages i - ix of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The County’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the current fiscal year by $41,943,553 (net
position). Of this amount, ($187,937,272) represents unrestricted net deficit. The General
Fund unassigned fund balance was $26,070,707, which may be used to meet the County’s
cash flow management needs and its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The
remainder represents amounts accounted for in special revenue, debt service, and capital
project funds which are restricted, committed, or assigned for the specific purposes of
each fund.

e The County’s total net position increased by $28,283,733 primarily due to the increases in
property tax revenue and sales tax revenue.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $205,252,726, a decrease of $8,611,145 from the prior
fiscal year. Total fund balance decreased primarily as a result of the County retiring
$13,625,000 of the $120,000,000 in Series 2021 General Obligation Bonds offset by
growth in property tax revenues and sales tax revenues.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund
was $26,070,707, or approximately 39 percent of total General Fund expenditures and net
transfers out.

e The County’s long-term debt decreased by $42,288,740 or approximately 11 percent during
the current fiscal year primarily as a result of the County retiring $27,617,547 in General
Obligation Bonds and General Obligation Bond Premiums offset by $5,851,000 in short-
term General Obligation Bond issues.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial
statements. The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1)
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.



The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the County’s assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result
in cash flows only in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, and unused vacation
leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include
general government, public safety, economic and physical development, public works, health,
welfare, culture and recreation, and education. The business-type activities of the County include
a utility system, a county landfill and an E911 system.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 18 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



The County maintains fifty individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, the Grant Special Revenue
Fund, the CPST3 Debt Service Fund, and the CPST3 Capital Project Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other thirty-nine governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 23 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its utility system, its landfill,
and its E911 system.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the utility system, the landfill, and for the E911 system, all of which are considered
to be major funds of the County.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 - 27 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 and 29 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 94 of this report.

Required supplementary information. The required supplementary information consists of the
schedules of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and its contributions to
the State of South Carolina’s pension plan and schedule of changes in the total other post-
employment benefit liability and related ratios for the County’s Retiree Health Care Plan.
These schedules can be found on pages 95 - 98 of this report.

Other supplementary information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection
with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be
found on pages 99 - 165 of this report.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the County, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $41,943,553 at the close of the current fiscal year. A
significant portion of the County’s net position represents resources that are subject to external
re- strictions on how they may be used.

Net Position

Florence County's Net Position
Figure 1

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Current and other assets $ 255,455,127 $ 247,238,647 $ 940,173 $ 1,087,667 $ 256,395,300 $ 248,326,314
Capital assets 181,853,264 170,204,487 3,009,713 3,299,740 184,862,977 173,504,227
Total assets 437,308,391 417,443,134 3,949,886 4,387,407 441,258,277 421,830,541
Total deferred outflows of resources 22,998,237 22,563,996 78,922 97,507 23,077,159 22,661,503
Current liabilities 78,086,931 59,991,419 954,295 874,179 79,041,226 60,865,598
Noncurrent liabilities 313,269,806 350,891,738 2,348,565 2,440,787 315,618,371 353,332,525
Total liabilities 391,356,737 410,883,157 3,302,860 3,314,966 394,659,597 414,198,123
Total deferred inflows of resources 27,639,830 11,237,645 92,456 21,456 27,732,286 11,259,101
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 89,826,988 82,147,317 2,986,732 3,299,740 92,813,720 85,447,057
Restricted 137,067,105 185,329,309 - - 137,067,105 185,329,309
Unrestricted (185,584,032)  (249,590,298) (2,353,240) (2,151,248) (187,937,272)  (251,741,546)
Total net position $ 41,310,061 $ 17,886,328 $ 633,492 $ 1,148,492 $ 41,943,553 $ 19,034,820

An additional portion of the County’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire
those assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of total unrestricted net deficit ($187,937,272) is comprised of the
unrestricted net deficit balance of the governmental activities of ($185,584,032) and the
unrestricted net deficit balance of the business-type activities ($2,353,240). A majority of this total
unrestricted net deficit balance is the result of the total OPEB liability of $50,115,099 and the net
pension liability of $61,481,314.

The County's unrestricted net deficit for its governmental activities increased from the prior fiscal
year by $28,283,733. This increase was primarily the result of the increase in the County’s
restricted net position for its governmental activities. The County's total net position for its
governmental activities increased from the prior fiscal year by $28,798,733 primarily as a result
of increased property tax and sales tax revenues.

The County's total cash and cash equivalents, and investments balance increased from the prior
fiscal year by $2,718,452 primarily as a result of the increases in property tax revenue and sales
tax revenue.



Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by
$28,798,733 to $41,310,061 as a result of the activities described in the previous paragraphs.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the County’s net position by
$515,000 to $633,492 primarily as a result of the increase in system maintenance expenses
reported in the Florence County Landfill Fund and system operating expenditures exceeding
State revenues in the Florence County E911 System Fund.

Florence County's Changes in Net Position
Figure 2

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for senices $ 20,477,012 $ 19,039,384 $ 6912850 $ 6,017,304 $ 27,389,862 $ 25,056,688
Operating grants and contributions 7,602,547 17,651,319 - - 7,602,547 17,651,319
Capital grants and contributions 14,143,441 7,719,210 - - 14,143,441 7,719,210
General revenues:
Property taxes 42,417,547 40,731,101 - - 42,417,547 40,731,101
Sales taxes 46,198,939 42,420,083 - - 46,198,939 42,420,083
Other taxes 12,276,228 11,332,988 - - 12,276,228 11,332,988
Miscellaneous 1,481,976 1,265,981 1,904 96,398 1,483,880 1,362,379
Total revenues 144,597,690 140,160,066 6,914,754 6,113,702 151,512,444 146,273,768
Program expenses
General government 47,531,175 25,104,225 - - 47,531,175 25,104,225
Public safety 32,518,455 48,316,738 - - 32,518,455 48,316,738
Economic and physical development 2,862,230 800,757 - - 2,862,230 800,757
Public works 6,713,673 5,204,173 - - 6,713,673 5,204,173
Health 11,252,052 12,639,201 - - 11,252,052 12,639,201
Welfare 347,753 477,523 - - 347,753 477,523
Culture and recreation 10,204,764 12,070,758 - - 10,204,764 12,070,758
Education 2,955,600 4,012,461 - - 2,955,600 4,012,461
Interest on long-term debt 1,671,759 7,472,465 - - 1,671,759 7,472,465
Utility system - - 685 73,335 685 73,335
Landfill - - 5,903,304 5,776,725 5,903,304 5,776,725
E911 system - - 1,267,261 1,327,055 1,267,261 1,327,055
Total expenses 116,057,461 116,098,301 7,171,250 7,177,115 123,228,711 123,275,416
Excess (deficiency)
before transfers 28,540,229 24,061,765 (256,496) (1,063,413) 28,283,733 22,998,352
Transfers 258,504 258,504 (258,504) (258,504) - -
Increase (decrease) in net position 28,798,733 24,320,269 (515,000) (1,321,917) 28,283,733 22,998,352
Net position, beginning of year (restated) 12,511,328 (6,433,941) 1,148,492 2,470,409 13,659,820 (3,963,532)
Net position, ending of year $ 41,310,061 $ 17,886,328  $ 633,492 $ 1,148,492 $ 41,943,553 $ 19,034,820
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for cash flow purposes, to maintain
financial stability in the economic downturn affecting revenues received from the state government
and to fund reimbursement-based grants, as had often been the case in recent years.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $205,252,726, a decrease of $8,611,145 compared to the prior fiscal year. This
decrease was primarily as a result of the County retiring $13,625,000 of the $120,000,000 in
Series 2021 General Obligation Bonds offset by growth in property tax revenues and sales tax
revenues. Approximately 13 percent of this total amount $25,945,670 constitutes unassigned fund
balance. The remainder of fund balance is non-spendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed (1) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period of $349,684, (2) to pay debt service of
$51,393,191, and (3) to pay for various capital improvements or other expenditures in future years
of $125,897,710.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $26,070,707, while total fund balance reached
$28,813,001. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and net transfers out.
Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 39 percent of total General Fund
expenditures and net transfers out, while total fund balance represents approximately 44 percent
of that same amount.

The fund balance of the County's General Fund increased by $1,844,135 during the current fiscal
year primarily as a result of increased property tax revenues.

The Grant Special Revenue Fund has a total fund balance of $357,641, all of which is restricted
for subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund balance increased by $314,816 during the current
fiscal year primarily as a result of increases in federal grant revenue received from the U.S.
Department of Treasury’s American Rescue Plan.

The CPST3 Debt Service Fund is a new major fund for the current fiscal year. It has a total fund
balance of $31,386,414, all of which is restricted for subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund
balance increased by $8,806,112 during the current fiscal year primarily because the County’s
debt service requirements of 20,958,333 on the $120,000,000 in Series 2021 General Obligations
Bonds were exceeded by Capital Project Sales Tax revenues.
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The CPST3 Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $96,418,856 and the majority of this
amount is restricted for subsequent years’ expenditures. The fund balance decreased by
$15,790,886 during the current fiscal year primarily as a result of increased capital expenditures incurred
in connection with the County’s construction of projects approved by a voter referendum on
November 3, 2020.

Proprietary funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

At the end of the current fiscal year, total net position of the Florence County Utility System, the
Florence County Landfill, and the Florence County E911 System was $193,049, $649,034, and
($208,591), respectively. The total decrease in net position for the Florence County Utility System,
the Florence County Landfill, and the Florence County E911 System was $685, ($43,178), and
$557,493, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these three funds have already
been addressed in the discussion of the County’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were significant changes between the original budget and the final amended budget for the
General Fund, primarily as a result of the following items:

e Budgeted revenues from additional revenue of $7,060 received to purchase a fountain
system for the new VA Nursing Home expenditures were increased by a corresponding
amount.

e Budgeted general government expenditures were increased by $258,504 to add back fund
transfers.

e Budgeted general government expenditures were increased by $1,152,026 to carry over
funds previously appropriated for real property and other purchases.

After these changes to the General Fund budget were made, it was expected that fund balance
would decrease by $1,349,790. Actual fund balance increased by $1,844,135.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2022, amounts to $184,862,977 (net of accumulated depreciation).

This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and additions, improvements other than
buildings, autos and trucks, furniture and fixtures, machinery and equipment, and roads and
bridges.

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year included the following:

Construction and improvements for recreation projects

Improvements and renovations made to the County Public Services Building
Construction of Economic Development multi-county industrial parks
Construction of rock, paved roads, and sidewalks

Florence County's Capital Assets
Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Depletion

Figure 3
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land $ 19,481,532 $ 19,302,589 $ 2,439,677 $ 2,340,638 $ 21,921,209 $ 21,643,227
Construction in progress 6,757,291 1,690,706 - - 6,757,291 1,690,706
Buildings and additions 116,723,924 113,390,529 - - 116,723,924 113,390,529
Improvements other than buildings 3,010,221 2,629,271 231,826 391,783 3,242,047 3,021,054
Vehicles 3,981,941 4,155,908 - 585 3,981,941 4,156,493
Furniture and fixtures 500,194 552,764 - - 500,194 552,764
Machinery and equipment 6,301,479 5,724,185 338,210 566,734 6,639,689 6,290,919
Infrastructure 25,096,682 22,758,535 - - 25,096,682 22,758,535

Total capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and depletion $ 181,853,264 $ 170,204,487 $ 3,009,713 $ 3,299,740 $ 184,862,977 $ 173,504,227

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 1 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total bonded general
obligation debt outstanding (including premiums) of $154,890,303. This entire amount is backed
by the full faith and credit of the government. The remainder of the County’s debt represents
revenue bonds, capital leases, and accrued compensated absences, which are secured by
annual appropriations by the County Council.
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Florence County's Long-term Obligations
Figure 4

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General obligation bonds, net $154,890,303 $176,655,850 $ - 8 - $154,890,303 $ 176,655,850
Revenue bonds, net 64,391,587 68,498,032 - - 64,391,587 68,498,032
Financed purchase obligations 6,580,867 8,049,786 - 6,580,867 8,049,786
Lease liabilities 2,653,306 3,449,939 22,981 24,787 2,676,287 3,474,726
Accrued compensated absences 2,520,914 1,880,649 890 890 2,521,804 1,881,539
Net pension liability 61,006,865 76,340,395 474,449 588,277 61,481,314 76,928,672
Total other postemployment benefit liability 50,115,099 49,457,396 - 50,115,099 49,457,396
Closure/post-closure liability - 1,852,510 1,852,510 1,852,510 1,852,510
Total long-term obligations $ 342,158,941 7$ 384,332,047 $ 2,350,830 $ 2,466,464 $ 344,509,771 $ 386,798,511

The County’s total long-term obligations decreased by $42,288,740 or approximately 11 percent
during the current fiscal year primarily as a result of the County retiring $13,625,000 of the
$120,000,000 in Series 2021 General Obligation Bonds and $6,358,547 in General Obligation
Bond Premiums.

The County maintains an “AA” rating from Standard & Poor’s, and an Aa2 rating from Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 8%
of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the County is $41,237,054 which is
significantly in excess of the County’s general obligation debt subject to the debt limit as of
June 30, 2022, which is $31,148,000.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

As of June 30, 2022, the unemployment rate for the County was 3.4%, which represents a
decrease from a rate of 4.5% a year ago. This factor was considered in preparing the County’s
budget for the 2023 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund increased to
$26,070,707. This fund balance has increased to a threshold of approximately 39 percent of
expenditures and net transfers out. In addition, given the possibility of increases in premium
expenditures for the State’s pension plan, premium expenditures for the State’s health care plan,
and the County’s Retiree health care plan, it is possible that future reductions in budgeted
expenditures may be required to maintain a balanced budget.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information

provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of
the Finance Director, 180 North Irby St. MSC-H, Florence, South Carolina, 29501.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

Primary Government

Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 228,411,924 $ 788,598 $ 229,200,522
Investments 1,603,767 - 1,603,767
Receivables:
Property taxes, net 1,400,435 - 1,400,435
Other governmental units 19,801,882 18,153 19,820,035
Other receivables, net 1,518,064 133,422 1,651,486
Lease receivable 1,052,584 - 1,052,584
Inventory 270,494 - 270,494
Prepaids 1,395,977 - 1,395,977
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 26,238,823 2,439,677 28,678,500
Depreciable, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 155,614,441 570,036 156,184,477
Total assets 437,308,391 3,949,886 441,258,277
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 11,811,245 - 11,811,245
Deferred outflows related to pensions 11,186,992 78,922 11,265,914
Total deferred outflows of resources 22,998,237 78,922 23,077,159
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 16,038,121 952,030 16,990,151
Unearned revenue 32,127,743 - 32,127,743
Accrued interest 1,031,932 - 1,031,932
Current portion of long-term debt 28,889,135 2,685 28,891,820
Due in more than one year:
Post-closure care costs - 1,852,510 1,852,510
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 202,147,842 21,186 202,169,028
Total OPEB liability 50,115,099 - 50,115,099
Net pension liability 61,006,865 474,449 61,481,314
Total liabilities 391,356,737 3,302,860 394,659,597
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 9,623,146 - 9,623,146
Deferred inflows related to pensions 13,164,516 92,456 13,256,972
Deferred lease receipts 1,043,589 - 1,043,589
Deferred amount on refunding 3,808,579 - 3,808,579
Total deferred inflows of resources 27,639,830 92,456 27,732,286
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 89,826,988 2,986,732 92,813,720
Restricted:
Federal and state grants 357,641 - 357,641
Tourism 3,044,576 - 3,044,576
Library 23,459 - 23,459
Public safety 4,766,044 - 4,766,044
Economic development 84,269 - 84,269
Road maintenance 5,170,313 - 5,170,313
Debt service 51,393,191 - 51,393,191
Capital projects 72,227,612 - 72,227,612
Unrestricted (185,584,032) (2,353,240) (187,937,272)
Total net position $ 41,310,061 $ 633,492 $ 41,943,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Utility system
Landfill
E911 system
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
47,531,175 5,283,357 § 7,403,913 §$ 14,143,441  $ (20,700,464) $ - $ (20,700,464)
32,518,455 1,847,370 111,758 - (30,559,327) - (30,559,327)
2,862,230 - 59,429 - (2,802,801) - (2,802,801)
6,713,673 3,682,216 - - (3,031,457) - (3,031,457)
11,252,052 7,565,132 - - (3,686,920) - (3,686,920)
347,753 - - - (347,753) - (347,753)
10,204,764 2,098,937 - - (8,105,827) - (8,105,827)
2,955,600 - 27,447 - (2,928,153) - (2,928,153)
1,671,759 - - - (1,671,759) - (1,671,759)
116,057,461 20,477,012 7,602,547 14,143,441 (73,834,461) - (73,834,461)
685 - - - - (685) (685)
5,903,304 5,944,630 - - - 41,326 41,326
1,267,261 968,220 - - - (299,041) (299,041)
7,171,250 6,912,850 - - - (258,400) (258,400)
123,228,711 27,389,862 $ 7,602,547 $ 14,143,441 (73,834,461) (258,400) (74,092,861)
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes 25,750,700 - 25,750,700
Education 2,579,986 - 2,579,986
Fire protection 5,342,214 - 5,342,214
Debt service 8,744,628 - 8,744,628
Other 19 - 19
Sales taxes 46,198,939 - 46,198,939
Fees-in-lieu-of-taxes 5,542,671 - 5,542,671
Franchise fees 2,306,053 - 2,306,053
Accommodations tax 4,427,504 - 4,427,504
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,208,162 1,904 1,210,066
Gain on sale of capital assets 273,814 - 273,814
Transfers 258,504 (258,504) -
Total general revenues and transfers 102,633,194 (256,600) 102,376,594
Change in net position 28,798,733 (515,000) 28,283,733
Net position, beginning of year (restated) 12,511,328 1,148,492 13,659,820
Net position, end of year $ 41,310,061 $ 633,492 $ 41,943,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Grant CPST3 CPST3 Nonmajor Total
General Special Debt Service Capital Project Governmental Governmental
Fund Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,134,706  $ 24,223,694 $ 22,199,653 $ 98,547,790 $ 48,306,081 $ 228,411,924
Investments - - 1,603,766 - 1 1,603,767
Receivables, net
Property taxes 922,339 - - - 478,096 1,400,435
Other governmental units and agencies 3,230,128 6,873,504 7,582,995 - 2,115,255 19,801,882
Others 1,273,972 1,209 - - 242,883 1,518,064
Leases receivable 1,052,584 - - - - 1,052,584
Inventories 69,492 - - - 201,002 270,494
Prepaids 1,395,977 - - - - 1,395,977
Total assets $ 43,079,198 $ 31,098,407 § 31,386,414 $ 98,547,790 § 51,343,318 § 255,455,127
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,421,440 § 1,178,157  § -3 2,128,934 § 1,043,878 $ 6,772,409
Payroll withholdings and accruals 1,958,683 129,551 - - 311,029 2,399,263
Other liabilities 6,359,978 - - - 346,674 6,706,652
Retainage payable - - - - 159,797 159,797
Unearned revenue 1,965,639 29,262,999 - - 899,105 32,127,743
Total liabilities 12,705,740 30,570,707 - 2,128,934 2,760,483 48,165,864
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes 516,868 - - - 306,021 822,889
Grants - 170,059 - - - 170,059
Lease receipts 1,043,589 - - - - 1,043,589
Total deferred inflows
of resources 1,560,457 170,059 - - 306,021 2,036,537
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable 1,465,469 - - - 201,002 1,666,471
Restricted:
Federal and state grants - 357,641 - - - 357,641
Tourism - - - - 3,044,576 3,044,576
Library - - - - 23,459 23,459
Public safety - - - - 4,766,044 4,766,044
Economic development - - - - 84,269 84,269
Road maintenance - - - - 5,170,313 5,170,313
Debt service - - 31,386,414 - 20,006,777 51,393,191
Capital projects - - - 96,418,856 13,675,197 110,094,053
Committed:
Road paving 927,141 - - - - 927,141
Capital projects - - - - 1,430,214 1,430,214
Assigned:
General government 349,684 - - - - 349,684
Unassigned:
General fund 26,070,707 - - - - 26,070,707
Special revenue fund (deficit) - - - - (125,037) (125,037)
Total fund balances 28,813,001 357,641 31,386,414 96,418,856 48,276,814 205,252,726

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits) $ 43,079,198  § 31,098,407 § 31,386,414 § 98,547,790  § 51,343,318 $§ 255,455,127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Capital assets and right-to-use leased assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Some revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available soon enough to pay

for the current period's expenditures. Those revenues consist of:

Property taxes
Other revenues

Deferred inflows and deferred outflows related to the pension liability and OPEB liability

are not reported in governmental funds.
Pension related deferred outflows of resources
Pension related deferred inflows of resources
OPERB related deferred outflows of resources
OPERB related deferred inflows of resources

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation bonds payable
Premium on general obligation bonds
Hospitality tax bonds
Installment purchase revenue bonds
Accommodations fee revenue bonds
Discount on revenue bonds
Financed purchases
Accrued compensated absences
Lease liability
Accrued interest
Total OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Deferred charge on refunding

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ 822,889
170,059

$ 11,186,992
(13,164,516)
11,811,245

(9,623,146)

$ (137,523,000)
(17,367,303)
(2,327,000)
(46,915,000)
(15,340,000)
190,413
(6,580,867)
(2,520,914)
(2,653,306)
(1,031,932)
(50,115,099)
(61,008,865)
(3,808,579)

$

205,252,726

181,853,264

992,948

210,575

(346,999,452)

$

41,310,061



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources, net

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance,
beginning of year,

Fund balance, end of year

Grant CPST3 CPST3 Nonmajor Total
General Special Debt Service Capital Project Governmental Governmental
Fund Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 44,905,889 $ - 8 29,759,012  § - 8 19,493,126  $ 94,158,027
2,306,053 - - - - 2,306,053
3,680,734 30,008 - - 10,237,378 13,948,120
7,387,563 14,143,441 - - 2,053,503 23,584,507
9,117,877 - - - - 9,117,877
457,632 1,971 5,433 365,285 377,841 1,208,162
67,855,748 14,175,420 29,764,445 365,285 32,161,848 144,322,746
23,370,248 1,919,773 - 422,110 301,557 26,013,688
23,159,094 1,345,774 - - 6,452,314 30,957,182
- 2,134,274 - - 675,970 2,810,244

986,372 133,592 - 572,069 2,389,017 4,081,050
10,479,802 4,608 - - - 10,484,410
347,753 - - - - 347,753
6,361,313 323,620 - - 2,611,017 9,295,950
4,515 - - 2,951,085 2,955,600
574,714 7,998,963 - 16,131,993 9,772,160 34,477,830
757,498 - 13,625,000 - 13,281,966 27,664,464
1,952 - 7,333,333 - 2,824,000 10,159,285

- - - - 40,212 40,212

- - - - 44,453 44,453
66,043,261 13,860,604 20,958,333 17,126,172 41,343,751 159,332,121
1,812,487 314,816 8,806,112 (16,760,887) (9,181,903) (15,009,375)
- - - - 5,851,000 5,851,000

7,456 - - - 7,456 14,912
273,814 - - - - 273,814
839,631 - - 970,001 4,826,187 6,635,819
(1,089,253) - - - (5,288,062) (6,377,315)
31,648 - - 970,001 5,396,581 6,398,230
1,844,135 314,816 8,806,112 (15,790,886) (3,785,322) (8,611,145)
26,968,866 42,825 22,580,302 112,209,742 52,062,136 213,863,871
$ 28,813,001 § 357641  $ 31,386,414  § 96,418,856 § 48,276,814 $ 205,252,726

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds. $ (8,611,145)

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation and amortization expense.
In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlay $ 18,481,215
Depreciation and amortization expense (10,261,435) 8,219,780

The proceeds from the disposal of capital assets are reported as other financing sources in the governmental

funds. The cost of the capital assets are removed from the capital asset account on the Statement of Net

Position and is offset against the proceeds from the sale of capital assets resulting in a gain or loss on disposal

of capital assets on the Statement of Activities. (20,941)

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the County's fiscal year-end, they are not
considered "available" revenues and are deferred in the governmental funds. Unavailable revenues changed
by this amount this year. 1,130

Bond and other long term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however,
issuing debt increases long term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current period, proceeds
were received from:
Issuance of bonds $ (5,851,000)
Issuance of leases (14,912) (5,865,912)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure ion governmental funds but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current year, these amounts consisted of:

General obligation bond principal retirement $ 21,258,000
Hospitality tax bond principal retirement 145,000
Installment purchase revenue bond principal retirement 3,786,000
Accommodations fee revenue bond principal retirement 195,000
Financed purchase payments 1,468,919
Lease payments 811,545 27,664,464

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Total OPEB liability, net of related deferred outflows and deferred inflows $ (1,972,481)
Net pension liability, net of related deferred outflows and deferred inflows 1,451,912
Compensated absences (640,265)
Amortization of bond premium/discount 6,338,992
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding 272,041 5,450,199

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds whereas, in governmental funds,
interest is expensed when due. 1,961,158

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 28,798,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 44,804,007 $ 44,804,007 $ 44905889 $ 101,882
Licenses and permits 2,211,910 2,211,910 2,306,053 94,143
Fines and fees 3,475,206 3,475,206 3,680,734 205,528
Intergovernmental 7,554,230 7,554,230 7,387,563 (166,667)
Sales and other functional revenues 8,674,025 8,674,025 9,117,877 443,852
Miscellaneous 926,800 926,800 457,632 (469,168)
Total taxes 67,646,178 67,646,178 67,855,748 209,570
Expenditures
General government 25,091,925 25,266,473 23,370,248 (1,896,225)
Public safety 21,786,766 22,097,067 23,159,094 1,062,027
Public works 1,745,103 1,746,636 986,372 (760,264)
Health 10,439,847 10,451,044 10,479,802 28,758
Welfare 352,052 352,052 347,753 (4,299)
Culture and recreation 6,359,301 6,364,375 6,361,313 (3,062)
Education 4,515 4,515 4,515 -
Capital outlay 5,059,717 5,059,717 574,714 (4,485,003)
Debt service:
Principal 360,851 360,851 757,498 396,647
Interest 92,527 92,527 1,952 (90,575)
Total expenditures 71,292,604 71,795,257 66,043,261 (5,751,996)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,646,426) (4,149,079) 1,812,487 5,961,566
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of leases - - 7,456 7,456
Sale of capital assets - - 273,814 273,814
Transfers in 820,000 820,000 839,631 19,631
Transfers out (1,095,150) (1,095,150) (1,089,253) 5,897
Total other financing
sources (uses), net (275,150) (275,150) 31,648 306,798
Net change in fund balances (3,921,576) (4,424,229) 1,844,135 6,268,364
Fund balance,
beginning of year, 26,968,866 26,968,866 26,968,866 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 23,047,290 $ 22544637 $ 28,813,001 $ 6,268,364
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 193,054 $ 595544 $ - 3 788,598
Receivables
Intergovernmental receivable - 18,153 - 18,153
Other receivables - 42,000 91,422 133,422
Total current assets 193,054 655,697 91,422 940,173
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable - 2,439,677 - 2,439,677
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization - 254,680 315,356 570,036
Total noncurrent assets - 2,694,357 315,356 3,009,713
Total assets 193,054 3,350,054 406,778 3,949,886
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - - 78,922 78,922
Total deferred outflows of resources - - 78,922 78,922
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 825,529 107,993 933,527
Accrued payroll - - 18,503 18,503
Current portion of lease liabilities - 1,795 - 1,795
Compensated absences payable - - 890 890
Total current liabilities 5 827,324 127,386 954,715
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Post-closure care costs - 1,852,510 - 1,852,510
Noncurrent lease liabilities - 21,186 - 21,186
Net pension liability - - 474,449 474,449
Total non-current liabilities - 1,873,696 474,449 2,348,145
Total liabilities 5 2,701,020 601,835 3,302,860
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - - 92,456 92,456
Total deferred inflows of resources - - 92,456 92,456
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets - 2,671,376 315,356 2,986,732
Unrestricted 193,049 (2,022,342) (523,947) (2,353,240)
Total net position (deficit) $ 193,049 $ 649,034 $ (208,591) $ 633,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ - 3 5,944,630 $ 968,220 $ 6,912,850
Total operating revenues - 5,944,630 968,220 6,912,850
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs - - 365,020 365,020
System maintenance 685 5,881,424 650,863 6,532,972
Depreciation and amortization - 21,436 251,378 272,814
Total operating expenses 685 5,902,860 1,267,261 7,170,806
Operating income (loss) (685) 41,770 (299,041) (257,956)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest earned on investments - 1,852 52 1,904
Interest expense - (444) - (444)
Total nonoperating revenues, net - 1,408 52 1,460
Net income (loss) before transfers (685) 43,178 (298,989) (256,496)
TRANSFERS
Transfers out - - (258,504) (258,504)
Total transfers - - (258,504) (258,504)
Change in net position (685) 43,178 (557,493) (515,000)
NET POSITION, beginning of year 193,734 605,856 348,902 1,148,492
NET POSITION (DEFICIT), end of year $ 193,049 $ 649,034 $ (208,591) $ 633,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ -3 5,925,963 $ 1,090,891 $ 7,016,854
Payments to suppliers (4,643) (5,864,984) (587,650) (6,457,277)
Payments to employees - - (386,217) (386,217)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (4,643) 60,979 117,024 173,360
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds - - (258,504) (258,504)
Net cash used in noncapital
and related financing activities - - (258,504) (258,504)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on leases - (1,806) - (1,806)
Sale of capital assets - 42,000 - 42,000
Interest paid - (444) - (444)
Net cash provided by capital
and related financing activities - 39,750 - 39,750
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income - 1,852 52 1,904
Net cash provided by investing
activities - 1,852 52 1,904
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (4,643) 102,581 (141,428) (43,490)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 197,697 492,963 141,428 832,088
End of year $ 193,054 $§ 595,544 § - $ 788,598

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Total
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (685) $ 41,770 $ (299,041) $ (257,956)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation - 21,436 251,378 272,814
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - (18,667) (79,796) (98,463)
Due from other funds - - 203,457 203,457
Deferred outflows related to pensions - - 18,585 18,585
Accounts payable (3,958) 16,440 63,213 75,695
Due to other funds - (990) (990)
Accrued payroll - - 3,046 3,046
Net pension liability - - (113,828) (113,828)
Deferred inflows related to pensions - - 71,000 71,000
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ (4,643) $ 60,979 § 117,024 $ 173,360
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Custodial
Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,742,027
Property taxes receivable 3,431,219
Other receivables 107,519
Total assets 32,280,765

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 25,140
Uncollected taxes 3,431,219
Due to local governments 44,839
Due to other taxing entities 134,483
Total liabilities 3,635,681

NET POSITION

Restricted for organizations and other governments 28,645,084
Total net position $ 28,645,084

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Custodial
Funds
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ 85,195,985
Inventory exemption 458,326
Vehicle taxes 20,856,794
Delinquent property taxes 4,813,696
Penalties 167,145
Fee transfer (39,660)
State and federal aid 197,350,946
Interest on investments 51,548
Proceeds from bond issue 18,654,266
State homestead exemption 34,987,420
Fees in lieu of taxes 8,642,442
Watercraft taxes 722,950
Cash received from others 5,417,312
Miscellaneous 58
Less: local option sales tax credits (6,997,391)
Total additions 370,281,837
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 339,881,247
Cash paid to others 2,896,633
Refunds 276,129
Bond principal payments 24,003,527
Interest payments 1,720,164
Paying agent fees 1,158
Total deductions 368,778,858
Change in net position 1,502,979
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,142,105
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 28,645,084

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

Florence County, a municipal corporation, was originally established, founded, and organized in
1888. Florence County (the “County”) is geographically located in the Pee Dee region of South
Carolina and includes the city of Florence. The County operates under a Council-Administrator form
of government and is governed by a nine-member council.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (U.S. GAAP), as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
government’s accounting principles are described below.

Related Organizations — The County's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of
the boards of other organizations, but the County's accountability for these organizations does not
extend beyond making the appointments. The County Council appoints the board members of the
Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse.

Joint Venture — The County is a participant with the City of Florence in a joint venture to operate
the Florence City-County Civic Center (the “Civic Center”). The Florence City-County Civic Center
Commission (the “Civic Center Commission”) was created for that purpose. The Civic Center
Commission is governed by a nine-member Board composed of four appointees from the County
and four from the City of Florence with the remaining member appointed by the members of the
Board. The County and the City of Florence are obligated by agreement to contribute $520,000
each annually as its share of the cost of the Civic Center. Included in the agreement is a provision
that any additional funding shortfall is to be paid equally by the County and the City of Florence.
Neither of the participating governments have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2022. Complete financial
statements of the Civic Center Commission can be obtained from its administrative office at 3300
West Radio Drive, Florence, S.C. 29501.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation
The statements of the County are presented as follows:

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-
fiduciary activities of the government as a whole. Separate columns are used to distinguish between
the County’s governmental activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities are
generally those financed by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are those activities which are financed in whole or in part by user fees
charged to external parties for goods and services.

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources of the County and reports
the difference between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows as net
position. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or section are offset by program revenues and reflects the net (expenses) revenue of
the County’s individual functions before applying general revenues.

Program revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting
government’s taxpayers or citizenry as a whole and, thus, reduce the net cost of the function to be
financed from the government’s general revenues. They include (1) charges to customers or
applications who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments that are restricted to meet the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment as identified in the County budget, for governmental
activities, and include general government, public safety, economic and physical development,
public works, health, welfare, culture and recreation, and education.

Fund Financial Statements — Separate financial statements are provided by governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements. The focus of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is
on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate
column, in the fund financial statements, with non-major funds being aggregated and displayed in a
single column displayed as other.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) — The County reports its General Fund, Grant Special
Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Sales Tax (CPST) 3 Debt Service Fund, and CPST3 Capital
Project Fund as major governmental funds. The County reports the following major proprietary
funds: Florence County Utility System, Florence County Landfill, and Florence County E911
System.

A combining schedule of other non-major governmental funds is presented separately as part of
other financial information (“supplementary information”). Due to basis of accounting and reporting
differences, summary reconciliations to the government-wide financial statements are presented
immediately following each applicable fund statement.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds focus on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according
to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from
which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources is separated as fund balance.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Grant Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities relative to various federal and state
grants received throughout the fiscal year.

The CPST3 Debt Service Fund accounts for the receipt of the bond premium on the capital project
sales tax bonds and the quarterly receipt of the capital project sales taxes from the State, as well as

the payments of the debt service on the capital project sales tax bonds.

The CPST3 Capital Project Fund accounts for the numerous capital projects funded by the capital
project sales tax bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Additionally, the government reports the following nonmajor governmental fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that
are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds — to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed,
or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest, other than debt service payments financed by
proprietary fund types.

Capital Project Funds - to account for financial resources restricted, committed, or assigned to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
proprietary funds or in trust funds for individuals, private organizations, or other governments).

Proprietary Funds — to account for activities where the determination of net income is necessary or
useful to provide sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be
provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily
within the government (internal service funds).

The County’s proprietary funds include three Enterprise funds, which are used to account for
operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises
where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of provided
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or covered primarily
through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination or
revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Florence County Utility System Fund accounts for the balances remaining after
the water and sewer system were consolidated into the City of Florence utility system.

The Florence County Landfill Fund accounts for the activities of the County landfill and the
operation of 15 manned convenience centers throughout the County.

The Florence County E911 System Fund accounts for the operating of the County’s emergency
911 system.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)
The County also reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds - to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. The County’s fiduciary funds
consist of custodial funds. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-side financial
statements.

Custodial Funds — to account for assets held by the County in a fiduciary capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Custodial funds consist primarily of
property taxes and other revenues collected, temporarily retained, and distributed by the County
Treasurer to other governments in accordance with the State of South Carolina statutes.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized
in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. The government-side financial statements
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. As a general rule,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements, imposed by the grantor, have been met. Additionally, the effect of inter-fund
activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements, except for the amount
due between the County’s governmental activities and business-type activities.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
measurable and available).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be identified and available means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter (generally not to exceed 60 days) to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting.

However, debt service principal and interest expenditures on general long-term debt, including lease
liabilities, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments,
postemployment benefits and environmental obligations are recognized later based on specific
accounting rules applicable to each, generally when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions, including entering into contracts giving the County the right to use leased assets, are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and financing through
leases are reported as other financing sources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, charges for services, and hospitality
fees. Revenues from state and federal grants are recorded when expenditures are incurred.
Entitlements and shared revenues are recognized at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible
to accrual criteria is met. Interest revenue is considered available when earned. Major revenues that
are determined not to be susceptible to accrual because they are either not available soon enough
to pay liabilities of the current period or are not objectively measurable include fees and fines
(except hospitality fees), licenses, and permits.

In the government-wide financial statements, and in the governmental-fund types and the
proprietary-fund types in the fund financial statements, certain assets are recognized in connection
with a transaction before the earnings process is complete. These assets are generally offset by a
corresponding liability, commonly referred to as unearned revenue. Unearned revenue, in the
government-wide statements and governmental fund financial statements, is represented by various
deposits on contracts and by prepayments on contracts by third parties. The governmental fund
financial statements report certain assets that are not yet available to finance expenditures for the
current fiscal period and are classified as deferred inflows commonly known as unavailable
revenue.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under
this method the accrual basis of accounting is utilized, and revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. All assets and liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the Statement of Net Position. Proprietary fund
type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenue) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net
position by distinguishing operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets.

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and
expenses.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash includes currency on-hand, demand deposits with financial
institutions, and other accounts that have the general characteristics of demand deposits in that
additional funds may be deposited at any time and withdrawn without prior notice or penalty.

The County pools the cash of substantially all funds into an internal cash and investment pool that is
available for use by all funds with the exception of where legal restrictions prohibit the commingling
of funds. Allocation of interest earned is made to each fund based on pro rata equity. Each
individual fund’s portion of the pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet in cash and cash
equivalents. Certain departments within the County maintain separate cash accounts in addition to
pooled cash held by the Treasurer.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows for the
proprietary (enterprise) funds, cash equivalents are deposit accounts (including restricted assets
other than deposits with other agencies) with an original maturity of three months or less from date
of purchase, and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents represent changes in the equity in
pooled cash balances held by the respective enterprise funds plus funds held by others.

Investments - Investments are stated at fair value, with accrued interest shown under a separate
caption on the financial statements. Reinvested interest on certain debt service and capital projects
investments is included in the investment accounts.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Accounts receivable are stated net of their
allowance for uncollectible amounts. Receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals
that are recognized when they become measurable and available, as previously defined. Property
taxes receivable represents delinquent and unpaid real and personal property tax billing (five years
for vehicle property taxes and ten years for all other property taxes), less an allowance for amounts
estimated to be uncollectible.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for property taxes, Emergency Medical
Services (EMS), Vehicle Registration Fees, Florence County Utility System, and Florence County
Landfill receivables which historically experience uncollectible accounts. All other receivables are
generally collectible and any doubtful accounts are considered immaterial.

Due from Other Governments - Receivables from state, federal, or other local government
agencies are recorded as revenue for the period of the allocation or as earned based on
expenditures made for which reimbursement is due.

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Changes in the net pension liability and the total other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability due to liability experience, assumption changes,
investment earnings differences, and changes in proportionate share not included in pension or
OPEB expense, as applicable, and employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of
the net pension liability and the total OPEB liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources - As of June 30, 2022, the County reported $822,889 of property
tax and $170,059 of grant revenue as deferred inflows of resources in governmental funds. These
items are recognized as unavailable revenues in the governmental funds balance sheet as they
have not been collected within the available period. The County reports deferred inflows from lease
receipts which are amortized into lease revenues over the remaining life of the individual leases.
Additionally, changes in net pension liability and the total OPEB liability due to liability experience,
assumption changes, investment earnings differences, and changes in proportionate share not
included in pension or OPEB expense, as applicable, are reported as deferred inflows of resources.

When debt is refunded, the reacquisition price less the net carrying amount of the old debt is
calculated. The amount is either a gain or loss on refunding that is recognized as a component of
interest expense, over the shorter of the new debt’s life or the remaining life of the old debt.

Inventories - Inventories are maintained for major items used by the governmental funds and
enterprise funds. Inventories of the governmental funds are valued at cost. The purchases method
is used to account for most inventories of the governmental funds. The purchases method is not
used for the drug and supply inventory of the EMS system since this inventory is held for use for
EMS patients and is not expended until used. The purchases method is not used for the fuel truck
inventory as well and is not expended until used. The amount of these inventories at June 30, 2022
is $270,494. Under the purchases method, disbursements for inventory-type items in the
governmental funds are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase. Supplies transferred
to and consumed by the individual departments are considered a reduction of the inventory
expenditure account and an expenditure of the department.

Reported inventories accounted for using the consumption method in the governmental funds are
equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates the assets are unavailable for
appropriation even though they are a component of reported assets.

Prepaid Items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods

and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The County uses the consumption method when accounting for these prepaid items.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Interfund Receivables and Payables - Short-term loans or advances between funds are
accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and payable accounts as due to/from funds.
Transactions that constitute flows of cash or goods, from one fund to another without the
requirement for repayment, are reported as interfund transfers. Additionally, reimbursements of a
fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from that fund, which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditure or expense in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
the expenditure or expense in the fund that is reimbursed.

Restricted Assets - Restricted assets include monies or other resources, the use of which is
subject to constraints that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants),
grants, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads and bridges), and right-to-use leased assets are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value
at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital
assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued) - Property, equipment, and infrastructure assets of the primary
government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Right-to-use leased building 4
Building improvements 20
Infrastructure:

Roads 20

Bridges 40
Machinery & equipment 10
Right-to-use leased equipment 5
Vehicles 5
Furniture & fixtures 10
Computer equipment 5
Right-to-use museum collection 8

Bond Charges - All bond issue costs are expensed in the period incurred. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the related bond issue using the effective
interest method. In the fund financial statements, governmental-fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of the debt issued is reported as another financing source.

Lease Accounting (Lessee) - The County is a lessee for noncancellable leases including land,
buildings, equipment, and a museum collection. The County recognizes a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset in the government-wide financial statements. The County
recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more. At the commencement
of a lease, the County initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments
expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the
principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount
of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date,
plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life or the term of the lease.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Lease Accounting (Lessee) (Continued) - Key estimates and judgements related to leases
include how the County determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease
payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments:

The County uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate
charged by the lessor is not provided, the County generally uses its estimated incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease payments included in the
measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option prices that
the County is reasonably certain to exercise. The County monitors changes in circumstances that
would require a remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain
changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported with long-term
debt on the Statement of Net Position. The General Fund, Hospitality Fund, and Florence County
Landfill Fund are typically used to liquidate lease liabilities.

Lease Accounting (Lessor) - The County is the lessor for certain noncancellable leases of real
property and spaces within existing County buildings. The County recognizes a lease receivable
and a deferred inflow of resources for deferred lease receipts in accordance with these transactions.
At the commencement of a lease, the County initially measures the lease receivable at the present
value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease
receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made. The deferred inflow of
resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease
payments made at or before the lease commencement date, less certain other amounts to be paid
by the County (if any). Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is amortized into lease
revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the County determines (1) the discount

rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease
payments.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Lease Accounting (Lessor) (Continued) - The lease agreements entered into by the County as
lessor do not include stated interest rates. Therefore, the County generally uses its estimated
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease payments included in the
measurement of the lease receivable are composed of fixed payments that the County will receive
over the term of the lease agreement.

The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease
and will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources if certain changes occur
that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease.

Compensation for Future Absences - The County's vacation policy provides for the accumulation
of up to twenty-five days earned vacation as of the end of the calendar year with such leave being
fully vested when earned. Depending on years of service, ten days (for service years 1-10), fifteen
days (for service years 11-20) or twenty days (for service over twenty years) may accrue for the
current year. Accumulated earned vacation at June 30, 2022, amounted to $2,521,804 in total. The
liability of the governmental funds is recorded as a long-term obligation on the Statement of Net
Position.

The County's sick leave policy provides for accumulation of ninety days earned sick leave.
Depending on years of service, additional days are allowed to accrue for the current year but must
be used within that year or they will be lost. Sick leave does not vest; any unused sick leave at
retirement is lost and is not used in the determination of length of service for retirement purposes.
Since the County has no obligation for accumulated sick leave until actually taken, no accrual has
been made.

Long-term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types
in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and the South Carolina
Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) and additions to/deductions from SCRS’ and PORS’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SCRS or
PORS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Net Position and Fund Balances - In the government-wide financial statements, the difference
between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources represents net position. Net position for the government-wide
statements and proprietary-fund types is comprised of three components — net investment in capital
assets, restricted (distinguished between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted. Net
investment in capital assets represents its net investment in capital assets, net of any related debt.
Restricted net position represents the amount that is restricted for payment of capital-related
borrowings, future debt service payments, and other items. Unrestricted net position represents the
net position available for future operations.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the County reports fund balance within one of the
following fund balance categories:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not spendable for" criterion includes
items that are not to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid items. It also
includes the long-term amounts of loans and notes receivable, as well as property acquired for
resale.

Restricted - Amounts that are either restricted externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or

laws or regulations of other governments or restricted by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Committed - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the County’s highest level of decision-making authority, the County Council. This
formal action is in the form of three readings of an ordinance, which bears the rule of law at the
county level. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the County
Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to
previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balances also incorporate contractual
obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use
in satisfying those contractual requirements. The County recognizes committed fund balances that
have been approved for specific purposes by the County Council before fiscal year end.

Assigned - Amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to be used for specific purposes
but are not restricted or committed. The authority for making an assignment is not required to be the
County’s highest level of decision-making authority and as such, the nature of actions necessary to
remove or modify an assignment does not require the County’s highest level of authority. Assigned
fund balance amounts in the County’s financial statements represent amounts approved by the
County Council to be transferred and spent after fiscal year end.

Unassigned Fund Balance - The unassigned fund balance classification includes amounts that
have not been assigned to other funds and have not been restricted, committed, or assigned for
specific purposes. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund
balance. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may
be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

Based on the County's policies regarding fund balance classifications as noted above, the County
considers amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to be spent when the corresponding
expenditures that have been designated by the County Council or donors have been incurred. After
these fund balances have been depleted, unassigned fund balance will be considered to have been
spent.

Government-wide and fund financial statements must be presented using an all-inclusive format.
That is, the results of the current period's activities are to be reported as an addition to (or a
deduction from) equity at the beginning of the period to arrive at the closing equity balance. Thus,
changes in net position on the government-wide Statement of Activities is added to (or deducted
from) net position - beginning of the fiscal year to arrive at net position - end of the fiscal year.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Non-exchange Transaction, Contributed Capital, and Transfers - Pursuant to GASB
Codification Section N50, deeded properties and federal, state, and local government assistance in
the form of nonoperating grants that are permanent in nature and restricted for the construction or
acquisition of specific property and equipment have been recorded as nonoperating revenue.

Future Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs - In accordance with GASB Codification
Section L10, the County recognizes expenses for landfill closure and post-closure care costs over
the life of the landfill's operation in proportion to the usage of the landfill's total capacity. Federal and
state regulations related to landfill closure procedures are comprehensive and require post-closure
care and monitoring for a period extending either twenty (20) years, for construction and demolition
waste landfills, or thirty (30) years, for municipal solid waste landfills, after closure.

Property Taxes - The County assesses and levies property taxes in accordance with applicable
laws of the State of South Carolina. Real property and personal property owned and used in the
County, except that which is exempt from taxation under the constitution and laws of the state, is
subject to taxation. An annual ordinance establishing the millage rate associated with the levy is
adopted each year as part of the budget process.

Ad valorem taxes receivable are accrued as revenue for collections 60 days subsequent
to year end; the remaining balance is not accrued because it is not considered to be both
"measurable and available". The amount of the receivable is reduced by an allowance for
doubtful accounts and is based on historical collection experience (see Note 4).

An amount equal to the net receivable less the 60 days subsequent collections is shown as deferred
inflows of resources on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. The following dates are applicable
to property taxes:

Lien date December 31
Levy date July 1
Due date January 15

Collection date March 15
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity
(Continued)

Property Taxes (Continued) - According to South Carolina State law, ad valorem taxes levied on
July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year, are due January 15. Penalties accrue at that time. On
March 15 delinquent costs also begin to accrue. On June 30, they are materially past due and,
consequently, cannot be considered as a resource which can be used to finance the government’s
operations for the current fiscal year although the amount due is measurable.

For collection purposes, ad valorem taxes receivable are written off at the end of ten years in
accordance with South Carolina State law. For reporting purposes, this receivable also includes
costs and fees relating to property taxes.

Sales Taxes - During November 1993, the County’s voters approved a referendum to impose a one
percent local option sales tax. This tax was imposed beginning May 1, 1994. All of the revenue
collected from this tax is being used as a credit against ad valorem taxes and vehicle taxes. This
credit first appeared on ad valorem tax notices mailed November 1994 and on vehicle tax notices
beginning with those notices for January 1995. May and June taxes which were received by the
County after fiscal year-end are shown as sales tax receivable in the asset section of the balance
sheet.

Program and General Revenue - The County charges the public fees for building permits,
inspections, marriage licenses, document filing fees, ambulance (EMS) services, and other program
related services. These fees, as well as traffic violations and grant revenues, are recorded as
program revenue in the statement of activities. General revenue reported by the County include
property taxes, fees-in-lieu of taxes, hospitality taxes, state-shared revenue, business licenses, and
other government-imposed, non-exchange fees not specific to a particular program (e.g., business
licenses and franchise fees, which are general revenue taxes in lieu of program specific fees).
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NOTE 2.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to May 1, the County Administrator and Finance Director submit to the County Council a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted by the County to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4, The County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments or
between departments. Revisions that alter total expenditures of a fund must be approved by
the County Council.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the fiscal
year for all funds of the County; however, legal budgets are adopted only for the General
Fund and the following nine Special Revenue Funds: Law Library Special Revenue Fund,
Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund, Economic Development Partnership
Special Revenue Fund, Local Hospitality Tax Special Revenue Fund, Local Accommodations
Fee Special Revenue Fund, Sheriffs Camps Special Revenue Fund, Road System
Maintenance Fee Special Revenue Fund, the Sheriff Sex Offender Special Revenue Fund,
and the Unified Fire District Special Revenue Fund.

6. The County provides that the whole or any part of any appropriation provided for grants, and
South Carolina accommodations tax budgeted amounts for outlays of any activity remaining
unexpended or unencumbered at the close of the fiscal year shall remain in full force and
effect and shall be held available for the following fiscal year, except any such appropriations
as the County Council by ordinance may abandon. All other appropriations, which are not
encumbered, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

7. The budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis that differs from generally accepted
accounting principles in that expenditures are budgeted on a basis that includes
encumbrances. Budgetary control over expenditures is exercised by the County Council on a
departmental basis to establish more administrative control than State law requires. Legal
level of budgetary control is at the fund level.
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NOTE 2.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

The actual results of operations are presented in the General Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - in accordance with the
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison between actual results and budget.

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations and fund balances at fiscal year-end on
the GAAP basis to the budgetary basis for the General Fund are as follows:

Net Change in Fund Balance at
Fund Balance Fiscal Year End

GAAP basis $ 1,844,135 $ 28,813,001
Increases (decreases) due to expenditures:
Encumbrances (290,572) (349,684)
Inventories (33,949) (276,059)
Cash - Juror fee accounts (14,271) 8,907
Budgetary basis $ 1,505,343 $ 28,196,165

B. Encumbrances

The County maintains encumbrance accounts which are considered to be "budgetary accounts".
Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end represent the estimated amounts of the expenditures
ultimately to be incurred if unperformed contracts in process at fiscal year-end are completed.
Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

At June 30, 2022, $349,684 of open purchase orders and contracts were outstanding, related to

general operations. These amounts are included in “Assigned Fund Balance” in the fund balance
section of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Encumbrances do not lapse at fiscal year-end.
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NOTE 2.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
C. Fund Deficits

The Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund and Florence County E911 System
proprietary fund had deficit fund balances of $125,037 and $208,591, respectively, as of June 30,
2022.

The deficit for the Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund was caused by a significant
decline in Court-related fines and fee revenue for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2021
due to court closures as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. ARPA replacement revenue in the
amount of $120,400 will be provided for 2020 and 2021 lost revenues. Additional lost revenue will
be provided for 2022. Going forward in the fiscal year 2024 budget, the General Fund will begin
supplementing the revenues to continue providing this service required by the State Attorney
General’s Office.

The deficit for the E911 System Proprietary Fund has been caused by revenues being exceeded by
expenditures for multiple years. Depreciation expense over this time period has depleted the fund
balance. A majority of the capital assets are now fully depreciated and this expense has been
declining rapidly on an annual basis. Additionally, two full time employees were moved from the
E911 System fund to the Central Dispatch and the Emergency Management departments in the
General Fund. Lastly, interfund charges from the E911 System fund totaling $258,504 per annum
have been eliminated.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
D. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual Funds

The following table shows the excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Appropriations Expenditures Excess
Victim Witness/Assistance Fund $ 220,812 $ 225,043 $ 4,231)
Economic Development Partnership Fund 562,085 591,276 (29,191)
Local Accommodations Fee Fund 3,128,791 3,150,699 (21,908)
Total excess of expenditures over appropriations  $ 3,911,688 $ 3,967,018 $ (55,330)

The excess of expenditures over budget for the Victim Witness/Assistance Special Revenue Fund
was the result of approved and required travel costs exceeding the adopted budget of $3,650 for the
Victim Witness Advocate Coordinator by $6,118.

The excess of expenditures over budget for the Economic Development Partnership Special
Revenue Fund was the result of salaries and benefits exceeding the adopted budget.

The excess of expenditures over budget for the Local Accommodations Fee Special Revenue Fund
was the result of 1-95 interchange lighting cost increase of over $14,000 or 13% from fiscal year
2021 and the approved $9,647 share of the replacement of a 60-foot aluminum gate.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned. The County does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk aside from following state statutes. As of June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of
the County’s deposits was $257,942,549 and the bank balance was $263,682,368. As of June 30,
2022, all of the County’s deposits are covered by FDIC insurance or by collateral held by the
pledging financial institution’s trust department in the County’s name. As of June 30, 2022, all of the
County’s bank balance was insured or collateralized.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments — Custodial credit risk of investments is the risk that, in the
event of a bank failure or the failure of a counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the
value of its investments. The County does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk. At
June 30, 2022, the County’s investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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NOTE 3.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair Value - Investments — The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs. Level 3
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The County's investment in the Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) is valued at net asset value and is classified as cash and cash equivalents
on the Statement of Net Position.

The County’s fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022 consist of its investments in fixed
income securities and are valued using readily determinable market values, meaning there is a
quoted price for identical assets in an active market (Level 1 inputs). The County’s investment in the
LGIP is valued at net asset value.

As of June 30, 2022, the County had investments in U.S. government agency obligations and
investments with the South Carolina State Treasurer's Office in the LGIP with fair values and
maturities as follows:

Investment Maturities

Three Months Three to Twelve More Than

Investment Type Fair Value or Less Months One Year

U.S. Government Agency Obligations $ 1,603,767 $ -3 - $1,603,767
South Carolina Local Government

Investment Pool 219,117,983 219,117,983 - -

Total investments by fair value level $220,721,750 $219,117,983 $ - $1,603,767

The investments in the LGIP are invested with the South Carolina State Treasurer's Office, which
established the LGIP pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The LGIP is
an investment trust fund, in which public monies in excess of current needs, which are under the
custody of any county treasurer or any governing body of a political subdivision of the State, may be
deposited. The LGIP's investments are carried at fair value determined annually based upon quoted
market prices for identical or similar assets. The total fair value of the LGIP is apportioned to the
entities with funds invested on an equal basis for each share owned, which are acquired at a cost of
$1. Funds may be deposited by LGIP participants at any time and may be withdrawn upon 24 hours’
notice. Financial statements for the LGIP may be obtained by writing the South Carolina
Office of the State Treasurer, Local Government Investment Pool, Post Office Box 11778,
Columbia, South Carolina 29211-1950.
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk — The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates. However, the County is accepting interest rate risk since the long- term investment maturities
are matched with capital projects.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Statutes authorized the County to invest in obligations of the State
of South Carolina and any of its political units, United States Government obligations fully insured or
guaranteed by the United States Government, repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit
which are secured by direct obligations of the State of South Carolina or the United States
Government, and savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an
agency of the United States Government. The County has no investment policy that would further
limit its investment choices.

As of June 30, 2022, the County had the following balances in cash and cash equivalents:

Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 229,200,522
Investments 1,603,767

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Cash and cash equivalents 28,742,027
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 259,546,316
RECEIVABLES

Property taxes receivable were as follows at June 30, 2022:

Property Taxes Allowance for Property Taxes

Receivable Doubtful Accounts Receivable, Net

General Fund $ 3,472,558 $ (2,550,219) $ 922,339
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,332,662 (854,566) 478,096
Total Governmental Funds $ 4,805,220 $ (3,404,785) $ 1,400,435
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Other receivables were as follows at June 30, 2022:

Other
Receivables

Other
Receivables, Net

Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts

Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 6,500,668 $ (5,226,696) $ 1,273,972
Grant Special Revenue Fund 1,209 - 1,209
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 242,883 - 242,883
Total Governmental Funds 6,744,760 (5,226,696) 1,518,064
Enterprise Funds:

Florence County Landfill Fund 42,000 - 42,000
Florence County E911 System Fund 91,422 - 91,422
Total Enterprise Funds 133,422 - 133,422
Total $ 6,878,182 $ (5,226,696) $ 1,651,486
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the Debt
Service Fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, (2) move unrestricted
General Fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations and (3) move revenues from various funds into
the General Fund also in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers In
CPST3 Nonmajor

Capital Projects Governmental Total Primary
Transfers Out General Fund Fund Funds Government
General Fund $ - $ - $ 1,089,253 $ 1,089,253
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 839,631 970,001 3,478,430 5,288,062
Total Governmental Funds 839,631 970,001 4,567,683 6,377,315
Florence County E911 System Fund - - 258,504 258,504
Total Enterprise Funds - - 258,504 258,504
Total Transfers $ 839,631 $ 970,001 $ 4,826,187 $ 6,635,819
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the changes in the capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Beginning Deletions and Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land $ 19,302,589 $ 182,527 $ (3584) $ 19,481,532
Construction in progress 1,690,706 5,066,585 - 6,757,291

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 20,993,295 5,249,112 (3,584) 26,238,823
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and additions 151,981,744 6,136,752 - 158,118,496

Improvements other than buildings 9,938,910 910,605 - 10,849,515

Vehicles 17,367,717 1,527,508 (620,345) 18,274,880

Furniture and fixtures 1,402,074 - - 1,402,074

Machinery and equipment 52,375,357 457,977 (45,151) 52,788,183

Infrastructure 76,622,197 4,184,349 - 80,806,546
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 309,687,999 13,217,191 (665,496) 322,239,694
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and additions (38,591,215) (3,189,930) - (41,781,145)

Improvements other than buildings (7,309,639) (529,655) - (7,839,294)

Vehicles (13,211,809) (1,684,118) 602,988 (14,292,939)

Furniture and fixtures (849,310) (52,570) - (901,880)

Machinery and equipment (46,651,172) (2,151,241) 45,151 (48,757,262)

Infrastructure (53,863,662) (1,846,202) - (55,709,864)
Total accumulated depreciation (160,476,807) (9,453,716) 648,139 (169,282,384)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 149,211,192 3,763,475 (17,357) 152,957,310
Governmental activities capital

assets, net excluding leased assets $ 170,204,487 $ 9,012,587 $ (20,941) 179,196,133
Leased assets, net (Note 8) 2,657,131
Total capital assets, net as reported in the

Statement of Net Position $ 181,853,264
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Capital assets of the proprietary funds at June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Beginning Deletions and Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land $ 2,481,677 $ - $ (42,000) $ 2,439,677

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 2,481,677 - (42,000) 2,439,677
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and additions 112,842 - - 112,842

Improvements other than buildings 1,055,140 - - 1,055,140

Vehicles 1,741,985 - - 1,741,985

Furniture and fixtures 20,454 - - 20,454

Machinery and equipment 4,461,760 - - 4,461,760
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 7,392,181 - - 7,392,181
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and additions (112,842) - - (112,842)

Improvements other than buildings (804,396) (19,503) 585 (823,314)

Vehicles (1,741,400) - (585) (1,741,985)

Furniture and fixtures (20,454) - - (20,454)

Machinery and equipment (3,895,026) (251,378) - (4,146,404)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,574,118) (270,881) - (6,844,999)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 818,063 (270,881) - 547,182
Business-type activities capital

assets, net excluding leased assets $ 3,299,740 $ (270,881) $ (42,000) 2,986,859
Leased assets, net (Note 8) 22,854
Total capital assets, net as reported in the

Statement of Net Position $ 3,009,713
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NOTE 7.

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 3,531,378
Public safety 1,561,273
Economic development 51,986
Public w orks, including infrastructure 2,632,623
Health 767,642
Culture and recreation 908,814
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 9,453,716

Business-type activities:

Florence County Landfill Fund $ 19,503
Florence County E911 System Fund 251,378
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 270,881

The Civic Center is operated as a joint venture between the City of Florence and the County.
Accordingly, the capital assets of the Civic Center are not included in the capital assets of the
County. Refer to Note 1 for additional information.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 2022, the County was permitted by the South Carolina Constitution to incur general
obligation bonded indebtedness in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed value of all taxable
property of the County. As of June 30, 2022, the County was within the limits of this requirement.
The general obligation bonds shown as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial
statements are collateralized by the full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the County.
They bear interest payable semiannually, at rates varying approximately from 1.23% to 4.00%.
Principal and interest payments are to be made from the applicable Debt Service Funds.

56



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

On November 22, 2011, the County issued $5,000,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011. These bonds bear interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.75%. The
first interest payment of $29,733 was due March 1, 2012, and semiannually thereafter. The first
principal payment was due March 1, 2012, and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both
principal and interest due March 1, 2026. The proceeds of these bonds were used to refund the
remaining outstanding portion of the Series 2002 Florence County General Obligation Bonds and
for various capital improvement projects.

On July 21, 2015, the County issued $3,560,000 of Florence County General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2015B (Florence County Fire Protection District). These bonds bear interest at a rate of
2.03%. The first interest payment of $50,186 was due April 1, 2016, and semiannually thereafter.
The first principal payment was due October 1, 2016, and annually thereafter, with the final payment
for both principal and interest due October 1, 2030. The proceeds of these bonds were used to
refund a bond anticipation note originally issued on December 17, 2014, that was due August 1,
2015. The proceeds of the note were used to refund various general obligation bonds and other fire
district debt, as well as fund various firefighting equipment.

On September 15, 2015, the County issued $8,207,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2015C (Florence County Fire Protection District). These bonds bear interest at a rate
of 3.19%. The first interest payment of $142,537 was due April 1, 2016, and semiannually
thereafter. The first principal payment was due October 1, 2016, and annually thereafter, with the
final payment for both principal and interest due October 1, 2035. The proceeds of these bonds are
being used to fund various firefighting equipment.

On September 19, 2018, the County issued $1,000,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2018C. These bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.92%. The first interest payment of
$13,140 was due March 1, 2019, and annually thereafter. The first principal payment was due
March 1, 2019, and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due
March 1, 2028. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to partially fund the construction of a
new fire station.

On June 17, 2020, the County issued $22,000,000 of Florence County General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2020B. These bonds were issued at a premium of $1,163,167 and bear interest rates
ranging from 1.80% of 4.00%. The first interest payment of $188,249 was due on October 1, 2020,
and semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due on April 1, 2021, and annually
thereafter. The final payment for both principal and interest is due on April 1, 2040. The proceeds of
these bonds are being used to purchase industrial properties located throughout Florence County.
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On March 11, 2021, the County issued $120,000,000 of Florence County General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2021A. These bonds were issued at a premium of $22,620,841 and bear an interest rate of
5.00%. The first interest payment of $4,333,333 was due on December 1, 2021, and semiannually
thereafter. The first principal payment was due on June 1, 2022, and annually thereafter. The final
payment for both principal and interest is due on June 1, 2028. The proceeds of these bonds are
being used to construct projects located throughout Florence County that were approved by voter
referendum on November 3, 2020.

General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2022, are comprised of the following:

Current
Rates Final Maturity
Interest Maturity Amount of Principal
Rates Fiscal Year Outstanding Installments
Florence County General
Obligation Refunding Bonds
$5,000,000, Series 2011 2.38% 2023 $ 385,000 $ 385,000
2.50% 2024 320,000 -
2.63% 2025 330,000 -
2.75% 2026 340,000 -

$ 1,375,000 $ 385,000

Florence County General
Obligation Bonds

$3,650,000, Series 2015B 2.03% 2023 $ 427,000 $ 427,000
2.03% 2024 172,000 -
2.03% 2025 176,000 -
2.03% 2026 76,000 -
2.03% 2027 77,000 -
2.03% 2028 79,000 -
2.03% 2029 81,000 -
2.03% 2030 45,000 -
2.03% 2031 45,000 -

$ 1,178,000 $ 427,000
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Current
Rates Final Maturity
Interest Maturity Amount of Principal
Rates Fiscal Year Outstanding Installments
Florence County General
Obligation Bonds
$8,207,000, Series 2015C 3.19% 2023 $ 96,000 $ 96,000
3.19% 2024 363,000 -
3.19% 2025 374,000 -
3.19% 2026 490,000 -
3.19% 2027 506,000 -
3.19% 2028 521,000 -
3.19% 2029 538,000 -
3.19% 2030 593,000 -
3.19% 2031 612,000 -
3.19% 2032 678,000 -
3.19% 2033 699,000 -
3.19% 2034 722,000 -
3.19% 2035 745,000 -
3.19% 2036 768,000 -
$ 7,705,000 $ 96,000
Florence County General
Obligation Bonds
$1,000,000, Series 2018C 2.92% 2023 $ 100,000 $ 100,000
2.92% 2024 100,000 -
2.92% 2025 105,000 -
2.92% 2026 110,000 -
2.92% 2027 110,000 -
2.92% 2028 115,000 -

$ 640,000 $ 100,000
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NOTE 7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Current
Rates Final Maturity
Interest Maturity Amount of Principal
Rates Fiscal Year Outstanding Installments
Florence County General
Obligation Bonds

$22,000,000, Series 2020B 4.00% 2023 $ 835,000 $ 835,000
4.00% 2024 870,000 -
4.00% 2025 905,000 -
4.00% 2026 940,000 -
4.00% 2027 980,000 -
4.00% 2028 1,015,000 -
4.00% 2029 1,060,000 -
4.00% 2030 1,100,000 -
1.80% 2031 1,145,000 -
1.90% 2032 1,165,000 -
1.95% 2033 1,185,000 -
2.00% 2034 1,210,000 -
2.10% 2035 1,235,000 -
2.20% 2036 1,260,000 -
2.30% 2037 1,290,000 -
2.40% 2038 1,320,000 -
2.50% 2039 1,350,000 -
2.50% 2040 1,385,000 -

$ 20,250,000 $ 835,000

Florence County General
Obligation Bonds

$120,000,000, Series 2021 5.00% 2023 $ 15,640,000 $ 15,640,000
5.00% 2024 16,420,000 -

5.00% 2025 17,240,000 -

5.00% 2026 18,105,000 -

5.00% 2027 19,010,000 -

5.00% 2028 19,960,000 -

$ 106,375,000 $ 15,640,000

Total general obligation bonds $ 137,523,000

“

17,483,000
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Annual principal and interest requirements on these General Obligation Bonds are as follows as of
June 30, 2022:

General Obligation

General Obligation Bonds Refunding Bonds Total
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 $ 17,098,000 $ 6,182,908 $ 385,000 $ 35,156 $ 17,483,000 $ 6,218,064
2024 17,925,000 5,351,188 320,000 26,013 18,245,000 5,377,201
2025 18,800,000 4,477,180 330,000 18,013 19,130,000 4,495,193
2026 19,721,000 3,559,576 340,000 9,350 20,061,000 3,568,926
2027 20,683,000 2,596,075 - - 20,683,000 2,596,075
2028-2032 28,752,000 3,329,036 - - 28,752,000 3,329,036
2033-2037 9,114,000 1,099,677 - - 9,114,000 1,099,677
2038-2040 4,055,000 203,049 - - 4,055,000 203,049
$ 136,148,000 $ 26,798,689 § 1,375,000 $ 88,5632 $ 137,523,000 $ 26,887,221

On December 8, 2015, the County issued $3,238,000 of Hospitality Fee Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2015. These bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.9445%. The first interest payment of $21,982
was due March 1, 2016, and semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 1,
2016, and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due March 1,
2035. The proceeds of these bonds were used to refund the Series 2011 Hospitality Fee Revenue
Bonds, which were issued to fund a portion of the cost of the construction of a new museum.

These bonds contain a provision that in an event of default, the bondholders of at least fifty-one

percent (51%) of the outstanding bonds, may declare the entire unpaid principal amount of the
bonds, together with all accrued and unpaid interest, to be due and payable immediately.
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Annual principal and interest requirements on these Hospitality Fee Refunding Revenue Bonds are
as follows as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 149,000 $ 68,519 $ 217,519
2024 154,000 64,131 218,131
2025 158,000 59,597 217,597
2026 163,000 54,944 217,944
2027 168,000 50,145 218,145

2028-2032 917,000 173,548 1,090,548

2033-2035 618,000 36,747 654,747

$ 2,327,000 $ 507,631 $ 2,834,631

On December 17, 2015, the County issued $16,015,000 of Accommodations Fee Revenue Bonds
with interest at rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. The bonds mature on May 1, 2040, and the
proceeds of the bonds are being used to construct an expansion of the Civic Center.

These bonds contain a provision that in an event of default, the bondholders of at least fifty-one
percent (51%) of the outstanding bonds, may declare the entire unpaid principal amount of the
bonds, together with all accrued and unpaid interest, to be due and payable immediately.

Annual principal and interest requirements on these Accommodations Fee Revenue Bonds are as
follows as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 215,000 $ 647,338 $ 862,338
2024 240,000 638,738 878,738
2025 260,000 629,138 889,138
2026 285,000 618,738 903,738
2027 310,000 607,338 917,338

2028-2032 3,905,000 2,722,552 6,627,552

2033-2037 5,810,000 1,634,000 7,444,000

2038-2040 4,315,000 328,689 4,643,689

$ 15,340,000 $ 7,826,531 $ 23,166,531
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

On March 31, 2021, the County issued $7,456,000 of Series 2021 Installment Purchase Revenue
Refunding Bonds (the “Series 2021 Refunding Bonds”) with an interest rate of 1.20%. The County
issued these bonds to refund the remaining $7,415,000 of the outstanding Series 2017A Installment
Purchase Revenue Bonds (the “Series 2017A Bonds”) that were originally issued to finance the
construction of a multi-level parking garage and purchase an industrial spec building. The Series
2017A Bonds had an interest rate that ranged from 2.61% to 4.41%.

This refunding reduced total debt service payments over the next five (5) years by $225,882 and
resulted in an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the new and old debt
service requirements discounted at the effective interest rate, less bond issuance costs) of
$176,973.

Annual principal and interest requirements on the Series 2021 Refunding Bonds are as follows as of
June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,455,000 $ 63,000 $ 1,518,090
2024 1,520,000 45,240 1,565,240
2025 1,511,000 27,054 1,538,054
2026 1,499,000 8,994 1,507,994

$ 5,985,000 $ 144,378  § 6,129,378

On April 22, 2021, the County issued $37,870,000 of Taxable Series 2021 Installment Purchase
Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “Taxable Series 2021 Refunding Bonds”). These bonds were
issued at a discount for $209,968 and with an interest rate of 2.65%. The County issued these
bonds to advance refund $33,575,000 of the Series 2015 Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (the
“Series 2015 Bonds”). The Series 2015 Bonds were issued at a premium for $3,154,824 with
interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 5.00%.

The County deposited the net proceeds of $37,122,830 in an escrow account to provide for all
future debt service on the refunded portion of the Series 2015 Bonds. As a result, that portion of the
2015 Series Bonds is considered defeased and the County has removed the liability from its
financial statements.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The refunding reduced total debt service payments over the next fifteen (15) years by $2,269,908
and resulted in an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the new and old
debt service requirements discounted at the effective interest rate, less bond issuance costs) of
1,364,682. The County recognized a deferred gain on this refunding for $4,080,620 and this amount
is reported as deferred inflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position and will be amortized
over the term of the Taxable Series 2021 Refunding Bonds through interest expense.

Annual principal and interest requirements on the Taxable Series 2021 Refunding Bonds are as
follows as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 595,000 $ 746,422 $ 1,341,422
2024 595,000 743,566 1,338,566
2025 2,580,000 731,670 3,311,670
2026 2,635,000 706,198 3,341,198
2027 2,685,000 672,252 3,357,252

2028-2032 14,655,000 2,549,571 17,204,571

2033-2036 13,490,000 714,323 14,204,323

$ 37,235,000 $ 6,864,002 $ 44,099,002

On June 30, 2015, the County issued $42,000,000 of Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (the
“Series 2015 Bonds”) with interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 5.00% in order to construct the
Florence County Judicial Center. These bonds were partially refunded by the Taxable Series 2021
Refunding Bonds in the amount of $33,575,000 as noted above. The remaining $5,375,000 remains
a separate obligation of the County.

Annual principal and interest requirements on the Series 2015 Bonds are as follows as of June 30,
2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,790,000 $ 140,000 $ 1,930,000
2026 1,905,000 47,625 1,952,625

$ 3,695,000 $ 187,625 § 3,882,625
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

On March 27, 2013, the County issued a $22,487,000 financed purchase agreement with a fixed
interest rate of 1.825% to refinance an outstanding financed purchase agreement in the amount of
$15,988,947 including interest. The remaining proceeds of the financed purchase agreement were
used to fund capital improvements at the Civic Center and the costs of issuance of the financed
purchased agreement.

This financed purchase agreement contains a provision that in an event of default, the financial
institution shall have the right to declare all payments due to be paid during the original term or the
then current renewal term, to be due and payable immediately and to terminate the term of the
financed purchase agreement and give notice to the County to vacate the property immediately.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under this financed purchase agreement
as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 414,000 $ 47,468 $ 461,468
2024 422,000 39,912 461,912
2025 430,000 32,211 462,211
2026 437,000 24,364 461,364
2027 445,000 16,388 461,388
2028 453,000 8,267 461,267

$ 2,601,000 $ 168,610 § 2,769,610
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On December 23, 2014, the County issued a $5,804,102 financed purchase agreement with a fixed
interest rate of 2.28% as a part of an energy savings performance contract. The contract included
the installation of various heating and air conditioning equipment, lighting, and water conservation
measures.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under this financed purchase agreement
as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 378,254  § 84,152  $ 462,406
2024 396,239 75,376 471,615
2025 414,821 66,184 481,005
2026 434,020 56,563 490,583
2027 453,851 46,499 500,350
2028-2031 1,753,740 76,746 1,830,486

$ 3,830,925 $ 405,520 $ 4,236,445

On August 25, 2016, the County issued a $500,000 financed purchase agreement with a fixed
interest rate of 1.752%. The proceeds of the financed purchase agreement were used to fund a
portion of the cost of lights for a new ball field.

This financed purchase agreement contains a provision that in an event of default, the financial
institution shall have the right to declare the unpaid principal components of the base payments
immediately due and payable.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under this financed purchase agreement
as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 73,824 § 2,609 $ 76,433
2024 75,118 1,316 76,434

$ 148,942  § 3925 $ 152,867
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

As a result of a Supreme Court ruling, the area served by the West Florence Rural Volunteer Fire
Department (the “Fire Department”) was to be included in the Fire and First Responder Fund of
Florence County. As of July 1, 2019, the Fire Department had a $1,100,000 financed purchase
obligation with a fixed interest rate of 3.643%. The proceeds of the financed purchase obligation
were used to purchase a ladder truck. As a result of the Supreme Court ruling, the County assumed
this financed purchase obligation effective July 1, 2019. This financed purchase obligation was paid
in full as of June 30, 2022.

Changes in long-term liabilities by type during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized

as follows:
(Restated) Amount Due
Governmental activities: June 30, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022 in One Year
By type of obligation:
General obligation bonds $ 152,930,000 $ 5851,000 $ (21,258,000) $ 137,523,000 $ 17,483,000
Premium on general
obligation bonds 23,725,850 - (6,358,547) 17,367,303 4,610,994
Hospitality tax bonds 2,472,000 - (145,000) 2,327,000 149,000
Installment purchase
revenue bonds 50,701,000 - (3,786,000) 46,915,000 3,840,000
Accommodations fee
revenue bonds 15,535,000 - (195,000) 15,340,000 215,000
Discount on
revenue bonds (209,968) - 19,555 (190,413) (20,706)
Financed purchases 8,049,786 - (1,468,919) 6,580,867 491,375
Compensated absences 1,880,649 1,967,020 (1,326,755) 2,520,914 1,326,755
Lease liability 3,449,939 14,912 (811,545) 2,653,306 793,717
Net pension liability 76,340,395 - (15,333,530) 61,006,865 -
Total other postemployment
benefit liability 49,457,396 657,703 - 50,115,099 -
$ 384,332,047 $ 8,490,635 $ (50,663,741) $ 342,158,941 $ 28,889,135
Amount Due
Business-type activities: June 30, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022 in One Year
By type of obligation:
Closure/post-closure liability $ 1,852,510 $ 148,201  $ (148,201) $ 1,852,510 $ -
Compensated absences 890 - - 890 890
Lease liability 24,787 - (1,806) 22,981 1,795
Net pension liability 588,277 - (113,828) 474,449 -

$ 2,466,464 $ 148,201  § (263,835) $ 2,350,830 $ 2,685
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. LEASES

The County has entered into multiple noncancelable leases as the lessee for various right-to-use
assets. The incremental borrowing rate varies from 0.316% to 2.419%. As of June 30, 2022, the
County has $2,676,287 outstanding in leases payable. The annual requirements to amortize all
leases payable as of June 30, 2022, including interest payments, are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 793,717  $ 28,961 $ 822,678
2024 793,936 21,719 815,655
2025 266,089 14,777 280,866
2026 205,874 11,447 217,321
2027 145,452 9,058 154,510

2028-2032 448,238 13,758 461,996

$ 2,653,306 $ 99,720 $ 2,753,026

Business-type Activities:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,795 § 455  § 2,250
2024 1,375 425 1,800
2025 1,404 396 1,800
2026 1,433 367 1,800
2027 1,463 337 1,800
2028-2032 7,784 1,216 9,000
2033-2037 7,727 371 8,098

$ 22,981  $ 3,567 $ 26,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. LEASES (CONTINUED)

Leased asset activity for the County’'s governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022,

was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Leased assets:

Buildings

Equipment

Museum collection
Total leased assets

Less accumulated amortization for:
Buildings
Equipment
Museum collection

Total accumulated amortization

Governmental activities total leased
assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Remeasurements Deductions Balance
$ 495,809 $ - $ - $ $ 495,809
1,648,652 14,912 - 1,663,564
1,305,477 - - 1,305,477
3,449,938 14,912 - 3,464,850
- (109,236) - (109,236)
- (553,430) - (553,430)
- (145,053) - (145,053)
- (807,719) - (807,719)
$ 3,449,938 $ (792,807) $ - $ 2,657,131

Leased asset activity for the County’s business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2022,

was as follows:

Business-type Activities:
Leased assets:

Land
Total leased assets

Less accumulated amortization for:
Land
Total accumulated amortization

Business-type activities total leased
assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Remeasurements Deductions Balance
$ 24,787 $ - $ - $ 24,787
24,787 - - 24,787
- (1,933) - (1,933)
- (1,933) - (1,933)
$ 24,787 $ (1,933) $ - 22,854
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COSTS

Pursuant to the Solid Waste Management Act (the “Act”) of 1991, the County must operate a
Subtitle D landfill in compliance with the provisions of the Act, to continue to accept solid waste into
its landfill after October 1995. Among the requirements of a Subtitle D operation are installation of
synthetic liners in all filled areas, installation of a cap over the filled areas at the time of closure, and
funding of a post-closure care account to defray costs of monitoring and compliance after closure.
On October 5, 1995, the County received a six-month extension on compliance with the Act and did
not have to operate a Subtitle D landfill until April 9, 1996. On April 9, 1996, the County closed the
vertical expansion portion of the landfill and contracted with a private company to transport the
County's solid waste to another landfill.

Since the County elected to close the vertical expansion portion of the landfill, the County will now
incur costs for closure of this portion of the landfill as well as post-closure care costs such as the
purchase of liability insurance to protect the County in the event of an incident of contamination and
the monitoring of this portion of the landfill for a thirty-year period. These costs are estimated at
$1,852,510 at June 30, 2022, and have been funded by user fees which were being collected
through September 1995. Since the vertical expansion portion of the landfill was closed on April 9,
1996, the estimated amount for closure and post-closure care costs have been fully accrued at
June 30, 2022. Costs for closure and post-closure care are based on engineering estimates and are
subject to change based on various factors, some of which include inflation, deflation, changes in
technology, and changes in laws or regulations.

The Act, which was amended on June 23, 1995, requires the County to adopt one, or a combination
of a few, financial assurance mechanisms that would bind and legally enforce the County to make
the payments necessary for closure and post-closure care costs. The County has chosen the local
government financial test as its financial assurance mechanism. This test requires that the Finance
Director provide certification annually that the County meets certain financial ratios and certain other
criteria in order to comply with financial assurance under the Act. The South Carolina Department of
Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC) is the State agency charged with enforcing the Act in
the State of South Carolina. SCDHEC has determined that the County has met the provisions of the
local government financial test for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and, therefore, it is not
necessary for the County to restrict cash to fund closure and post-closure care costs.
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NOTE 10.

PENSION PLANS

Overview

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), created July 1, 2012, is the state
agency responsible for the administration and management of the various Retirement Systems and
retirement programs of the state of South Carolina, including the State Optional Retirement
Program and the S.C. Deferred Compensation Program, as well as the state’s employee insurance
programs. As such, PEBA is responsible for administering the South Carolina Retirement Systems’
five defined benefit pension plans. PEBA has an 11-member Board of Directors, appointed by the
Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as custodian, co-trustee and co-fiduciary
of the Systems and the assets of the retirement trust funds. The Retirement System Investment
Commission (Commission as the governing body, RSIC as the agency), created by the General
Assembly in 2005, has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds’ assets.
The Commission, an eight-member board, serves as co-trustee and co-fiduciary for the assets of
the retirement trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFAA), which consists
of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the actuary of the
Systems.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Systems and additions to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined
on the accrual basis of accounting as they are reported by the Systems in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair
value.

PEBA issues an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) containing financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The ACFR is
publicly available through the Retirement Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or
a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South
Carolina 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary government of the state of South
Carolina and, therefore, retirement trust fund financial information is also included in the ACFR.

Plan Description

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for
teachers and employees of the State of South Carolina and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers
employees of state agencies, public school districts, higher education institutions, other participating
local subdivisions of government and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General at or
after the November 2012 general election.
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NOTE 10.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description (Continued)

The SCRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective
July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for
the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for teachers and employees of the State of
South Carolina and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of state agencies, public
school districts, higher education institutions, other participating local subdivisions of government
and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General at or after the November 2012 general
election.

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan, was established July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-
11-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits
to police officers and firefighters. PORS also covers peace officers, coroners, probate judges and
magistrates.

Membership
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief
summary of the requirements under each system is presented below.

SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute
to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November
2012 general election. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership
prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective
date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

PORS - To be eligible for PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of his
employment, by election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and
detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control property destruction by fire; or to serve as a peace
officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the
Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in PORS.
Magistrates are required to participate in PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other
than magistrates and probate judges, must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least
1,600 hours per year to this work, unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the system
with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee
member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class
Three member.
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NOTE 10.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the South Carolina
Code of Laws. Key elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of
service, and average final compensation/current annual salary. A brief summary of benefit terms for
each system is presented below.

SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years of credited service
regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at
age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with
at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the
Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member's age and the member’s creditable service
equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a
reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five or eight-year earned service requirement,
respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired
members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. The annual retirement
allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one percent
or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the
preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement
provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the
second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28
years of service credit had they not retired.

PORS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of
age. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of
age. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a deferred annuity at age 55
with five or eight years of earned service, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available
to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit
program. Accidental death benefits are also provided upon the death of an active member working
for a covered employer whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while
in the performance of duty. The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants
is increased by the lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants
in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.
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NOTE 10.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contributions

Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting actuary to ensure applicable
contribution rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws. Under these provisions, SCRS and PORS contribution requirements must be sufficient to
maintain an amortization period for the financing of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
over a period that does not exceed the number of years scheduled in state statute. Legislation in
2017 increased, but also established a ceiling for SCRS and PORS employee contribution rates.
Effective July 1, 2017, employee rates were increased to a capped rate of 9.00 percent for SCRS
and 9.75 percent for PORS. The legislation also increased employer contribution rates beginning
July 1, 2017, for both SCRS and PORS by two percentage points and further scheduled employer
contribution rates to increase by a minimum of one percentage point each year in accordance with
state statute. However, the General Assembly postponed the one percent increase in the SCRS
and PORS employer contribution rates that was scheduled to go into effect beginning July 1, 2020.
If the scheduled contributions are not sufficient to meet the funding periods set in state statute, the
Board shall increase the employer contribution rates as necessary to meet the funding periods set
for the applicable year. The maximum funding period of SCRS and PORS is scheduled to be
reduced over a ten-year schedule from 30 years beginning fiscal year 2018 to 20 years by fiscal
year 2028.

Additionally, the Board is prohibited from decreasing the SCRS and PORS contribution rates until
the funded ratio is at least 85 percent. If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems
for funding purposes shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued
liability of the system (the funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than 85 percent, then the Board,
effective on the following July 1, may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a
finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than 85 percent. If contribution rates
are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the
system shows a funded ratio of less than 85 percent, then effective on the following July 1, and
annually thereafter as necessary, the Board shall increase the then current contribution rates until a
subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater
than 85 percent. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County contributed $3,820,649 to the
SCRS plan and $1,948,657 to the PORS plan.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contributions (Continued)
Required employee contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:

South Carolina Retirement System
Employee Class Two 9.00% of earnable compensation
Employee Class Three 9.00% of earnable compensation

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
Employee Class Two 9.75% of earnable compensation
Employee Class Three 9.75% of earnable compensation

Required employer contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:

South Carolina Retirement System

Employee Class Two 16.41% of earnable compensation
Employee Class Three 16.41% of earnable compensation
Employer incidental death benefit 0.15% of earnable compensation

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System

Employee Class Two 18.84% of earnable compensation
Employee Class Three 18.84% of earnable compensation
Employer incidental death benefit 0.20% of earnable compensation
Employer accidental death program 0.20% of earnable compensation
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System

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability

The June 30, 2021, (the measurement date) total pension liability, net pension liability, and
sensitivity information were determined by the consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and
Company (GRS) and are based on the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuations, as adopted by the PEBA
Board and Budget and Control Board, which utilized membership data as of July 1, 2020. The total
pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ended June 30,
2021, using generally accepted actuarial principles. Information included in the following schedules
is based on the certification provided by GRS. The net pension liability is calculated separately for
each system and represents that particular system’s total pension liability determined in accordance
with GASB No. 67, less that system’s fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2022, (measurement
date of June 30, 2021), the net pension liability amounts for the County’s proportionate share of the
collective net pension liabilities associated with the SCRS and PORS plans are as follows:

Plan Fiduciary County's
Net Positon as Proporationate
Total Plan Employer's a Percentage of the Share of the
Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension Total Pension Collective Net Pension
Liability Position Liability Liability Liability

SCRS

PORS

$55,131,579,363 $33,490,305,970  $ 43,732,282 60.7% 0.202078%

$ 8,684,586,488 $ 6,111,672,064 $ 17,749,032 70.4% 0.689842%

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net
pension liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires
that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An
experience report on the Systems was most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2019.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (Continued)

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the
July 1, 2020 valuations for SCRS and PORS.

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.00% 7.00%
Projected salary increases 3.0% to 11.0% (varies by senice) 3.5% to 10.5% (varies by senice)
Includes inflation at 2.25% 2.25%
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% of $500 annually lesser of 1% or $500 annually

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’'s job category and gender.
The base mortality assumption, the 2020 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2020
PRSC), was developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for
future improvement in mortality using 80% of Scale UMP projected from the year 2020.

Former Job Class Males Females
General Employees and Members 2020 PRSC Males multiplied 2020 PRSC Females multiplied
of the General Assembly by 97% by 107%
Public Safety and Firefighters 2020 PRSC Males multiplied 2020 PRSC Females multiplied
by 127% by 107%

77



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 20-year capital
market assumptions. The long-term expected rates of return represent assumptions developed
using an arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market-
based inputs. Expected returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2021 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is
produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage
and adding expected inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the
7.00 percent assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the TPL includes a
4.75 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the table on the following page.

Expected Long-term
Policy Arithmetic Real Expected Portfolio
Allocation/Exposure Target Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Public equity 46.0% 6.87% 3.16%
Bonds 26.0% 0.27% 0.07%
Private equity 9.0% 9.68% 0.87%
Private debt 7.0% 5.47% 0.39%
Real assets 12.0%
Real estate 9.0% 6.01% 0.54%
Infrastructure 3.0% 5.08% 0.15%
100%
Total expected real return 5.18%
Inflation for actuarial purposes 2.25%
Total expected nominal return 7.43%

78



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS and
PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South
Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis
The following table presents the sensitivity of the net pension liabilities to changes in the discount
rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) " (8.00%)
SCRS $ 57,283,845 $ 43,732,282 $ 32,468,131
PORS $ 25,751,575 $ 17,749,032 $ 11,193,724

Pension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County recognized its proportionate share of collective
pension expense of $3,193,389 and recognition of deferred amounts from changes in proportionate
share and differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total plan
employer contributions of ($365,408) for a total of $2,827,981 for the SCRS plan. Additionally, for
the year ended June 30, 2022, the County recognized its proportionate share of collective pension
expense of $1,941,748 and recognition of deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share
and differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of total plan employer
contributions of ($174,998) for a total of $1,766,750 for the PORS plan. Total pension expense for
both plans was $4,594,731.
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2022, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the SCRS and PORS pension plans, respectively, from the following sources:

SCRS Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 744,929 $ 59,023

Changes of assumptions 2,393,762 -

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 6,352,690

Changes in proportionate share and differences
between employer contributions and proportionate

share of total plan employer contributions 315,257 2,110,397

Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 3,820,649 -

Total $ 7,274,597 $ 8,522,110

PORS Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 603,807 $ 55,277

Changes of assumptions 1,265,945 -

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 3,979,254

Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share

of contributions 172,908 700,331
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 1,948,657 -
Total $ 3,991,317 $ 4,734,862

Total deferred outflows/inflows related to pensions

£

11,265,914 $ 13,256,972
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)

The $3,820,649 and $1,948,657 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from County contributions paid subsequent to the measurement date for the SCRS and
PORS plans, but before June 30, 2022, respectively, will be recognized as reduction of the net
pension liabilities in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows for the SCRS and PORS
plans, respectively:

Year ended June 30: SCRS PORS
2023 $ (835,553) $ (349,691)
2024 (1,005,279) (354,271)
2025 (850,236) (552,529)
2026 (2,377,094) (1,435,711)

$ (5,068,162) $ (2,692,202)

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information

Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is
available in the Systems’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,
which includes the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021,
(including the unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements). Additional actuarial information
is available in the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Description

The County provides a post-retirement health insurance benefit plan, referred to as the Florence
County Retiree Hospitalization Plan, for qualifying retirees as required by County Ordinance No. 15-
87/88. The plan is administered by the County as a single employer defined benefit plan. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Summary of Benefits

Plan Participants — Retiring employees who were enrolled in coverage at the time of retirement and
scheduled to work 30 hours or more during the normal workweek are eligible to participate in retiree
health and dental coverage.

Retirement Benefit Eligibility — SCRS and PORS retirement eligibility requirements are described
in the following tables. In addition to the requirements shown below, Class Two employees must
have 5 years of earned service and Class Three employees must have 8 years of earned service.

Normal (Unreduced) Retirement Requirements

Class Two Class Three
SCRS Any age with 28 years of senice; or at |Rule of 90; or at age 65 with at least 8
age 65 with at least 5 years of senice [years of senice
PORS Any age with 25 years of senice; or at |Any age with 27 years of senice; or at
age 55 with at least 5 years of senice |age 55 with at least 8 years of senice
Early (Reduced) Retirement Requirements
Class Two Class Three
SCRS Age 60 with at least 5 years of senice; [Age 60 with at least 8 years of senice
or at age 55 with at least 25 years of
senice
Disability Retirement Requirements
Class Two Class Three
SCRS Under age 65 with at least 5 years of |Under age 65 with at least 8 years of
senice senice
PORS Under age 55 with at least 5 years of |Under age 55 with at least 8 years of
senice senice

Class Two employees are those employees hired prior to July 1, 2012. Class Three employees are

those employees hired on or after July 1, 2012.
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Summary of Benefits (Continued)

Disability Retirement Benefit Eligibility (Non-duty and Duty) — In addition to the age and service
requirements for disability retirement shown in the tables above, SCRS employees must have been
approved for disability benefits from the federal Social Security Administration and PORS
employees must qualify for Police Officers Retirement System disability retirement. If the employee
can substantiate that the disability is the result of an on-the-job injury with SCRS or PORS, the
service requirement is waived.

Vested Termination Benefits — Employees terminating before retirement conditions are not eligible
for retiree health and dental coverage.

Death-in-Service Retirement Benefits (Non-duty and Duty) — The County waives the premiums for
health and dental coverage for one year for survivors of retirees or active employees. Survivors
of active employees also receive payment of compensation for one month after the death of the
employee.

Vision Coverage — The County does not provide subsidized retiree vision care coverage.
Life Insurance Coverage — The County does not provide subsidized life insurance for retirees.
Opt-Out — The County does not provide payments to retirees in lieu of retiree health care benefits.

Benefits Paid by the Plan — Retiree health and dental coverage levels for retirees are the same as
coverage provided to active County employees in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
current County Health and Dental Plans.

The County contributes up to 100% of the monthly premium for the retiree only according to the
premium sharing table presented below. County premium-sharing contributions are based upon the
years of employment service with the County.

Benefits for Spouses of Retired Employees — Retirees may purchase retiree health care coverage
for eligible spouses and dependents at their own expense. Surviving spouses of deceased retired
members may continue retiree health care coverage until death or remarriage. Surviving
dependents can continue coverage until 19 or 25 if in an accredited college or unless incapacitated.

Non-Medicare and Medicare - Eligible Provisions — Retirees are required to enroll in Medicare Parts

A and B once eligible. The Retirees pay the Medicare Part B premiums through their Social
Security checks. The Retiree may enroll in the Medicare Supplement Plan through the County.
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NOTE 11. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Summary of Benefits (Continued)

Premium Sharing — The vesting schedule for regular, early and disabled retirees is as follows:

Percentage of Premiums Paid by Employer
Hired Before July 1, 2011

Years of Employment Senvice | Rate of County Contributions
35 100% paid by County
30 90% paid by County
25 80% paid by County
20 70% paid by County
15 60% paid by County
Less than 15 0% paid by County

Percentage of Premiums Paid by Employer
Hired After July 1, 2011

Years of Employment Senvice | Rate of County Contributions
25 75% paid by County
20 50% paid by County
Less than 20 0% paid by County

For any employee hired after June 30, 2010, all such assistance will cease when the employee first
becomes Medicare eligible.

The premiums shown below are the gross 2019 South Carolina PEBA premiums for the Standard

pre-65 plans:
Coverage Medical Dental
Retiree Only $532.40 $13.48
Retiree + Spouse $1,118.30 $21.12

This is a brief summary of the Florence County Employees Retiree Health and Dental Plan Fund
provisions. In the event that any description contained herein differs from the actual eligibility or
benefit, the appropriate employee contract or governing document will prevail. All post-retirement
health insurance assistance available to eligible retirees, including any established by the
County’s Personnel Policy Manual, is subject to annual appropriation by County Council each
fiscal year.
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Summary of Membership Information

The following table provides a summary of the number of participants in the plan as of June 30,

2021:
Retirees 146
Active members 746
Total Plan Members 892

Total OPEB Expense

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the County recognized OPEB expense of $2,868,189. The
following table presents the components of this amount in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 75:

Senvice cost $1,645,784
Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,219,503
Recognition of current year outflow (inflow) due to liabilities (136,644)
Amortization of prior year outflow (inflow) due to liabilities 139,546
Total OPEB expense $2,868,189

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are recognized
in OPEB expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed period equal to the average
of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with OPEB through the
OPEB plan (active employees and inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

At the beginning of the current measurement period, the expected remaining service lives of all
active employees in the plan was approximately 7,822 years. Additionally, the total plan
membership (active employees and inactive employees) was 892. As a result, the average of the
expected remaining service lives for purposes of recognizing the applicable deferred outflows and
inflows of resources established in the current measurement period is 8.7696 years.
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

The table presented below provides the sources of deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources that were recognized in OPEB expense during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, and the amounts that will be recognized in OPEB expense during subsequent reporting
periods.

Deferred
Outflows
Recognition Amount (Inflows)
Period Recognized in Recognized in
(Amortization  Total Outflows Current OPEB  Future OPEB
Years) (Inflows) Expense Expense
Differences in expected
and actual experience 8.7696 $ (6,257,595) $ (713,555) $ (5,544,040)
Assumption changes 8.7696 5,059,282 576,911 4,482,371

Total

$ (1,198,313) $ (136,644) $ (1,061,669)

At June 30, 2022, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 121,641 $ 7,629,419
Changes in assumptions 10,793,896 1,993,727
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 895,708 -
Total $ 11,811,245 $ 9,623,146

Employer contributions/benefit payments made subsequent to the measurement date of the total
OPEB liability (June 30, 2021) and prior to the end of the employer's reporting period (June 30,
2022) are reported as deferred outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the
total OPEB liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Fiscal Year Ending Outflows (Inflows)
June 30, of Resources

2023 $ 2,902

2024 2,902

2025 2,902

2026 205,825

2027 513,107

Thereafter 564,753

$ 1,292,391

Total OPEB Liability

The County’s total OPEB liability of $50,115,099 was measured as of June 30, 2021, and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. A schedule of changes in the total OPEB
liability and related ratios during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Senvice cost $ 1,645,784
Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,219,503
Difference between expected and actual experience (6,257,595)
Changes of assumptions 5,059,282
Benefit payments (1,009,271)
Net change in the total OPEB liability 657,703
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 49,457,396
Total OPEB liability, end of year $ 50,115,099
Cowvered employee payroll $ 33,217,994

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll 150.87%
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Total OPEB Liability (Continued)

The table above contains information for the RSI section of the financial statements. The ending
balance of the total OPEB liability is as of June 30, 2021. Changes of assumptions reflect a change
in the discount rate from 2.45% as of June 30, 2020, to 1.92% as of June 30, 2021, and updates to
the health care trend assumption including the repeal of the excise tax on high-cost employer health
The benefit payments made during the measurement period were determined as follows:

Explicit benefit payments (provided by the County) $ 907,618
Implicit benefit payments (explicit benefit payments * 0.112) 101,653
Total benefit payments $ 1,009,271

The 0.112 factor equals the ratio of the expected implicit subsidy to the expected explicit costs.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and methods, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless

otherwise specified:

Valuation Date

June 30, 2021

Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method
Discount Rate

Inflation

Salary Increases

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality

Health Care Trend Rates

Participation Rates

Other Information:
Notes

Individual Entry-Age Normal
1.92% at June 30, 2021

2.25%

3.50% to 10.50% for PORS and 3.00% to 9.50% for SCRS, including
inflation

Based on the experience study covering the five-year period ending
June 30, 2019, as conducted for the South Carolina Retirement
System (SCRS).

For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct South Carolina Retirees 2020
Mortality Tables are used with the following multipliers applied to the
base totals: 97% for male SCRS members, 107% for female SCRS
members, 127% for male PORS members, and 107% for female
PORS members. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
using 80% of the ultimate rates of Scale MP-2019 to account for
future mortality improvements.

Initial rate of 6.00% declining to an ultimate rate of 4.00% after 14
years

For members hired before July 1, 2011, that have at least 15 years of
service, participation rates vary from 60% to 100% based on years of
service. For members hired after July 1, 2011, that have at least 20
years of service, participation rates vary from 50% to 80% based on
years of service. The participation rate is 10% for retirees who are
less than 65 years of age and do not receive an explicit subsidy from
the County.

The discount rate changed from 2.45% as of June 30, 2020, to 1.92%
as of June 30, 2021. Additionally, the health care trend rates were
updated to reflect the 2020 SCRS experience study and the health
care trend rates were updated to better reflect the plan's anticipated
experience.

89



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Discount Rate

For plans that do not have formal assets, the discount rate should equal the tax-exempt municipal
bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating
as of the measurement date. For the purpose of this valuation, the municipal bond rate is 1.92%
(based on the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the Fidelity “20-Year
Municipal GO AA Index”). The discount rate was 2.45% as of the previous measurement date.

Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption — Regarding the sensitivity of
the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate, the following presents the plan’s total
OPEB liability, calculated using a discount rate of 2.45%, as well as what the plan’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent
higher:

Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
0.92% 1.92% 2.92%
$ 59,890,799 $ 50,115,099 $ 42,393,478

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Assumption — Regarding the
sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates, the following
presents the plan’s total OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what
the plan’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent
lower or one percent higher:

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

$ 41,272,639 $ 50,115,099 $ 61,639,339
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NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation — The County is a defendant in several miscellaneous litigations. Any losses which may
be incurred and are not fully covered by County insurance are not expected to be material. Legal
fees related to these litigations are also not expected to be material.

Federal and State Assisted Programs — The County has received proceeds from several Federal
and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned
as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the
refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds
would be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the
refund of grant monies.

The Scranton Industrial Park represents the County’s only active construction project as of June 30,
2022. The County’s commitments with contractors for this project is as follows as of June 30,
2022:

Project Spent-to-Date Remaining Commitment
Scranton Industrial Park $ 4,885,040 $ 322,960
Florence County Industrial Park —East $ 3,254,707 $ 2,155,123

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County maintains
commercial insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss. The County participates in
certain State-wide funds for the purchase of workers compensation insurance and liability
insurance. The County's primary risk with regard to these funds is only for the annual premiums.
However, the County does bear a secondary risk if the funds were to default due to either a
widespread increase in claim experience or mismanagement of the funds’ assets.

If this event were to occur, the County, along with all other participants in the funds, would be
charged additional assessments. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses to the County. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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NOTE 14.

TAX ABATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2022, the County provides tax abatements through two programs to encourage
economic development, attract new businesses and retain existing businesses: Fee in Lieu of Tax
and Special Source Revenue Credits.

The County has entered into fee in lieu of tax agreements pursuant to the authority granted by Title
12, Chapter 44, Title 4, Chapter 29, and/or Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), as well as special source revenue credit agreements
pursuant to the authority granted by Sections 4-29-68 and 4-1-170 through 4-1-175 of the Code.
Property subject to a fee in lieu of tax agreement is exempt from ad valorem property tax and is
instead subject to a fee in lieu of tax equal to the product of the value of the property, an
assessment ratio that is generally no lower than 6% (but may be as low as 4% for extraordinary
projects that satisfy the statutory definition of an “enhanced investment”’), and a millage rate that is
either fixed for the life of the agreement or is adjusted every five years based on the trailing five-
year average. The County uses fixed millage rate agreements. The County has entered into a
written agreement for each fee in lieu of tax incentive, with each agreement having been approved
by the County Council. Taxpayers must invest $2,500,000 in capitalized investment within an
investment period as defined in the applicable agreement (generally six years) in order to qualify for
a fee in lieu of tax incentive, and some agreements include heightened requirements tied to
investment and/or job creation thresholds. These requirements are negotiated on a case-by-case
basis and may provide for a recapture of some or all of the abated taxes in the event that the
taxpayer does not meet and/or maintain the required investment or job creation thresholds.

While negotiated property tax agreements are often viewed as incentives and trigger reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 77, the State of South Carolina has a property tax
structure that compares unfavorably to many other states with which it competes to attract industry.
As the site selection process for industries has become increasingly more competitive, many
companies have come to view negotiated property tax agreements as absolutely critical to their
decision to locate in South Carolina. The reported figures illustrate the abated taxes but do not take
into consideration the increase in property taxes that the County believes has occurred as a result
of offering incentives resulting in new industries and significant expansions that otherwise would not
have occurred. Total payments to the County under the agreements subject to GASB Statement
No. 77 reporting were over $13,800,000 for the current fiscal year and the County believes that its
negotiated tax agreements were critical to securing the investments that generated those payments.
The GASB Statement No. 77 analysis requires a comparison of the negotiated payments to
hypothetical ad valorem taxes that would have been generated had every industry under a
negotiated agreement in the County made the same investment without any incentive agreement.
The County believes that this is a fundamentally flawed assumption and that the reporting
requirement is therefore misleading to the public.
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NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the County abated property taxes and fees in lieu of taxes
by a total of $487,260 as compared to the total taxes that would have been received if every
taxpayer subject to a tax abatement had made the exact same capital investment with no

incentives.

CONDUIT DEBT

At June 30, 2022, $103,780,000 of hospital revenue bonds bearing the County's name were
outstanding. This debt is repayable only by the entity for whom the debt is issued and the County
assumes no responsibility for repayment.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the result of assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities less
deferred inflows of resources. The net position amounts were as follows as of June 30, 2022:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
Net investment in capital assets:
Net capital assets $ 181,853,264 $ 3,009,713 $ 184,862,977
Less: related bonds payable (102,274,076) - (102,274,076)
Less: related premiums/discounts (17,176,890) - (17,176,890)
Less: related financed purchases payable (3,979,866) - (3,979,866)
Less: deferred amount on refunding (3,808,579) - (3,808,579)
Less: leases payable (2,653,306) (22,981) (2,676,287)
Plus: unspent bond proceeds 37,866,441 - 37,866,441
Net investment in capital assets: 89,826,988 2,986,732 92,813,720
Amounts restricted for capital projects
and other purposes 174,933,546 - 174,933,546
Less: unspent bond proceeds (37,866,441) - (37,866,441)
Restricted net position 137,067,105 - 137,067,105
Unrestricted net position (185,584,032) (2,353,240) (187,937,272)
Total net position $ 41,310,061 $ 633,492 $ 41,943,553
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NOTE 17.

NOTE 18.

RESTATEMENT
Errors in Prior Year Reporting

The County determined that a restatement to the June 30, 2021, ending net position was required to
correct certain errors in prior year reporting. The restatement is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Net position, as previously reported $ 17,886,328
Restatement for the correction of an error
in prior year reporting (5,375,000)
Net position, as restated, for the correction ofan error $ 12,511,328

The County did not properly record the activities associated with the issuance of the 2015 Series
Installment Purchase Bond. As such, the County determined a restatement to decrease beginning
net position of the County’s governmental activities in order to record the outstanding debt as of
July 1, 2021. The correction of an error in prior year reporting amounted to a restatement of
$5,375,000.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the County evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through February 21, 2023, the date these financial statements were
available to be issued.

On November 19, 2022, Florence County entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with White
Hawk, LLC for the acquisition of 956+/- acres for the development of an economic development
industrial park. The acquisition cost of $20,443,092 was shared between Florence County and the
City of Florence with investments of $8,761,325 and $11,681,767, respectively. Final closing on the
property occurred on January 9, 2023.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability
Senice cost $ 1,645,784 $ 1,543,048 $ 1,336,998 $ 1,379,084 $ 1,607,826
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,219,503 1,343,876 1,447,283 1,365,106 1,187,735
Difference between expected and actual experience (6,257,595) 73,711 (3,208,402) 121,858 -
Assumption changes 5,059,282 4,742,766 4,116,292 (385,006) (4,276,548)
Benefit payments (1,009,271) (819,646) (860,463) (790,491) (679,138)
Net change in total OPEB liability 657,703 6,883,755 2,831,708 1,690,551 (2,160,125)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 49,457,396 42,573,641 39,741,933 38,051,382 40,211,507
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 50,115,099 $ 49,457,396 $ 42,573,641 $ 39,741,933 $ 38,051,382
Covered-employee payroll $ 33,217,994 $ 34,040,416 $ 33,307,700 $ 31,898,454 $ 30,287,075
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 150.87% 145.29% 127.82% 124.59% 125.64%

Notes to the schedule:

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

Assumption changes reflect the effects of change in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount
rates used in each period:

For the Fiscal

Year Ended
June 30,
2022 1.92%
2021 2.45%
2020 3.13%
2019 3.62%
2018 3.56%

The County is not accumulating assets in a trust fund that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No.
75 for payment of future OPEB benefits.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

South Carolina Retirement System

County's share of Plan fiduciary net

County's County's the net pension position as a
proportion of the proportionate liability as a percentage of the

Plan Year Ended net pension share of the net  County's covered percentage of its total pension
June 30, liability pension liability payroll covered payroll liability
2022 0.202078% $ 43,732,282 $ 22,842,075 191.45% 60.75%
2021 0.207560% 53,034,529 23,487,887 225.80% 50.71%
2020 0.217900% 49,754,778 23,005,180 216.28% 54.40%
2019 0.212450% 47,602,620 22,024,864 216.13% 54.10%
2018 0.207230% 46,650,130 20,893,127 223.28% 53.60%
2017 0.208490% 44,533,583 20,198,054 220.48% 52.90%
2016 0.210560% 39,933,719 19,744,583 202.25% 56.99%
2015 0.209480% 36,064,995 19,024,639 189.57% 59.92%
2014 0.510290% 37,572,701 18,168,370 206.80% 56.39%

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System

County's share of Plan fiduciary net

County's County's the net pension position as a
proportion of the proportionate liability as a percentage of the

Plan Year Ended net pension share of the net  County's covered percentage of its total pension
June 30, liability pension liability payroll covered payroll liability
2022 0.689842% $ 17,749,032 $ 10,374,919 171.08% 70.37%
2021 0.720530% 23,894,143 10,552,529 226.43% 58.79%
2020 0.710410% 20,360,026 10,302,520 197.62% 62.70%
2019 0.714020% 20,231,940 9,873,590 204.91% 61.73%
2018 0.697000% 19,094,821 9,393,948 203.27% 60.90%
2017 0.732200% 18,571,941 9,328,483 199.09% 60.40%
2016 0.747110% 16,283,262 9,253,586 175.97% 64.57%
2015 0.705650% 13,509,159 8,480,293 159.30% 67.55%
2014 0.705650% 14,627,931 8,258,898 177.12% 62.98%

Notes to the schedule:

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

South Carolina Retirement System

Contributions in
relation to the

Statutorily statutorily Contribution Contributions as

Fiscal Year required required deficiency County's covered a percentage of

Ended June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll covered payroll
2022 $ 3,820,649 $ 3,820,649 - $ 23,071,553 16.56%
2021 3,348,439 3,348,439 - 22,842,075 14.66%
2020 3,397,181 3,397,181 - 23,487,887 14.46%
2019 3,143,611 3,143,611 - 23,005,180 13.66%
2018 2,780,628 2,780,628 - 22,024,864 12.62%
2017 2,413,576 2,413,576 - 20,893,127 11.55%
2016 2,233,904 2,233,904 - 20,198,054 11.06%
2015 2,152,159 2,152,159 - 19,744,583 10.90%
2014 2,016,612 2,016,612 - 19,024,639 10.60%

South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
Contributions in
relation to the

Statutorily statutorily Contribution Contributions as

Fiscal Year required required deficiency County's covered a percentage of

Ended June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll covered payroll
2022 $ 1,948,657 $ 1,948,657 - $ 10,128,153 19.24%
2021 1,796,414 1,796,414 - 10,374,919 17.31%
2020 1,889,378 1,889,378 - 10,552,529 17.90%
2019 1,680,183 1,680,183 - 10,302,520 16.31%
2018 1,507,516 1,507,516 - 9,873,590 15.27%
2017 1,337,698 1,337,698 - 9,393,948 14.24%
2016 1,281,734 1,281,734 - 9,328,483 13.74%
2015 1,240,906 1,240,906 - 9,253,586 13.41%
2014 1,088,900 1,088,900 - 8,480,293 12.84%
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Notes to the schedule:

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the statutorily required contribution are as follows:

System

Calculation date
Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Amortization method
Amortization period
Investment return
Inflation

Salary increases

Mortality

SCRS

July 1, 2019

Entry Age Normal

5-year Smoothed

Level % of pay

28-year maximum, closed period
7.25%

2.25%
3.00% plus step-rate increases for members

with less than 21 years of service.

The 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality
Tables for Males and Females, both projected

at Scale AA from the year 2016. Male rates are
multiplied by 100% for non-educators and 92%

for educators. Female rates multiplied by 111%

for non-educators and 98% for educators.

98

PORS

July 1, 2019

Entry Age Normal

5-year Smoothed

Level % of pay

28-year maximum, closed period
7.25%

2.25%

3.50% plus step-rate increases for members

with less than 15 years of service.

The 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina
Mortality Tables for Males and Females, both
projected at Scale AA from the year 2016.
Males rates are multipled by 125% and female

rates are multipled by 111%.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Florence S.C.
Darlington Accommodations Victim/Witness Howe Springs
Tech Tax Law Library Assistance Fire District
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue  Special Revenue Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 219,035 $ 117,851 $ 23459 $ - $ -
Investments - - - - -
Receivables, net:
Property taxes 88,476 - - - -
Other governmental units and agencies - 131,407 - 12,016 -
Other - - - - -
Inventories - - - -
Total assets 307,511 249,258 23,459 12,016 -

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 640 60,263 - 129,099 -
Payroll withholdings and accruals - - - 7,954 -
Other liabilities - - - - -
Retainage payable -
Unearned revenue 178,450 - - - -
Total liabilities 179,090 60,263 - 137,053 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes 44,152 - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 44,152 - - - -

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted:
Tourism - 188,995 - - -
Library - - 23,459 - -
Public safety - - - - -
Education 84,269 - - - -
Economic development - - - - -
Road maintenance - - - - -
Debt service - - - - -
Capital projects - - - - _
Committed:
Capital projects - - - - N
Unassigned:
Special revenue fund (deficit) - - - (125,037) -
Total fund balances 84,269 188,995 23,459 (125,037) -

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 307,511 § 249,258 $ 23,459 $ 12,016 $ -

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Education

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Special Revenue Funds

Sardis- Economic Economic
Timmonsville Johnsonville Development Business Local
Fire District Fire District Partnership Development Hospitality Tax

Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue  Special Revenue Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ - 3 - 3 351,795 $ 4,853,548 877,761

- - - - 255,272

- - 351,795 4,853,548 1,133,033

- - 4,106 6,229 269,413

- - 20,298 4,397 23,506

- - 24,404 10,626 292,919

- - - - 840,114

- - 327,391 4,842,922 -

- - 327,391 4,842,922 840,114

$ - 3 - 3 351,795 § 4,853,548 1,133,033
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Education

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Special Revenue Funds

Road System Local

Sheriff's Sheriff's Seized Maintenance Accommodations
Camps Sex Offender Auction Fee Fee

Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue  Special Revenue Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 5297 $ 42,842 $ 16,471  $ 3,701,101  $ 300,197

- - - - 1,492,345

- - - 133 230,750

- - - 201,002 -

5,297 42,842 16,471 3,902,236 2,023,292

- 992 - 40,899 7,825

- - - 73,991 -

- 992 - 114,890 7,825

- - - 201,002 -

- - - - 2,015,467

5,297 41,850 16,471 - -

- - - 3,586,344 -

5,297 41,850 16,471 3,787,346 2,015,467

$ 5297 §$ 42,842 $ 16,471 $ 3,902,236 $ 2,023,292
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Unified Emergency Jail Debt Senior Citizens
Fire District Management Service O&M Center County Library
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue  Special Revenue Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,418,461 $ 8 $ 55 $ -8 9
Investments - - - - -

Receivables, net:
Property taxes 210,202 34 207 2 15
Other governmental units and agencies - - - - -
Other - - - - -
Inventories - - - - -
Total assets 5,628,663 42 262 2 24

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 206,814 - - - -
Payroll withholdings and accruals 180,883 - - - -
Other liabilities 16,867 - - - -
Retainage payable - - - - -
Unearned revenue 384,831 - - - -
Total liabilities 789,395 - - - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes 137,172 - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 137,172 - - - -

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted:
Tourism - - - - -
Library -
Public safety 4,702,096 42 262 2 24
Education - - - - -
Economic development - - - - -
Road maintenance - - - - -
Debt service - - - - -
Capital projects - - - - -
Committed:
Capital projects - - - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue fund (deficit) -
Total fund balances 4,702,096 42 262 2 24

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 5,628,663 $ 42 $ 262 $ 2 $ 24

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Education

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Special Revenue
Funds
Total

Nonmajor

Special Revenue

Fund

$ 15,927,890

298,936
1,891,040
230,883
201,002
18,549,751

726,280
311,029
16,867
563,281
1,617,457

181,324
181,324

201,002

3,044,576
23,459
4,766,044
84,269
5,170,313
3,686,344

(125,037)
16,750,970

$ 18,549,751
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Debt Service Funds

Hannah/Salem Windy Hill/
Friendfield Johnsonville Howe Springs Olanta
County Fire District Fire District Fire District Fire District
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 3,591,422 $ - 8 -8 -

135,262 - -
224,215 - -

3,950,899 - -

1,045 - -

329,807 - -

235,587 - -

567,339 - -

94,474 - -

94,474 B .

3,289,086 - -

3,289,086 - -

$ 3,950,899 $ -3 - 3
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Debt Service Funds

South Lynches Unified Total
Fire District Fire District CPST2 Nonmajor
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 242,717  $ 614,011  $ 12,361,716 16,809,866
3,283 40,615 - 179,160
- - - 224,215
246,000 654,626 12,361,716 17,213,241
- 535 - 2,480
- - - 329,807
8,916 91,321 - 335,824
8,916 91,856 - 668,111
4,539 25,684 - 124,697
4,539 25,684 - 124,697
232,545 537,086 12,361,716 16,420,433
232,545 537,086 12,361,716 16,420,433
$ 246,000 $ 654,626 $ 12,361,716 17,213,241
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Capital Projects Funds

Windy Hill/
County Olanta 2008 County Radio System Unified
General Fire District General Upgrade Fire District
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 70 $ - 8 238,084 $ 213,125 125,879
70 - 238,084 213,125 125,879
- - 238,084 - 125,879
70 - - 213,125 -
70 - 238,084 213,125 125,879
$ 70 $ - 8 238,084 $ 213,125 125,879
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Other governmental units and agencies

Other
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted:

Tourism

Library

Public safety

Economic development

Road maintenance

Debt service

Capital projects
Committed:

Capital projects
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Capital Projects Funds

2006 County 2011 County County
Museum Infrastructure General General Complex
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 135 § 1,232,647 $ 1 20 $ 2,923
135 1,232,647 1 20 2,923
- 18,552 - - -
- 18,552 - - -
135 - - 20 -
- 1,214,095 1 - 2,923
135 1,214,095 1 20 2,923
$ 135§ 1,232,647 $ 1 20 $ 2,923
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects Funds

2017 Economic
Judicial Center Civic Center Parking Deck CPST2 Development
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 775615 $ 267,342 $ 736,985 $ 1,624,222 $ 10,351,277
Investments - - - 1 -
Receivables, net: - - - - -
Property taxes - - - - _
Other governmental units and agencies - - - - -
Other - 12,000 . - -
Inventories - - - - -
Total assets 775,615 279,342 736,985 1,624,223 10,351,277

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 11,840 - 8,945 265,564 10,217
Payroll withholdings and accruals - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - -
Retainage payable - - - 159,797 -
Unearned revenue - - - - -
Total liabilities 11,840 - 8,945 425,361 10,217

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - N

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable - - - - -

Restricted:
Tourism - - - - -
Library - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Economic development - - - - -
Road maintenance - - - - -
Debt service - - - - -
Capital projects 763,775 279,342 728,040 1,198,862 10,341,060

Committed: -
Capital projects - - - -

Unassigned: -
Special revenue fund (deficit) - - - -

Total fund balances 763,775 279,342 728,040 1,198,862 10,341,060

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 775615 $ 279,342 $ 736,985 $ 1,624,223 $ 10,351,277

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Total
Nonmajor Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects Governmental
Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,568,325 $ 48,306,081

Investments 1 1

Receivables, net:

Property taxes - 478,096
Other governmental units and agencies - 2,115,255
Other 12,000 242,883
Inventories - 201,002
Total assets 15,580,326 51,343,318
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 315,118 1,043,878

Payroll withholdings and accruals - 311,029

Other liabilities - 346,674

Retainage payable 159,797 159,797

Unearned revenue - 899,105
Total liabilities 474,915 2,760,483

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes - 306,021
Total deferred inflows of resources - 306,021
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - 201,002
Restricted:

Tourism - 3,044,576

Library - 23,459

Public safety - 4,766,044

Economic development - 84,269

Road maintenance - 5,170,313

Debt service - 20,006,777

Capital projects 13,675,197 13,675,197

Committed:
Capital projects 1,430,214 1,430,214
Unassigned:

Special revenue fund (deficit) - (125,037)
Total fund balances 15,105,411 48,276,814
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances $ 15,580,326 $ 51,343,318
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Florence S.C.
Darlington Accommodations Victim/Witness Howe Springs
Tech Tax Law Library Assistance Fire District
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Taxes $ 2,786,399 $ - 3 - 8 - 8 -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Fines and fees - - 19,870 101,626 -
Intergovernmental 27,447 346,174 - 15,291 36,394
Sales and other functional revenues - - - -
Miscellaneous 458 254 - (84) -

Total revenues 2,814,304 346,428 19,870 116,833 36,394

Expenditures:

Current:
General government - - 4,957 79,433 -
Public safety - - - 145,610 36,394
Economic and physical development - - - - -
Public works - - - - -
Health - - - - -
Welfare - -
Culture and recreation - 260,000 - - -
Education 2,951,085 - - - -

Capital outlay - - - - -

Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees

Total expenditures 2,951,085 260,000 4,957 225,043 36,394

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (136,781) 86,428 14,913 (108,210) -

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - -
Issuance of leases - - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - R
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - -
Transfers in - - - _ _
Transfers out - - - - (104,002)

Total other financing sources (uses), net - - - - (104,002)

Net change in fund balance (136,781) 86,428 14,913 (108,210) (104,002)

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 221,050 102,567 8,546 (16,827) 104,002

Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 84,269 § 188,995 $ 23,459 § (125,037) $ -

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Sardis- Economic Economic
Timmonsville Johnsonville Development Business Local
Fire District Fire District Partnership Development Hospitality Tax
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Taxes $ -3 -3 - % 1,198,346 §$ -
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Fines and fees - - - - 2,098,937
Intergovernmental - 4,969 59,429 - -
Sales and other functional revenues - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 778 31,523 1,148
Total revenues - 4,969 60,207 1,229,869 2,100,085
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - 38,768 58,890
Public safety - 4,969 - - -
Economic and physical development - - 588,532 87,438 -
Public works - - - - -
Health - - - - -
Welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - 1,043,006
Education - - - - -
Capital outlay - - 2,744 405,000 7,456
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - 405,002
Interest - - - - 77,455
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - - -
Total expenditures - 4,969 591,276 531,206 1,591,809
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (531,069) 698,663 508,276

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - -
Issuance of leases - - - - 7,456
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - R
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - -
Transfers in - - 439,579 - -

Transfers out (24,969) (26,706) - (500,326) (258,103)
Total other financing sources (uses), net (24,969) (26,706) 439,579 (500,326) (250,647)

Net change in fund balance (24,969) (26,706) (91,490) 198,337 257,629
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 24,969 26,706 418,881 4,644,585 582,485
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ - $ - $ 327,391 § 4,842,922 § 840,114

(Continued)

111



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Premium on bond issuance
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Discount on bond issuance
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses), net

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

Special Revenue Funds

112

Road System Local
Sheriff's Sheriff's Seized Maintenance Accommodations
Camps Sex Offender Auction Fee Fee
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
- - 3 - 3 - 3 -
- 10,830 39,169 3,682,216 2,588,985
- - - - 1,492,345
10 - - 7,158 35,904
10 10,830 39,169 3,689,374 4,117,234
- - - - 119,509
- 2,059 - - -
- - - 2,389,017 -
- - - - 1,308,011
- 575 22,698 178,669 409,647
- - - - 602,000
- - - - 710,032
- - - - 1,500
- 2,634 22,698 2,567,686 3,150,699
10 8,196 16,471 1,121,688 966,535
- - - 25,000 -
- - - - (284,000)
- - - 25,000 (284,000)
10 8,196 16,471 1,146,688 682,535
5,287 33,654 - 2,640,658 1,332,932
5,297 41,850 § 16,471 $ 3,787,346 $ 2,015,467
(Continued)



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Unified Emergency Jail Debt Senior Citizens
Fire District Management Service O&M Center County Library
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Taxes $ 6,045,755 $ 2 3 15 % -3 1
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Fines and fees 1,695,745 - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Sales and other functional revenues - - - - -
Miscellaneous 262,325 - - - -
Total revenues 8,003,825 2 15 - 1
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety 6,263,282 - - - -
Economic and physical development - - - - -
Public works - - - - -
Health - - - - -
Welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - -
Education - - - - -
Capital outlay 583,305 - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - - -
Total expenditures 6,846,587 - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,157,238 2 15 - 1
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - -
Issuance of leases - - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - -
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - -
Transfers in 155,676 - - - -
Transfers out (39,024) - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses), net 116,652 - - - -
Net change in fund balance 1,273,890 2 15 - 1
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 3,428,206 40 247 2 23
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 4,702,096 $ 42 $ 262 $ 2 $ 24

(Continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety

Economic and physical development

Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Premium on bond issuance
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Discount on bond issuance
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses), net

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Special Revenue

Funds

Total
Nonmajor
Special Revenue
Fund

$ 10,030,518

10,237,378
1,982,049

339,474

22,589,419

301,557
6,452,314
675,970
2,389,017

2,611,017
2,951,085
1,610,094

1,007,002
787,487

1,500
18,787,043

3,802,376

7,456

620,255
(1,237,130)

(609,419)

3,192,957

13,558,013

$ 16750970
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Debt Service Funds

Revenues:

County
Debt Service
Fund

Hannah/Salem
Friendfield
Fire District

Debt Service

Fund

Johnsonville

Fire District

Debt Service
Fund

Howe Springs
Fire District
Debt Service

Fund

Windy Hill/
Olanta
Fire District
Debt Service
Fund

Taxes $

Licenses and permits

Fines and fees

Intergovernmental

Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous

8,054,143 §

6,539

Total revenues

8,060,682

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Paying agent fees

9,869,553
1,686,381
4,770
42,953

Total expenditures

11,603,657

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

(3,542,975)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Premium on bond issuance
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Discount on bond issuance
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

4,836,000

450,000

(17,290)

(82,195)

(149,306)

Total other financing sources (uses), net

5,286,000

(17,290)

(82,195)

(149,306)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

1,743,025

1,546,061

(17,290)

17,290

(82,195)

82,195

(149,306)

149,306

Fund balance, end of year $

3,289,086  $
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Premium on bond issuance
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Discount on bond issuance
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses), net

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Debt Service Funds

South Lynches Unified Total
Fire District Fire District CPST2 Nonmajor
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds
113,265 $ 1,295,200 $ - 8 9,462,608
55,104 - - 55,104
469 1,618 - 8,626
168,838 1,296,818 - 9,526,338
154,894 2,250,517 - 12,274,964
23,164 326,968 - 2,036,513
- 35,442 - 40,212
- - - 42,953
178,058 2,612,927 - 14,394,642
(9,220) (1,316,109) - (4,868,304)
- 35,000 - 4,871,000
- 255,479 - 705,479
- - (4,470,001) (4,725,479)
- 290,479 (4,470,001) 851,000
(9,220) (1,025,630) (4,470,001) (4,017,304)
241,765 1,562,716 16,831,717 20,437,737
232,545 $ 537,086  $ 12,361,716 $ 16,420,433
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects Funds

Windy Hill/
County Olanta 2008 County Radio System Unified
General Fire District General Upgrade Fire District
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Taxes $ - $ -8 -9 -3 R
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Fines and fees - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Sales and other functional revenues - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 532 476 691

Total revenues - - 532 476 691

Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Economic and physical development - - - - -
Public works - - - _ _
Health - - - - -
Welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - R
Education - - - - -
Capital outlay - - - - 876,925
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - - -

Total expenditures - - - - 876,925

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 532 476 (876,234)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - 980,000
Issuance of leases - - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - R
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - R

Transfers in - - - - 453
Transfers out - (453) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses), net - (453) - - 980,453

Net change in fund balance - (453) 532 476 104,219
Fund balance, beginning of year 70 453 237,552 212,649 21,660
Fund balance, end of year $ 70 $ - $ 238,084 $ 213,125 § 125,879
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects Funds

2006 County 2011 County County
Museum Infrastructure General General Complex
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Taxes $ - $ -8 -9 -3 R
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Fines and fees - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Sales and other functional revenues - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - 7

Total revenues - - - - 7

Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Economic and physical development - - - - -
Public works - - - _ _
Health - - - - -
Welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - R
Education - - - - -
Capital outlay - 273,385 - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - - -

Total expenditures - 273,385 - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (273,385) - - 7

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - -
Issuance of leases - - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - R
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - R
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - 675,000 - - -

Total other financing sources (uses), net - 675,000 - - -

Net change in fund balance - 401,615 - - 7

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 135 812,480 1 20 2,916

Fund balance, end of year $ 135 $ 1,214,095 $ 19 20 $ 2,923

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects Funds

2017 Economic
Judicial Center Civic Center Parking Deck CPST2 Development
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Revenues: Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Taxes $ - $ - 8 -9 -3 R
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Fines and fees - -
Intergovernmental - 16,350 - - -
Sales and other functional revenues - - - - -
Miscellaneous 2,028

Total revenues 2,028 16,350 - (2,348) 28,355

Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Economic and physical development - - - - -
Public works - - - - _
Health - - - - -
Welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - R
Education - - -
Capital outlay 191,116 - 508,096 1,794,603 4,517,941
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - - -

Total expenditures 191,116 - 508,096 1,794,603 4,517,941

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (189,088) 16,350 (508,096) (1,796,951) (4,489,586)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - - - - -
Issuance of leases - - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - R
Discount on bond issuance - - - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - -
Transfers in - - - 3,500,000 -
Transfers out - - -

Total other financing sources (uses), net - - - 3,500,000 -

Net change in fund balance (189,088) 16,350 (508,096) 1,703,049 (4,489,586)

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 952,863 262,992 1,236,136 (504,187) 14,830,646

Fund balance, end of year $ 763,775 $ 279,342 § 728,040 $ 1,198,862 $ 10,341,060

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total
Nonmajor Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects Governmental
Revenues: Funds Funds
Taxes $ - 8 19,493,126
Licenses and permits - -
Fines and fees - 10,237,378
Intergovernmental 16,350 2,053,503
Sales and other functional revenues - -
Miscellaneous 29,741 377,841
Total revenues 46,091 32,161,848
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - 301,557
Public safety - 6,452,314
Economic and physical development - 675,970
Public works - 2,389,017
Health - -
Welfare - -
Culture and recreation - 2,611,017
Education - 2,951,085
Capital outlay 8,162,066 9,772,160
Debt service:
Principal retirements - 13,281,966
Interest - 2,824,000
Bond issuance costs - 40,212
Paying agent fees - 44,453
Total expenditures 8,162,066 41,343,751
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (8,115,975) (9,181,903)
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt 980,000 5,851,000
Issuance of leases - 7,456
Premium on bond issuance - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - -
Discount on bond issuance - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - -
Transfers in 3,500,453 4,826,187
Transfers out 674,547 (5,288,062)
Total other financing sources (uses), net 5,155,000 5,396,581
Net change in fund balance (2,960,975) (3,785,322)
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 18,066,386 52,062,136
Fund balance, end of year $ 15,105,411  $ 48,276,814
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LAW LIBRARY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:
Fines and fees
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Original and Final

Variance with

121

Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 27,000 19,870 (7,130)
27,000 19,870 (7,130)
31,328 4,957 26,371
31,328 4,957 26,371
$ (4,328) 14,913 19,241
8,546
23,459



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

VICTIM/WITNESS ASSISTANCE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Original and Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 181,000 $ 101,626 $ (79,374)
Intergovernmental - 15,291 15,291
Miscellaneous - (84) (84)
Total revenues 181,000 116,833 (64,167)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 75,487 79,433 (3,946)
Public safety 145,325 145,610 (285)
Total expenditures 220,812 225,043 (4,231)
Net change in fund balance $ (39,812) (108,210) $ (68,398)
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year (16,827)

Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ (125,037)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Economic and physical development
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 58,600 59,429 829
- 778 778
58,600 60,207 1,607
559,585 588,532 (28,947)
2,500 2,744 (244)
562,085 591,276 (29,191)
(503,485) (531,069) (27,584)
389,253 439,579 50,326
389,253 439,579 50,326
$ (114,232) (91,490) 22,742
418,881
327,391



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LOCAL HOSPITALITY TAX
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 1,675,000 $ 2,098,937 $ 423,937
Intergovernmental 52,000 - (52,000)
Miscellaneous - 1,148 1,148
Total revenues 1,727,000 2,100,085 373,085
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 56,247 58,890 (2,643)
Culture and recreation 1,346,715 1,043,006 303,709
Capital outlay - 7,456 (7,456)
Debt service:
Principal retirements 145,000 405,002 (260,002)
Interest 72,788 77,455 (4,667)
Total expenditures 1,620,750 1,591,809 28,941
Excess of revenues over expenditures 106,250 508,276 402,026
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of leases - 7,456 7,456
Transfers in 6,893 - (6,893)
Transfers out (264,000) (258,103) 5,897
Total other financing uses, net (257,107) (250,647) 6,460
Net change in fund balance $ (150,857) 257,629 $ 408,486
Fund balance, beginning of year 582,485

Fund balance, end of year $ 840,114
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS FEE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 1,955,000 $ 2,588,985 $ 633,985
Intergovernmental 1,484,396 1,492,345 7,949
Miscellaneous 1,000 35,904 34,904
Total revenues 3,440,396 4,117,234 676,838
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 160,000 119,509 40,491
Culture and recreation 1,256,759 1,308,011 (51,252)
Capital outlay 400,000 409,647 (9,647)
Debt service:
Principal retirements 602,000 602,000 -
Interest 710,032 710,032 -
Paying agent fees - 1,500 (1,500)
Total expenditures 3,128,791 3,150,699 (21,908)
Excess of revenues over expenditures 311,605 966,535 654,930
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (284,000) (284,000) -
Total other financing uses, net (284,000) (284,000) -
Net change in fund balance $ 27,605 682,535 $ 654,930
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,332,932

Fund balance, end of year $ 2,015,467
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SHERIFF'S CAMPS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Miscellaneous $ 36,103 $ 10 $ (36,093)
Total revenues 36,103 10 (36,093)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 36,103 36,103
Total expenditures 36,103 36,103
Net change in fund balance $ - 10 $ 10
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,287

Fund balance, end of year $ 5,297
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SHERIFF'S SEX OFFENDER

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:
Fines and fees
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 13,500 $ 10,830 (2,670)
13,500 10,830 (2,670)
36,365 2,059 34,306
- 575 (575)
36,365 2,634 33,731
$ (22,865) 8,196 31,061
33,654
$ 41,850



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ROAD SYSTEM MAINTENANCE FEE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 3,652,545 $ 3,682,216 $ 29,671
Miscellaneous - 7,158 7,158
Total revenues 3,652,545 3,689,374 36,829
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works 3,044,694 2,389,017 655,677
Capital outlay 1,028,000 178,669 849,331
Total expenditures 4,072,694 2,567,686 1,505,008
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (420,149) 1,121,688 1,541,837
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 25,000 25,000 -
Total other financing sources 25,000 25,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ (395,149) 1,146,688 $ 1,541,837
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,640,658
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,787,346
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

UNIFIED FIRE DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes $ 5,628,841 $ 6,045,755 $ 416,914
Fines and fees 1,562,390 1,695,745 133,355
Miscellaneous - 262,325 262,325
Total revenues 7,191,231 8,003,825 812,594
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 7,047,616 6,263,282 784,334
Capital outlay 55,615 583,305 (527,690)
Total expenditures 7,103,231 6,846,587 256,644
Excess of revenues over expenditures 88,000 1,157,238 1,069,238
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 155,676 155,676
Transfers out (39,024) (39,024) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (39,024) 116,652 155,676
Net change in fund balance $ 48,976 1,273,890 $ 1,224,914
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,428,206

Fund balance, end of year $ 4,702,096
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

School District School District

School District Debt Capital
General Service Project Municipalities
Fund Court Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,143,753 $ 7,334,530 $ 9,824,250 $ 252,482
Property taxes 2,632,377 457,122 - 341,720
Other - - - -
Due from others - - - -
Total assets 9,776,130 7,791,652 9,824,250 594,202
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - - - -
Uncollected taxes 2,632,377 457,122 - 341,720
Due to local governments - 7,726 - 37,113
Due to other taxing entities 26,964 - - -
Total liabilities 2,659,341 464,848 - 378,833
NET POSITION
Restricted for individuals, organizations
and other governments 7,116,789 7,326,804 9,824,250 215,369
Total net position $ 7,116,789 $ 7,326,804 $ 9,824,250 $ 215,369

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes
Other
Due from others

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Uncollected taxes
Due to local governments
Due to other taxing entities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for individuals, organizations
and other governments

Total net position

Lynches
Fire Lake/Camp Salem Williamsburg
Board Branch Watershed County
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 16,182 §$ 10,165 86,900 1,968
16,182 10,165 86,900 1,968
16,182 10,165 86,900 1,968
$ 16,182 $ 10,165 86,900 1,968
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes
Other
Due from others

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Uncollected taxes
Due to local governments
Due to other taxing entities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for individuals, organizations
and other governments

Total net position

Magistrate Clerk of Court Sheriff's
Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 184,399 §$ 1,670,067 2,217,331  § 28,742,027
- - - 3,431,219
- - 19,077 19,077
88,442 88,442
184,399 1,670,067 2,324,850 32,280,765
- - 25,140 25,140
- - - 3,431,219
- - - 44,839
- - 107,519 134,483
- - 132,659 3,635,681
184,399 1,670,067 2,192,191 28,645,084
$ 184,399 $ 1,670,067 2,192,191 § 28,645,084
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ADDITIONS
Current property taxes
Inventory exemption
Vehicle taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Penalties
Fee transfer
State and federal aid
Interest on investments
Proceeds from bond issue
State homestead exemption
Fees in lieu of taxes
Watercraft taxes
Cash received from others
Miscellaneous
Less: local option sales tax credits

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid
Cash paid to others
Refunds
Bond principal payments
Interest payments

Paying agent fees

Total deductions

Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

School District

School District

School District Debt Capital
General Service Project Municipalities
Fund Court Fund Fund

$ 48,297,634 $ 20,284,263 $ - $ 13,043,894
242,830 204,288 - -
15,934,345 2,942,218 - 1,882,030
3,011,259 752,335 - 1,015,609
101,491 47,584 - 16,908
(37,638) (2,022) - -
197,047,195 - - -
14,650 19,963 15,885 -

- - 18,654,266 -

34,017,688 935,180 - -
6,143,039 1,325,508 - 36,819
569,365 99,871 - 48,780

51 7 - -
- - - (6,997,391)

305,341,909 26,609,195 18,670,151 9,046,649
306,849,143 - 16,818,447 8,992,206
220,556 34,734 - 19,694

- 24,003,527 - -

- 1,720,164 - -

- 1,158 - -

307,069,699 25,759,583 16,818,447 9,011,900
(1,727,790) 849,612 1,851,704 34,749
8,844,579 6,477,192 7,972,546 180,620

$ 7,116,789 §$ 7,326,804 $ 9,824,250 $ 215,369

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Lynches
Fire Lake/Camp Salem Williamsburg
Board Branch Watershed County
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ 454,030 $ 7665 $ 71,755 % 3,036,744
Inventory exemption 11,208 - - -
Vehicle taxes 88,002 87 830 9,282
Delinquent property taxes 27,893 658 5,942 -
Penalties 885 24 253 -
Fee transfer - - - -
State and federal aid 303,751 - - -
Interest on investments 83 18 106 -
Proceeds from bond issue - - - -
State homestead exemption 24,762 817 8,973 -
Fees in lieu of taxes 91,547 - - 1,045,529
Watercraft taxes 4,934 - - -
Cash received from others - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Less: local option sales tax credits - - - -
Total additions 1,007,095 9,269 87,859 4,091,555
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 1,362,858 8,500 81,500 4,090,572
Cash paid to others - - - -
Refunds 1,145 - - -
Bond principal payments - - - -
Interest payments - - - -
Paying agent fees - - - -
Total deductions 1,364,003 8,500 81,500 4,090,572
Change in fiduciary net position (356,908) 769 6,359 983
Net position, beginning of year 373,090 9,396 80,541 985
Net position, end of year $ 16,182 $ 10,165 $ 86,900 $ 1,968

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Magistrate Clerk of Court Sheriff's
Fund Fund Fund Total
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ -3 -3 - $ 85,195,985
Inventory exemption - - - 458,326
Vehicle taxes - - - 20,856,794
Delinquent property taxes - - - 4,813,696
Penalties - - - 167,145
Fee transfer - - - (39,660)
State and federal aid - - - 197,350,946
Interest on investments - - 843 51,548
Proceeds from bond issue - - - 18,654,266
State homestead exemption - - - 34,987,420
Fees in lieu of taxes - - - 8,642,442
Watercraft taxes - - - 722,950
Cash received from others 1,672,906 - 3,744,406 5,417,312
Miscellaneous - - - 58
Less: local option sales tax credits - - - (6,997,391)
Total additions 1,672,906 - 3,745,249 370,281,837
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 1,678,021 - - 339,881,247
Cash paid to others - 146,135 2,750,498 2,896,633
Refunds - - - 276,129
Bond principal payments - - - 24,003,527
Interest payments - - - 1,720,164
Paying agent fees - - - 1,158
Total deductions 1,678,021 146,135 2,750,498 368,778,858
Change in fiduciary net position (5,115) (146,135) 994,751 1,502,979
Net position, beginning of year 189,514 1,816,202 1,197,440 27,142,105
Net position, end of year $ 184,399 $ 1,670,067 $ 2,192,191 $ 28,645,084
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Uncollected taxes
Due to other taxing entities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments

Total net position

District District District District District

One Two Three Four Five Total
$ 5,532,090 320,758 § 789,474 $ 185,282 316,149 § 7,143,753
1,824,570 202,459 327,539 90,124 187,685 2,632,377
7,356,660 523,217 1,117,013 275,406 503,834 9,776,130
1,824,570 202,459 327,539 90,124 187,685 2,632,377
26,964 - - - - 26,964
1,851,534 202,459 327,539 90,124 187,685 2,659,341
5,505,126 320,758 789,474 185,282 316,149 7,116,789
$ 5,505,126 320,758 § 789,474 $ 185,282 316,149 7,116,789
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

SCHOOL DISTRICT DEBT SERVICE FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Uncollected taxes
Due to local governments

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments

Total net position

District District District District
Two Three Four Five Total

154,604 203,229 1,014,613 75,903 7,334,530
48,627 25,866 25,011 23,645 457,122
203,231 229,095 1,039,624 99,548 7,791,652
48,627 25,866 25,011 23,645 457,122

- - - - 7,726

48,627 25,866 25,011 23,645 464,848
154,604 203,229 1,014,613 75,903 7,326,804
154,604 203,229 1,014,613 75,903 7,326,804
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

District District District District District
One Two Three Four Five Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,106,581 § 251,905 $ 187,593 § 1,181 § 276,990 $ 9,824,250
Property taxes - - - - - -
Total assets 9,106,581 251,905 187,593 1,181 276,990 9,824,250
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 9,106,581 251,905 187,593 1,181 276,990 9,824,250
Total net position $ 9,106,581 § 251,905 $ 187,593 § 1,181 § 276,990 $ 9,824,250
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

District District District District District
One Two Three Four Five Total
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ 38,277,480 $ 1,372,289 § 6,300,640 $ 1,057,619 § 1,289,606 $ 48,297,634
Inventory exemption 440,969 9,789 (233,300) 17,467 7,905 242,830
Vehicle taxes 12,385,488 631,867 1,728,743 467,079 721,168 15,934,345
Delinquent property taxes 2,138,323 126,057 449,266 148,151 149,462 3,011,259
Penalties 79,772 4,325 11,070 3,273 3,051 101,491
Fee transfer - - (37,638) - - (37,638)
State and federal aid 138,437,283 10,739,976 29,333,780 6,836,903 11,699,253 197,047,195
Interest on investments 11,411 501 1,709 514 515 14,650
State homestead exemption 26,050,130 1,436,990 3,979,219 999,496 1,551,853 34,017,688
Fees in lieu of taxes 4,526,621 13,721 566,784 1,007,003 28,910 6,143,039
Watercraft taxes 384,911 34,545 85,039 22,432 42,438 569,365
Miscellaneous 51 - - - - 51
Total additions 222,732,439 14,370,060 42,185,312 10,559,937 15,494,161 305,341,909
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 223,156,676 14,425,063 43,090,745 10,612,534 15,564,125 306,849,143
Refunds 168,970 8,392 25,642 7,239 10,313 220,556
Total deductions 223,325,646 14,433,455 43,116,387 10,619,773 15,574,438 307,069,699
Change in fiduciary net position (593,207) (63,395) (931,075) (59,836) (80,277) (1,727,790)
Net position, beginning of year 6,098,333 384,153 1,720,549 245,118 396,426 8,844,579
Net position, end of year $ 5,505,126 $ 320,758 § 789,474 $ 185,282 § 316,149 § 7,116,789
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL DISTRICT DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ADDITIONS
Current property taxes
Inventory exemption
Vehicle taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Penalties
Fee transfer
Interest on investments
State homestead exemption
Fees in lieu of taxes
Watercraft taxes
Miscellaneous

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Refunds
Bond principal payments
Interest payments
Paying agent fees
Total deductions
Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

District District District District District

One Two Three Four Five Total
$ 19,275,621 390,157 428,091 $ (24,660) $ 215,054 § 20,284,263
175,434 1,240 22,165 2,015 3,434 204,288
2,651,050 114,048 101,713 280 75,127 2,942,218
655,040 37,275 36,626 1,894 21,500 752,335
43,122 1,974 1,628 - 860 47,584
- - (2,022) - - (2,022)
16,188 474 694 2,263 344 19,963
841,923 43,283 30,451 - 19,523 935,180
1,297,076 2,378 23,238 - 2,816 1,325,508
84,206 6,264 5,000 - 4,401 99,871
7 - - - - 7
25,039,667 597,093 647,584 (18,208) 343,059 26,609,195
30,514 1,546 1,572 - 1,102 34,734
22,405,000 635,206 605,000 - 358,321 24,003,527
1,598,639 9,841 100,796 - 10,888 1,720,164
1,158 - - - - 1,158
24,035,311 646,593 707,368 - 370,311 25,759,583
1,004,356 (49,500) (59,784) (18,208) (27,252) 849,612
4,874,099 204,104 263,013 1,032,821 103,155 6,477,192
$ 5,878,455 154,604 203,229 $ 1,014,613 § 75,903 $ 7,326,804
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

District District District District District
One Two Three Four Five Total
ADDITIONS
Interest on investments $ 13,666 $ 163 $ 1,399 $ 5 $ 652 $ 15,885
Proceeds from bond issue 18,403,632 250,634 - - - 18,654,266
Total additions 18,417,298 250,797 1,399 5 652 18,670,151
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 15,743,199 - 1,014,270 - 60,978 16,818,447
Total deductions 15,743,199 - 1,014,270 - 60,978 16,818,447
Change in fiduciary net position 2,674,099 250,797 (1,012,871) 5 (60,326) 1,851,704
Net position, beginning of year 6,432,482 1,108 1,200,464 1,176 337,316 7,972,546
Net position, end of year $ 9,106,581 §$ 251,905 $ 187,593 § 1,181 § 276,990 $ 9,824,250
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MUNICIPALITIES FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

Florence Quinby Pamplico Lake City Olanta
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 190,996 $ - 8 2,433 $ 48,801 $ 637
Property taxes receivable 120,098 14 20,840 93,109 3,341
Total assets 311,094 14 23,273 141,910 3,978
LIABILITIES
Uncollected taxes 120,098 14 20,840 93,109 3,341
Due to local governments 36,819 294 - - -
Total liabilities 156,917 308 20,840 93,109 3,341
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 154,177 (294) 2,433 48,801 637
Total net position $ 154,177 § (294) $ 2,433 $ 48,801 § 637
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MUNICIPALITIES FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

Coward Scranton Timmonsville Johnsonville Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 131§ 19 $ 8,131 § 1,163 § 252,482
Property taxes receivable - - 45,091 59,227 341,720
Total assets 131 190 53,222 60,390 594,202
LIABILITIES
Uncollected taxes - - 45,091 59,227 341,720
Due to local governments - - - - 37,113
Total liabilities - - 45,091 59,227 378,833
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 131 190 8,131 1,163 215,369
Total net position $ 131§ 190 §$ 8,131 § 1,163 § 215,369

143



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MUNICIPALITIES FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Florence Quinby Pamplico Lake City Olanta
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ 10,275,700 $ - 8 175,534 $ 2,123,437 $ 52,906
Vehicle taxes 1,355,914 - 36,704 370,327 11,998
Delinquent property taxes 508,217 - 35,125 282,611 7,795
Penalties 11,898 - 18 4,643 -
Fees in lieu of taxes 36,819 - - - -
Watercraft taxes 37,788 - 1,544 6,973 956
Less: local option sales tax credits (5,227,738) - (212,900) (931,811) (72,493)
Total additions 6,998,598 - 36,025 1,856,180 1,162
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid 6,968,256 - 35,759 1,835,864 743
Refunds 14,610 - 56 4,413 -
Total deductions 6,982,866 - 35,815 1,840,277 743
Change in fiduciary net position 15,732 - 210 15,903 419
Net position, beginning of year 138,445 (294) 2,223 32,898 218
Net position, end of year $ 154,177  $ (294) $ 2,433 $ 48,801 $ 637
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
MUNICIPALITIES FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Coward Scranton Timmonsville Johnsonville Total
ADDITIONS
Current property taxes $ - 8 - 8 297,048 $ 119,269 $ 13,043,894
Vehicle taxes - - 71,622 35,465 1,882,030
Delinquent property taxes - - 102,361 79,500 1,015,609
Penalties - - 349 - 16,908
Fees in lieu of taxes - - - - 36,819
Watercraft taxes - - 60 1,459 48,780
Less: local option sales tax credits - - (320,048) (232,401) (6,997,391)
Total additions - - 151,392 3,292 9,046,649
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid - - 148,196 3,388 8,992,206
Refunds - - 615 - 19,694
Total deductions - - 148,811 3,388 9,011,900
Change in fiduciary net position - - 2,581 (96) 34,749
Net position, beginning of year 131 190 5,550 1,259 180,620
Net position, end of year $ 131 $ 190 $ 8,131 $ 1,163 $ 215,369
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIRE BOARD FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

South West Windy Hill/ Hannah-Salem
Lynches Florence Olanta Pamplico Friendfield
Fire Rural Fire Rural Fire Fire Fire
District District District District District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15213 § - 8 - $ 12
Total assets 15,213 - - 12
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 15,213 - - 12
Total net position $ 15,213 § - 3 - $ 12
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIRE BOARD FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

Florence Lake City Timmonsville Johnsonville Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 841 63 15 17 21 16,182
Total assets 841 63 15 17 21 16,182
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 841 63 15 17 21 16,182
Total net position $ 841 63 15 17 21 16,182
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIRE BOARD FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ADDITIONS
Current property taxes
Inventory exemption
Vehicle taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Penalties
State and federal aid
Interest on investments
State homestead exemption
Fees in lieu of taxes
Watercraft taxes

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid
Refunds
Total deductions
Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

South West Windy Hill/ Hannah-Salem
Lynches Florence Olanta Pamplico Friendfield
Fire Rural Fire Rural Fire Fire Fire
District District District District District
$ 454,030 $ - - - -
11,208 - - - -
88,002 - - - -
27,893 - - - -
885 - - - -
17,648 76,671 59,047 1,462 5,469
81 - - - -
24,762 - - - -
91,547 - - - -
4,934 - - - -
720,990 76,671 59,047 1,462 5,469
825,510 201,120 165,525 1,463 25,786
1,145 - - - -
826,655 201,120 165,525 1,463 25,786
(105,665) (124,449) (106,478) ) (20,317)
120,878 124,449 106,478 13 20,317
$ 15213 §$ - - 12 -
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIRE BOARD FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ADDITIONS
Current property taxes
Inventory exemption
Vehicle taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Penalties
State and federal aid
Interest on investments
State homestead exemption
Fees in lieu of taxes
Watercraft taxes

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Claims paid

Refunds

Total deductions

Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Florence Lake City Scranton Timmonsville Johnsonville Total
$ - 8 - 8 - - - 454,030
- - - - - 11,208
- - - - - 88,002
- - - - - 27,893
- - - - - 885
129,217 10,575 950 - 2,712 303,751
2 - - - - 83
- - - - - 24,762
- - - - - 91,547
- - - - - 4,934
129,219 10,575 950 - 2,712 1,007,095
129,217 10,575 950 - 2,712 1,362,858
- - - - - 1,145
129,217 10,575 950 - 2,712 1,364,003
2 - - - - (356,908)
839 63 15 17 21 373,090
$ 841 § 63 § 15 17 21 16,182
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

SHERIFF'S FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

Sheriff's Fed Narcotics Court FCSO
Fund Seized IB South DOJ Seized IB Narcotics Commissary Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 223,398 $ 147,290 $ 108,511 § 1,612,244 2,722 $ 123,166 $ 2,217,331
Other - 19,077 - - - - 19,077
Due from others - - - - 88,442 - 88,442
Total assets 223,398 166,367 108,511 1,612,244 91,164 123,166 2,324,850
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - - - - 25,140 - 25,140
Due to other funds - - - 88,442 19,077 - 107,519
Total liabilities - - - 88,442 44,217 - 132,659
NET POSITION
Restricted for organizations and other governments 223,398 166,367 108,511 1,523,802 46,947 123,166 2,192,191
Total net position $ 223,398 $ 166,367 $ 108,511 $ 1,523,802 46,947 $ 123,166 2,192,191
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SHERIFF'S FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ADDITIONS

Cash received from others

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Cash paid to others

Total deductions

Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Sheriff's Fed Narcotics Court FCSO
Fund Seized IB South DOJ Seized IB Narcotics Commissary Total

$ 1,406,117 166,367 $ 135,927 1,612,723 § 163,537 259,735 3,744,406
1,406,117 166,367 135,971 1,613,432 163,540 259,822 3,745,249
2,380,159 - 27,460 89,630 116,593 136,656 2,750,498
2,380,159 - 27,460 89,630 116,593 136,656 2,750,498
(974,042) 166,367 108,511 1,523,802 46,947 123,166 994,751
1,197,440 - - - - - 1,197,440

$ 223,398 166,367 $ 108,511 1,523,802 $ 46,947 123,166 2,192,191
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)

AND ACTUAL

Taxes
Property tax
Sales tax
Fees in lieu of tax
Total taxes

Licenses and permits
Tax assessor fees
Cable TV fees
Building permit fees
Landfill permits
Road system maintenance fees
Planning commission fees
Total licenses and permits

Fines and fees
Library fines
Tax collector's costs and fees
Magistrates' fines
Clerk of Court fines
Clerk of Court fees
Master in Equity fees
Judge of Probate fees
Family court fees
Total fines and fees

Intergovernmental
Library state and federal
State revenue - local government fund
Election commission
Veterans' affairs
Public defender
Solicitor
Municipalities
Merchant inventory exemption
Accommodations tax
Other
Total intergovernmental

Variance

Budgeted Amounts with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 26,358,540 $ 26,358,540 25,749,570 $ (608,970)
15,437,467 15,437,467 16,439,927 1,002,460
3,008,000 3,008,000 2,716,392 (291,608)
44,804,007 44,804,007 44,905,889 101,882
6,520 6,520 6,558 38
825,000 825,000 933,423 108,423
763,300 763,300 842,687 79,387
- - 8 8
612,990 612,990 481,527 (131,463)
4,100 4,100 41,850 37,750
2,211,910 2,211,910 2,306,053 94,143
82,206 82,206 35,916 (46,290)
522,000 522,000 545,684 23,684
1,160,000 1,160,000 747,849 (412,151)
30,000 30,000 66,287 36,287
912,000 912,000 1,475,155 563,155
105,000 105,000 74,916 (30,084)
254,000 254,000 316,052 62,052
410,000 410,000 418,875 8,875
3,475,206 3,475,206 3,680,734 205,528
273,770 273,770 278,013 4,243
6,126,604 6,126,604 6,050,382 (76,222)
64,000 64,000 139,816 75,816
6,700 6,700 7,014 314
230,000 230,000 336,824 106,824
282,000 282,000 306,245 24,245
74,350 74,350 80,555 6,205
356,006 356,006 - (356,006)
43,000 43,000 43,220 220
97,800 97,800 145,494 47,694
7,554,230 7,554,230 7,387,563 (166,667)

(Continued)

152



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)

AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Sales and other functional revenues
Rent
Emergency medical services
Recreation
Inmate per diem
Sheriff serving fees
Commissary sales
Inmate telephone system
Other
Total sales and other functional revenues

Miscellaneous
Interest on investments
Tax sale escrow accounts held five years
Sales of abandoned property
Other
Total miscellaneous

Total revenues

Variance

Budgeted Amounts with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 246,483 $ 246,483 $ 304,005 $ 57,522
7,003,090 7,003,090 7,565,132 562,042
620,500 620,500 563,437 (57,063)
612,000 612,000 634,080 22,080
31,520 31,520 47,048 15,528
73,378 73,378 - (73,378)
83,254 83,254 - (83,254)
3,800 3,800 4,175 375
8,674,025 8,674,025 9,117,877 443,852
50,000 50,000 177,685 127,685
10,000 10,000 7,119 (2,881)
465,000 465,000 273,814 (191,186)
401,800 401,800 272,828 (128,972)
926,800 926,800 731,446 (195,354)
$ 67,646,178 $ 67,646,178 $ 68,129,562 § 483,384
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
General government
County council:
Personnel services $ 256,703 $ 256,703  $ 253,853 % (2,850)
Supplies 10,278 10,278 5,648 (4,630)
Other services and charges 112,639 112,639 88,337 (24,302)
Capital outlay 6,484 6,484 6,304 (180)
Direct assistance 6,601 6,601 8,350 1,749
Total county council 392,705 392,705 362,492 (30,213)
Attorney:
Other services and charges 103,642 103,642 128,621 24,979
Total attorney 103,642 103,642 128,621 24,979
Administrator:
Personnel services 853,912 853,912 687,803 (166,109)
Supplies 8,700 8,700 2,897 (5,803)
Other services and charges 18,676 18,676 25,477 6,801
Capital outlay 5,692 5,692 - (5,692)
Total administrator 886,980 886,980 716,177 (170,803)
Finance:
Personnel services 488,884 488,884 558,909 70,025
Supplies 26,372 26,372 25,362 (1,010)
Other services and charges 357,848 357,848 412,087 54,239
Capital outlay 6,600 6,600 486 (6,114)
Total finance 879,704 879,704 996,844 117,140
Treasurer:
Personnel services 974,904 974,904 932,068 (42,836)
Supplies 86,623 86,623 81,151 (5,472)
Other services and charges 331,498 331,498 326,574 (4,924)
Capital outlay 16,320 16,320 8,060 (8,260)
Total treasurer 1,409,345 1,409,345 1,347,853 (61,492)
Information technology:
Personnel services 1,132,285 1,132,285 1,083,814 (48,471)
Supplies 32,752 32,752 32,752 -
Other services and charges 1,714,590 1,714,590 1,626,410 (88,180)
Capital outlay 220,160 220,160 184,020 (36,140)
Total information technology 3,099,787 3,099,787 2,926,996 (172,791)
Auditor:
Personnel services 550,085 550,085 543,274 (6,811)
Supplies 15,661 15,661 15,085 (576)
Other services and charges 17,769 17,769 13,695 (4,074)
Total auditor 583,515 583,515 572,054 (11,461)
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)

AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Tax assessor:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total tax assessor

Procurement:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total procurement

Clerk of court:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total clerk of court

Court of common pleas
Personnel services
Other services and charges

Total court of common pleas

Solicitor:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total solicitor

Human resources:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total human resources

Family court:
Personnel services
Other services and charges
Total family court

Variance

Budgeted Amounts with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 1,359,803 $ 1,359,803 $ 1,311,228 (48,575)
14,305 14,305 14,037 (268)
73,169 73,169 58,248 (14,921)
1,447,277 1,447,277 1,383,513 (63,764)
228,201 228,201 216,389 (11,812)
3,332 3,332 3,274 (58)
10,354 10,354 5,409 (4,945)
241,887 241,887 225,072 (16,815)
999,777 999,777 929,946 (69,831)
26,413 26,413 19,354 (7,059)
68,072 68,072 54,414 (13,658)
1,094,262 1,094,262 1,003,714 (90,548)
124,892 124,892 105,447 (19,445)
65,465 65,465 52,781 (12,684)
190,357 190,357 158,228 (32,129)
1,155,761 1,155,761 1,118,598 (37,163)
17,297 17,297 16,393 (904)
122,039 122,039 122,256 217
34,874 34,874 34,873 (1)
1,329,971 1,329,971 1,292,120 (37,851)
506,715 506,715 293,645 (213,070)

7,857 7,857 7,857 -
29,824 29,824 21,120 (8,704)
31,200 31,200 31,086 (114)
575,596 575,596 353,708 (221,888)
575,097 575,097 490,986 (84,111)
1,445 1,445 1,441 (4)
576,542 576,542 492,427 (84,115)

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Judge of probate:
Personnel services $ 615545 $ 615,545 $ 553,569 $ (61,976)
Supplies 25,003 25,003 13,024 (11,979)
Other services and charges 38,325 38,325 32,524 (5,801)
Total judge of probate 678,873 678,873 599,117 (79,756)
Public defender:
Personnel services 993,078 993,078 913,990 (79,088)
Supplies 7,437 7,437 7,284 (153)
Other services and charges 49,016 49,016 43,618 (5,398)
Capital outlay 2,148 2,148 2,148 -
Total public defender 1,051,679 1,051,679 967,040 (84,639)
Master in equity:
Personnel services 244,901 244,901 247,743 2,842
Supplies 954 954 241 (713)
Other services and charges 3,871 3,871 2,146 (1,725)
Capital outlay 1,000 1,000 888 (112)
Total master in equity 250,726 250,726 251,018 292
Magistrates' offices:
Personnel services 2,277,815 2,277,815 2,010,964 (266,851)
Supplies 41,211 41,211 39,064 (2,147)
Other services and charges 248,467 248,467 183,303 (65,164)
Capital outlay 27,545 27,545 4,924 (22,621)
Total magistrates' offices 2,595,038 2,595,038 2,238,255 (356,783)
Building inspections:
Personnel services 1,497,704 1,497,704 1,116,528 (381,176)
Supplies 20,426 20,426 12,818 (7,608)
Other services and charges 568,970 568,970 427,235 (141,735)
Capital outlay 47,300 47,300 42,681 (4,619)
Total building inspections 2,134,400 2,134,400 1,599,262 (535,138)
GIS:
Personnel services 326,424 326,424 319,009 (7,415)
Supplies 7,254 7,254 5,159 (2,095)
Other services and charges 135,193 135,193 119,108 (16,085)
Capital outlay 4,000 4,000 3,257 (743)
Total GIS 472,871 472,871 446,533 (26,338)
Voter registration and election commission:
Personnel services 340,073 340,073 364,193 24,120
Supplies 53,064 53,064 16,129 (36,935)
Other services and charges 390,140 390,140 647,717 257,577
Total voter registration and election commission 783,277 783,277 1,028,039 244,762
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Veterans' affairs:
Personnel services $ 205,118 % 205,118  $ 183,277  $ (21,841)
Supplies 837 837 527 (310)
Other services and charges 50,663 50,663 42,805 (7,858)
Total veterans' affairs 256,618 256,618 226,609 (30,009)
Facilities management:
Personnel services 723,208 723,208 591,850 (131,358)
Supplies 12,667 12,667 1,955 (10,712)
Other services and charges 1,936,281 1,936,281 1,934,289 (1,992)
Capital outlay 70,816 70,816 - (70,816)
Total facilities management 2,742,972 2,742,972 2,528,094 (214,878)
Lake City Senior Center:
Personnel services 4,885 4,885 - (4,885)
Supplies - - 4,885 4,885
Other services and charges 145,615 145,615 145,609 (6)
Total Lake City Senior Center 150,500 150,500 150,494 (6)
Direct assistance:
Council of Governments 102,664 102,664 102,664 -
Senior Citizens Association 45,120 45,120 24,144 (20,976)
Pee Dee CAA 9,120 9,120 9,120 -
City-County Stadium Commission 5,200 5,200 5,200 -
Others 139,293 139,293 141,293 2,000
Total direct assistance 301,397 301,397 282,421 (18,976)
Other:
Personnel services 958,492 958,492 517,658 (440,834)
Other services and charges 831,029 831,029 774,388 (56,641)
Total other 1,789,521 1,789,521 1,292,046 (497,475)
Total general government 26,019,442 26,019,442 23,568,747 (2,450,695)
Public safety
Sheriff's office:
Personnel services 8,503,321 8,503,321 8,624,847 121,526
Supplies 159,593 159,593 29,088 (130,505)
Other services and charges 2,143,071 2,143,071 2,245,950 102,879
Capital outlay 1,593,332 1,593,332 1,049,346 (543,986)
Total sheriff's office 12,399,317 12,399,317 11,949,231 (450,086)
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
County jail:
Personnel services $ 4423430 $ 4,423,430 $ 4544735  $ 121,305
Supplies 224,482 224,482 24,981 (199,501)
Other services and charges 2,560,570 2,560,570 2,636,204 75,634
Capital outlay 867,041 867,041 722,081 (144,960)
Total county jail 8,075,523 8,075,523 7,928,001 (147,522)
Radio system:
Personnel services 6,049 6,049 - (6,049)
Other services and charges 624,278 624,278 589,022 (35,256)
Capital outlay 72,764 72,764 111,618 38,854
Total radio system 703,091 703,091 700,640 (2,451)
Central dispatch:
Personnel services 2,344,600 2,344,600 1,797,627 (546,973)
Supplies 20,326 20,326 3,556 (16,770)
Other services and charges 254,211 254,211 257,038 2,827
Capital outlay 33,393 33,393 33,392 (1)
Total central dispatch 2,652,530 2,652,530 2,091,613 (560,917)
Emergency preparedness:
Personnel services 314,957 314,957 289,526 (25,431)
Supplies 8,470 8,470 3,508 (4,962)
Other services and charges 199,408 199,408 196,575 (2,833)
Total emergency preparedness 522,835 522,835 489,609 (33,226)
Total public safety 24,353,296 24,353,296 23,159,094 (1,194,202)
Public works
Public works operating:
Other services and charges 2,039,185 2,039,185 - (2,039,185)
Capital outlay - - 574,714 574,714
Total public works operating 2,039,185 2,039,185 574,714 (1,464,471)
Central maintenance:
Other services and charges 1,018,102 1,018,102 986,372 (31,730)
Total central maintenance 1,018,102 1,018,102 986,372 (31,730)
Total public works 3,057,287 3,057,287 1,561,086 (1,496,201)
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Health
Health department:
Other services and charges $ 76,850 $ 76,850 $ 76,677 $ (173)
Total health department 76,850 76,850 76,677 (173)
Environmental services:
Personnel services 660,429 660,429 504,469 (155,960)
Supplies 5,121 5,121 319 (4,802)
Other services and charges 255,202 255,202 252,513 (2,689)
Capital outlay 42,266 42,266 13,852 (28,414)
Total environmental services 963,018 963,018 771,153 (191,865)
Emergency medical services:
Personnel services 6,742,381 6,742,381 6,795,960 53,579
Supplies 211,342 211,342 3,664 (207,678)
Other services and charges 763,525 763,525 950,873 187,348
Capital outlay 784,972 784,972 410,728 (374,244)
Total emergency medical services 8,502,220 8,502,220 8,161,225 (340,995)
Rescue - ambulance squads:
Personnel services 54,671 54,671 - (54,671)
Other services and charges 20,034 20,034 74,703 54,669
Direct assistance 598,640 598,640 598,640 -
Total rescue - ambulance squads 673,345 673,345 673,343 (2)
Coroner:
Personnel services 279,093 279,093 279,731 638
Supplies 3,045 3,045 1,899 (1,146)
Other services and charges 164,292 164,292 235,121 70,829
Capital outlay 47,525 47,525 45,962 (1,563)
Total coroner 493,955 493,955 562,713 68,758
On-site clinic:
Personnel services 13,281 13,281 - (13,281)
Other services and charges 196,719 196,719 220,189 23,470
Total on-site clinic 210,000 210,000 220,189 10,189
Direct assistance:
Direct assistance 14,502 14,502 14,502 -
Total direct assistance 14,502 14,502 14,502 -
Total health 10,933,890 10,933,890 10,479,802 (454,088)
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Welfare
Indigent care:
Other services and charges $ 316,432 § 316,432 $ 316,432 § -
Total indigent care 316,432 316,432 316,432 -
Social services:
Other services and charges 21,500 21,500 17,201 (4,299)
Total social services 21,500 21,500 17,201 (4,299)
Pee Dee Coalition:
Direct assistance 14,120 14,120 14,120 -
Total Pee Dee Coalition 14,120 14,120 14,120 -
Total welfare 352,052 352,052 347,753 (4,299)
Culture and recreation
Library:
Personnel services 2,879,536 2,879,536 2,780,428 (99,108)
Supplies 52,875 52,875 46,740 (6,135)
Other services and charges 1,096,520 1,096,520 1,031,217 (65,303)
Capital outlay 57,956 57,956 57,681 (275)
Total library 4,086,887 4,086,887 3,916,066 (170,821)
Recreation:
Personnel services 502,215 502,215 468,458 (33,757)
Supplies 69,205 69,205 3,501 (65,704)
Other services and charges 859,752 859,752 1,024,920 165,168
Capital outlay 73,241 73,241 107,786 34,545
Direct assistance 123,484 123,484 - (123,484)
Total recreation 1,627,897 1,627,897 1,604,665 (23,232)
Lynches River County Park:
Personnel services 275,776 275,776 255,523 (20,253)
Supplies 49,063 49,063 1,326 (47,737)
Other services and charges 124,193 124,193 169,896 45,703
Capital outlay 40,047 40,047 39,999 (48)
Total Lynches River County Park 489,079 489,079 466,744 (22,335)
Summer camps:
Personnel services 4,435 4,435 4,877 442
Supplies 500 500 - (500)
Other services and charges 872 872 1,320 448
Total summer camps 5,807 5,807 6,197 390
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Leatherman Senior Center:
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total Leatherman Senior Center

Total culture and recreation
Education
Literary council:
Direct assistance
Total literary council

Total education

Total expenditures

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ 119,507  $ 119,507  $ 135,108 $ 15,601
11,140 11,140 - (11,140)
190,228 190,228 194,910 4,682
41,577 41,577 37,623 (3,954)
362,452 362,452 367,641 5,189
6,572,122 6,572,122 6,361,313 (210,809)
4,515 4,515 4,515 -
4,515 4,515 4,515 -
4,515 4,515 4,515 -
$ 71,292,604 $ 71,292,604 $ 65,482,310 $ (5,810,294)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2022

Treasurer
General and Road
Operations Tax Sale Paving Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,241,636 $ 3,644,624 $ 1,248,446 $ 35,134,706
Receivables, net:
Property taxes 922,339 - - 922,339
Other governmental units and agencies 3,229,659 469 - 3,230,128
Others 1,151,631 122,341 - 1,273,972
Inventory 69,492 - - 69,492
Prepaids 1,395,977 - - 1,395,977
Leases receivable 1,052,584 - - 1,052,584
Total assets $ 38,063,318 $ 3,767,434 $ 1,248,446 § 43,079,198
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,100,135 $ -3 321,305 $ 2,421,440
Payroll withholdings and accruals 1,958,683 - - 1,958,683
Other liabilities 2,602,717 3,757,261 - 6,359,978
Unearned revenue 1,965,639 - - 1,965,639
Total liabilities 8,627,174 3,757,261 321,305 12,705,740
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes 516,868 - - 516,868
Lease receipts 1,043,589 - 1,043,589
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,560,457 - - 1,560,457
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 1,465,469 - - 1,465,469
Committed:
Road paving - - 927,141 927,141
Assigned:
General government 349,684 - - 349,684
Unassigned 26,060,534 10,173 - 26,070,707
Total fund balances 27,875,687 10,173 927,141 28,813,001
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 38,063,318 $ 3,767,434 $ 1,248,446 $ 43,079,198
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
COMBINING DETAIL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Treasurer
General and Road
Revenues: Operations Tax Sale Paving Total
Taxes $ 44,905,889 $ - 9 -9 44,905,889
Licenses and permits 1,824,526 - 481,527 2,306,053
Fines and fees 3,680,734 - - 3,680,734
Intergovernmental 7,387,563 - - 7,387,563
Sales and other functional revenues 9,117,877 - - 9,117,877
Miscellaneous 448,268 9,364 - 457,632
Total revenues 67,364,857 9,364 481,527 67,855,748
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 23,370,248 - - 23,370,248
Public safety 23,159,094 - - 23,159,094
Public works 986,372 - - 986,372
Health 10,479,802 - - 10,479,802
Welfare 347,753 - - 347,753
Culture and recreation 6,361,313 - - 6,361,313
Education 4,515 - - 4,515
Capital outlay - - 574,714 574,714
Debt service:
Principal retirements 757,498 - - 757,498
Interest 1,952 - - 1,952
Total expenditures 65,468,547 - 574,714 66,043,261
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,896,310 9,364 (93,187) 1,812,487
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of leases 7,456 7,456
Sale of capital assets 273,814 - - 273,814
Transfers in 839,631 - - 839,631
Transfers out (1,089,253) - - (1,089,253)
Total other financing sources 31,648 - - 31,648
Net change in fund balance 1,927,958 9,364 (93,187) 1,844,135
Fund balance, beginning of year 25,947,729 809 1,020,328 26,968,866
Fund balance, end of year $ 27,875,687 $ 10,173 $ 927141  $ 28,813,001
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
UNIFORM SCHEDULE OF COURT FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES (per ACT 96)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FOR THE STATE TREASURER'S OFFICE:

Total Funds Allocated to Victim Service Fund + Beginning Balance (A)

COUNTY / MUNICIPAL FUNDS COLLECTED General Magistrate Municipal Total
BY CLERK OF COURT Sessions Court Court —
Court Fines and Assessments:
Court fines and assessments collected $ 773211 $ 1,645,612 $ - 1,722,933
Court fines and assessments remitted to State 51,391 838,743 ) 890,134
Treasurer
Total Court Fines and Assessments retained $ 25,930( $ 806,809 | $ - 832,799
Surcharges and Assessments retained for victim
services:
Surcharges collected and retained $ 30,818 $ 9,122 $ - 39,940
Assessments retained 6,583 55,103 - 61,686
Tota.l Surcharges and Assessments retained for victim $ 37401 s 64225 $ ) 101,626
services
FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION (DCVC)

VICTIM SERVICE FUNDS COLLECTED Municipal County Total
Carryforward from Previous Year — Beginning Balance $ -1$ (16,827) (16,827)
Victim Service Revenue:

Victim Service Assessments Retained by City/County Treasurer - 61,686 61,686
Victim Service Surcharges Retained by City/County Treasurer - 39,940 39,940
Interest Earned - (83) (83)
Grant Funds Received
Grant from: State Treasurer - 10,156 10,156
General Funds Transferred to Victim Service Fund - - -
Contribution Received from Victim Service Contracts:
(1) Town of Pamplico - 5,134 5,134
(2) Town of - - -
(3) City of . _ )
$ -8 100,006 100,006

Developed by the Office of the Attorney General, Department of Crime Victim Compensation
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
UNIFORM SCHEDULE OF COURT FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES (per ACT 96)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Expenditures for Victim Service Program:

Municipal

County

Total

Salaries and Benefits

$ -

187,986

187,986

Operating Expenditures

37,057

37,057

Victim Service Contract(s):

(1) Entity's Name:

(2) Entity's Name

Victim Service Donation(s):

(1) Domestic Violence Shelter:

(2) Rape Crisis Center:

(3) Other local direct crime victims service agency:

Transferred to General Fund

Total Expenditures from Victim Service Fund/Program (B)

225,043

225,043

Total Victim Service Funds Retained by Municipal/County Treasurer (A-B)

(125,037)

(125,037)

Less: Prior Year Fund Deficit Repayment

Carryforward Funds — End of Year

@
1

$

(125,037)

(125,037)

Developed by the Office of the Attorney General, Department of Crime Victim Compensation
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader

understand how the government’s financial performance and

well-being have changed over time. 166 - 171
Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader

assess the government’s most significant local revenue

source, the property tax. 172 - 175
Debt Capacity

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader

understand how the government’s financial performance and

well-being have changed over time. 176 - 179
Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic

indicators to help the reader understand the environment

within which the government’s financial activities take place. 180 - 182
Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to

help the reader understand how the information in the

government’s financial report relates to the services the

government provides and the activities it performs. 183 - 184

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information presented in these schedules is derived from the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the respective fiscal year.



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NET POSITION BY ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-type Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Business-type Activities Net Position

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Primary Government Net Position

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
77,125,393 $ 75,427,832 $ 65,392,234 $ 39,424,586 $ 58,072,978 $ 62,858,231 $ 69,865,542 $ 81,704,203 $ 82,147,317 $ 89,826,988
15,281,885 28,585,336 165,858,022 150,489,601 89,836,530 67,946,540 53,424,775 62,124,566 185,329,309 137,067,105
(7,788,058) (70,316,860) _ (205,361,284)  (174,925,359)  (144,940,830) _ (156,111,213) _ (139,351,844)  (150,262,710) _ (249,590,298) _ (185,584,032)
84,619,220 33,696,308 25,888,972 14,988,828 2,968,678 (25,306,442) (16,061,527) (6,433,941) 17,886,328 41,310,061

2,357,350 2,344,611 2,341,129 3,489,513 3,345,807 4,983,921 4,287,798 3,736,738 3,299,740 2,986,732

4,917,203 4,649,734 4,582,639 3,541,697 2,684,049 198,759 (596,055) (1,266,329) (2,151,248) (2,353,240)

7,274,553 6,994,345 6,923,768 7,031,210 6,029,856 5,182,680 3,691,743 2,470,409 1,148,492 633,492
79,482,743 77,772,443 67,733,363 42,914,099 61,418,785 67,842,152 74,153,340 85,440,941 85,447,057 92,813,720
15,281,885 28,585,336 165,858,022 150,489,601 89,836,530 67,946,540 53,424,775 62,124,566 185,329,309 137,067,105
(2,870,855) (65,667,126) _ (200,778,645)  (171,383,662)  (142,256,781) _ (155,912,454)  (139,947,899)  (151,529,039)  (251,741,546) _ (187,937,272)
91,893,773 $ 40,690,653 $ 32,812,740 § 22,020,038 $ 8,998,534 $ (20,123,762) $ (12,369,784) $ (3,963,532) § 19,034,820 $ 41,943,553
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Interest on long-term debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses

Business-type Activities:
Utility system
Landfill
E911 system
Total Business-type Activities Expense

Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Culture and recreation
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-type Activities:
Landfill

E911 system
Capital grants and contributions
Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues

Total Primary Government Program Revenues

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 24449488 $ 28,984,266 $ 32,968,012 $ 31412371 $ 41,456,628 $ 46,893,088 §$ 38,095955 $ 37,981,944 $ 25104,225 §$ 47,531,175
21,906,996 22,821,341 48,113,208 50,270,768 35,271,172 32,970,498 30,693,994 37,699,251 48,316,738 32,518,455
1,323,197 797,993 949,632 834,666 576,196 577,564 882,434 902,034 800,757 2,862,230
5,829,320 6,324,090 6,078,128 6,629,439 6,164,571 14,066,968 15,243,716 5,878,151 5,204,173 6,713,673
6,841,756 7,687,094 7,889,577 7,616,736 7,838,830 11,210,790 10,571,725 11,876,808 12,639,201 11,252,052
424,560 432,731 535,181 481,948 387,731 355,900 352,037 437,893 477,523 347,753
8,294,734 11,671,952 9,597,047 9,740,455 13,156,309 10,472,493 9,478,226 10,537,021 12,070,758 10,204,764
2,261,113 2,799,515 2,394,515 2,599,515 2,279,515 2,816,515 2,576,587 2,528,282 4,012,461 2,955,600
1,151,563 2,384,784 3,975,680 4,984,213 3,928,219 5,627,421 4,877,841 7,375,363 7,472,465 1,671,759
72,482,727 83,903,766 112,500,980 114,570,111 111,059,171 124,991,237 112,772,515 115,216,747 116,098,302 116,057,461
247,524 304,654 653,946 265,669 137,167 26,242 2,972 75,575 73,335 685
4,151,174 4,295,367 4,344,662 4,142,704 4,460,208 5,168,371 4,274,437 5,196,204 5,776,725 5,903,304
377,608 318,981 384,900 391,379 795,633 1,812,157 1,842,837 1,445,936 1,327,055 1,267,261
4,776,306 4,919,002 5,383,508 4,799,752 5,393,008 7,006,770 6,120,246 6,717,715 7,177,115 7,171,250
77,259,033 88,822,768 117,884,488 119,369,863 116,452,179 131,998,007 118,892,761 121,934,462 123,275,417 123,228,711
4,021,390 4,298,123 4,576,216 4,785,399 4,555,913 4,270,722 4,572,425 3,736,911 4,205,250 5,283,357
1,353,673 1,223,184 1,075,856 808,345 885,042 1,167,209 2,633,404 2,264,810 2,468,641 1,847,370
- - - - 3,038,807 - - - - -
3,278,277 3,338,800 3,376,552 3,404,263 430,896 3,883,634 3,945,335 3,902,174 4,163,124 3,682,216
3,445,496 3,481,032 3,813,007 3,890,581 4,712,408 5,930,633 6,844,906 6,364,228 7,559,287 7,565,132
615,393 675,374 779,186 869,215 1,020,137 951,630 942,973 676,774 643,082 2,098,937
10,685,448 10,382,159 10,871,844 12,483,035 14,172,861 14,015,863 13,482,182 14,426,154 17,651,319 7,602,547
16,806,648 7,277,732 6,418,530 1,176,312 1,306,023 2,910,906 2,931,183 3,921,646 7,719,210 14,143,441
40,206,325 30,676,404 30,911,191 27,417,150 30,122,087 33,130,597 35,352,408 35,292,697 44,409,913 42,223,000
3,072,460 3,201,739 3,790,943 3,819,042 3,586,222 4,039,773 4,055,437 5,086,956 5,132,151 -
681,570 747,254 733,147 933,253 681,983 2,355,180 809,230 651,706 885,153 5,944,630
- - - - - - - - - 968,220
3,754,030 3,948,993 4,524,090 4,752,295 4,268,205 6,394,953 4,864,667 5,738,662 6,017,304 6,912,850
$ 43,960,355 $ 34625397 $ 35435281 § 32,169,445 § 34,390,292 $ 395255550 $ 40,217,075 $ 41,031,359 § 50,427,217 $ 49,135,850
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

General Revenues and Other Changes

in Net Position
Governmental Activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Fees in lieu of taxes
Franchise fees
Accommodations tax
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ (32,276,402) $ (53,227,362) $ (81,589,789) $ (87,152,961) $ (80,937,084) $ (91,860,640) $ (77,420,107) $ (79,924,050) $ (71,688,389) $ (73,834,461)
(1,022,276) (970,009) (859,418) (47,457) (1,124,803) (611,817) (1,255,579) (979,053) (1,159,811) (258,400)
(33,298,678) (54,197,371) (82,449,207) (87,200,418) (82,061,887) (92,472,457) (78,675,686) (80,903,103) (72,848,200) (74,092,861)
30,188,109 32,836,060 32,529,215 33,598,799 36,022,577 37,221,723 39,624,128 36,273,730 40,731,101 42,417,547
11,671,007 12,030,513 33,314,201 33,317,980 30,111,984 35,700,662 35,978,696 40,025,567 42,420,083 46,198,939
2,164,050 2,840,843 3,501,488 3,410,391 3,454,943 3,665,131 3,657,677 5,737,214 6,348,308 5,542,671
915,652 694,453 714,302 718,886 771,211 818,785 864,794 889,486 925,374 2,306,053
3,382,728 3,531,063 3,764,832 4,118,264 4,105,549 4,112,882 4,351,884 3,949,566 4,059,306 4,427,504
125,027 122,636 738,013 1,226,359 232,305 100,676 1,929,329 1,887,008 1,094,865 1,208,162
- - - - - - - 530,562 171,116 273,814
(921,868) (838,868) (779,598) (137,862) (102,111) 258,504 258,504 258,504 258,504 258,504
47,524,705 51,216,700 73,782,453 76,252,817 74,596,458 81,878,363 86,665,012 89,551,637 96,008,657 102,633,194
9,666 7,572 9,243 17,037 21,338 23,146 23,146 16,223 1,398 1,904
- - - - - - - - 95,000 -
921,868 838,868 779,598 137,862 102,111 (258,504) (258,504) (258,504) (258,504) (258,504)
931,534 846,440 788,841 154,899 123,449 (235,358) (235,358) (242,281) (162,106) (256,600)
48,456,239 52,063,140 74,571,294 76,407,716 74,719,907 81,643,005 86,429,654 89,309,356 95,846,551 102,376,594
15,248,303 (2,010,662) (7,807,336) (10,900,144) (6,340,626) (9,982,277) 9,244,905 9,627,587 24,320,268 28,798,733
(90,742) (123,569) (70,577) 107,442 (1,001,354) (847,175) (1,490,937) (1,221,334) (1,321,917) (515,000)
$ 15157,561 $ (2,134,231) $ (7,877,913) $ (10,792,702) $ (7,341,980) $ (10,829,452) $ 7,753,968 $ 8,406,253 § 22,998,351 § 28,283,733
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Fund
Nonspendable
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total all other governmental funds

Total all governmental funds

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1,226,041  $ 486,517 $ 766,042 $ 1,741,280 $ 1,786,933 § 731,672 $ 1,059,067 $ 818,188 $ 1,826,492 $ 1,465,469
1,415,408 1,310,185 1,463,113 1,083,868 1,432,273 1,640,188 918,126 866,272 1,020,328 927,141
59,417 30,679 148,847 533,840 333,439 263,738 319,248 210,508 59,112 349,684
9,881,199 10,828,609 13,177,669 12,778,519 14,023,164 16,347,688 15,860,731 15,291,847 24,062,934 26,070,707
12,582,065 $ 12,655,990 §$ 15,555,671 $ 16,137,507 $ 17,575,809 $ 18,983,286 $ 18,157,172 § 17,186,815 § 26,968,866 $ 28,813,001
142,602 $ 194,068 $ 176,672  § 194,173  § 172,442 § 182,382 § 182,382 § 168,602 $ 1,058,594 $ 201,002
25,001,299 153,124,260 165,858,022 150,489,590 87,101,709 64,945,417 52,678,871 62,124,566 185,329,309 174,933,546
914,101 1,944,181 1,743,071 1,233,483 969,109 1,097,197 944,753 1,062,390 1,430,214 1,430,214
(18,203) - (136,445) (105,925) (283,781) (205,036) (8) (8) (521,014) (125,037)
26,039,799 §$ 155,262,509 § 167,641,320 $ 151,811,321 $ 87,959,479 $ 66,019,960 $ 53,805998 $ 63,355,550 § 187,297,103 $ 176,439,725
38,621,864 $ 167,918,499 § 183,196,991 § 167,948,828 $ 105,535,288 $ 85,003,246 $ 71,963,170 $ 80,542,365 § 214,265,969 $ 205,252,726
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Sales and other functional revenues
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Refunding lease issuance costs
Paying agent fee
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 43,615,461 $ 47,350,139 68,480,047 $ 69,478,984 $ 68,634,347 $ 75,098,622 $ 78,983,209 $ 80,704,903 $ 89,109,050 $ 94,158,027
1,980,518 1,857,613 1,998,971 2,291,631 2,222,934 2,202,810 2,495,643 2,048,134 2,338,545 2,306,053
9,425,804 9,823,938 9,849,718 10,932,493 10,974,742 11,702,697 12,514,543 11,722,673 12,675,400 13,948,120
10,924,089 11,181,138 14,072,329 11,407,538 12,088,668 13,459,933 13,964,441 12,965,647 25,162,519 23,584,507
5,690,198 5,545,915 5,726,085 5,726,323 6,675,577 7,957,414 9,090,770 7,595,052 8,734,653 9,117,877
3,867,926 5,626,265 3,747,481 3,179,198 4,280,694 4,946,474 4,410,173 4,916,787 1,967,225 1,208,162
75,503,996 81,385,008 103,874,631 103,016,167 104,876,962 115,367,950 121,458,779 119,953,196 139,987,392 144,322,746
23,408,104 26,185,032 27,913,183 24,422,085 26,694,881 29,408,083 30,303,786 29,982,934 18,441,636 26,013,688
20,097,086 21,254,809 23,829,898 24,792,500 25,536,667 26,384,562 29,035,926 30,367,440 34,567,554 30,957,182
1,310,761 784,427 936,066 821,100 559,117 577,564 831,789 726,605 572,891 2,810,244
3,880,542 4,366,736 4,030,007 4,450,224 3,855,274 5,020,524 5,680,217 4,734,959 3,723,255 4,081,050
6,307,817 7,085,410 7,226,115 7,005,594 7,177,240 9,267,342 9,676,769 9,566,987 9,042,545 10,484,410
424,560 432,731 535,181 481,948 387,731 355,900 352,037 352,731 341,637 347,753
7,433,825 7,147,756 8,341,095 8,474,389 9,311,496 9,158,391 8,295,042 8,487,764 8,635,860 9,295,950
2,261,113 2,799,515 2,394,515 2,599,515 2,279,515 2,816,515 2,576,587 2,036,578 2,870,661 2,955,600
7,639,909 11,489,269 39,332,172 43,617,568 62,348,913 44,265,150 18,222,036 18,349,805 38,773,834 34,477,830
5,590,918 5,438,818 20,534,514 22,075,259 25,025,054 25,416,759 28,047,087 32,351,853 34,634,989 27,664,464
815,384 1,056,519 5,442,120 6,660,699 6,430,440 5,743,506 6,236,865 5,367,042 5,482,055 10,159,285
2,300 661,923 192,793 206,320 28,313 - 100,918 227,142 621,324 40,212

- - 30,929 40,399 - - - - - -

- - 3,500 2,500 4,036 4,025 5,300 6,825 3,777 44,453
79,172,319 88,702,945 140,742,088 145,650,100 169,638,677 158,418,321 139,364,359 142,558,665 157,712,018 159,332,121
(3,668,323) (7,317,937) (36,867,457) (42,633,933) (64,761,715) (43,050,371) (17,905,580) (22,605,469) (17,724,626) (15,009,375)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt
Issuance of leases
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Premiums on bond issuances
Payment to bond escrow agents
Discounts on bond issuances
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures®

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 6,866,072 $ 137,428,325 $ 54,249,065 $ 34,230,821 $ 2,441,000 $ 16,457,258 $ 4,607,000 26,412,772 $ 120,000,000 $ 5,851,000
- - - - - - - - 45,326,000 14,912
- - 3,154,824 - - - - 1,163,167 22,620,841 -
- - (4,502,510) (6,687,296) - - - - (37,122,830) -
- - - - - - - - (209,968) -
- - - - - - - 3,350,217 173,577 -
- 14,076,942 9,182,839 3,750,574 2,203,257 2,145,614 7,181,056 1,860,757 11,855,757 273,814
1,880,413 (14,915,810) (9,962,437) (3,888,436) (2,305,368) (1,887,127) (6,922,552) (1,602,253) (11,597,253) 6,635,819
(2,802,281) - - - - - - - - (6,377,315)
5,944,204 136,589,457 52,121,781 27,405,663 2,338,889 16,715,745 4,865,504 31,184,660 151,046,124 6,398,230
$ 2275881 $129,271,520 $ 15,254,324 $ (15,228,270) $ (62,422,826) $ (26,334,626) $ (13,040,076) 8,579,191 $133,321,498 $ (8,611,145)
8.96% 8.41% 25.62% 28.16% 29.32% 27.30% 28.30% 30.37% 33.73% 43.60%

* Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay (to the extent capitalized for the government-wide statement of net position) and expenditures for capitalized assets included within the functional expenditure
categories. This formula adds "functional" and "principal" and divides them by the "total expenditures" minus the "capital outlay."
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Less: Estimated Taxable Assessed
Fiscal Year Non- Non- Manufacturing Tax Exempt Total Taxable Total Actual Value as a

Ended Manufacturing Manufacturing Personal Manufacturing Assessed Direct Taxable Percentage of
June 30 Personal Real and Real Property Value Tax Rate Value Actual Taxable Value

2013 $ 63492850 $ 310,011,297 § 74848943  $ 7,710,260 440,642,830 84.80 8,157,572,459 5.40%

2014 66,883,377 314,076,598 73,118,927 7,342,640 446,736,262 89.30 8,273,721,395 5.40%

2015 71,563,865 319,499,676 76,715,896 7,175,450 460,603,987 86.40 8,492,247,005 5.42%

2016 75,008,143 323,234,005 78,622,827 7,354,050 469,510,925 89.10 8,632,979,037 5.44%

2017 71,567,597 329,337,629 77,743,427 6,857,820 471,790,833 92.20 8,712,360,228 5.42%

2018 67,947,109 335,484,968 75,421,535 5,379,910 473,473,702 93.20 8,777,741,930 5.39%

2019 67,930,744 341,129,774 75,531,993 4,031,810 480,560,701 90.00 8,902,756,469 5.40%

2020 69,067,659 346,051,814 71,353,739 3,789,774 482,683,438 90.70 9,002,556,168 5.36%

2021 71,333,923 359,466,951 82,031,467 3,957,240 508,875,101 94.50 9,396,230,530 5.42%

2022 76,334,153 363,938,795 81,040,028 5,849,800 515,463,176 95.50 9,557,033,268 5.39%

Source: Florence County Auditor

Note:

Property in the County is reassessed every five years. The County appraises property at estimated actual taxable value and then applies the appropriate assessment rate
based on the class of property. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

County-wide Tax Rates
General County
Jail
Emergency Management
Public Safety
Florence-Darlington Technical College
County Library
Senior Citizens Center
County Bonds
Total County Millage

Special Districts - Fire Tax Rates
Florence Rural Fire District
West Florence Rural Fire District
Windy Hill/Olanta Rural Fire District
Howe Springs Fire District
South Lynches Fire District
Sardis-Timmonsville Fire District
Johnsonville Rural Fire District
Hannah-Salem Friendfield
Unified Fire District

Total Special Districts Millage

School District Tax Rates
Florence - School District #1
Pamplico - School District #2
Lake City - School District #3
Timmonsville - School District #4
Johnsonville - School District #5

Total School District Millage

City Tax Rates
Florence
Quinby
Pamplico
Lake City
Olanta
Timmonsville
Johnsonville
Coward
Scranton

Total City Millage

Special Tax District - Other
Lynches Lake
Salem Polecat
Total Special District - Other Millage
Total Direct and Overlapping Rates

Source: Florence County Auditor

Note:

Fiscal Year
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
26.0 25.0 23.6 23.6 21.9 20.9 20.9 19.3 20.0 25.8
- - - - - - - - - 31.5
- - - - - - - - - 5.8
46.3 46.3 46.3 454 45.4 45.4 45.4 45.4 46.6 -
- - - - 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9
7.5 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 8.0 7.9
0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9
14.9 14.9 12.5 12.7 12.7 12.7 9.6 8.5 9.0 8.0
95.50 94.50 90.70 90.00 93.20 92.20 89.10 86.40 89.30 84.80
- - - - 12.8 12.8 12.8 12.8 8.0 8.0
- - - - - - - - 27.8 27.7
- - - - - - - - 253 25.2
21.4 21.9 22.2 22.2 215 229 22.7 20.9 20.9 251
- - - - - - - - 15.0 15.0
- - - - - - - - 40.4 37.9
- - - - - - - - 18.1 23.8
231 231 23.3 23.9 26.9 26.9 26.9 27.5 - -
44.50 45.00 45.50 46.10 61.20 62.60 62.40 61.20 155.50 162.70
265.8 238.6 237.8 233.2 229.5 229.0 227.7 2221 221.0 220.1
268.8 271.9 273.9 270.1 261.4 260.0 259.0 253.5 235.4 233.7
225.6 224.9 221.4 218.7 214.6 211.9 211.6 207.7 205.0 201.2
141.2 141.2 141.2 166.3 170.7 188.4 171.6 174.6 191.8 207.8
287.3 287.2 280.1 273.7 267.5 285.1 288.9 296.0 286.9 266.1
1188.70 1163.80 1154.40 1162.00 1143.70 117440 1158.80 1153.90 1140.10 1128.90
63.1 63.1 61.8 60.9 60.9 60.2 56.5 56.5 56.7 56.7
109.6 109.6 107.7 105.2 102.7 102.7 96.5 96.5 96.5 93.7
204.7 184.1 183.1 180.0 173.9 174.0 174.0 176.0 176.0 176.0
53.4 53.4 524 524 52.4 524 524 524 57.3 57.3
131.0 1294 127.1 132.9 130.0 128.4 128.3 135.5 133.5 130.6
59.0 59.0 59.0 59.0 59.0 58.3 55.4 54.2 54.2 50.1
620.80 598.60 591.14 590.40 578.90 576.00 563.10 571.10 574.20 564.40
18.4 18.5 18.8 18.1 19.2 19.9 19.9 19.7 19.5 19.1
16.0 15.9 15.6 15.6 16.0 16.8 16.7 16.1 15.8 15.9
34.40 34.40 34.40 33.70 35.20 36.70 36.60 35.80 35.30 35.00
1983.90 1936.30 1916.14 1922.20 1912.20 1941.90 1910.00 1908.40 1994.40 1975.80

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within Florence County. Not all overlapping rates apply to all
Florence County property owners (e.g., the rates for special districts apply only to the proportion of the government's property owners whose property is
located within the geographic boundaries of the special district).
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2022

Percentage of

2013

Percentage of

Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value* Rank Value Taxpayer Value* Rank Value

Duke Energy Progress LLC $ 5894456 1 1.14% Duke Energy Progress LLC $ 3,206,455 1 0.73%
FCWC JIPC Nan Ya 2,776,824 2 0.54% FCWC JIPC Nan Ya 2,386,854 2 0.54%
Dominion Energy South Carolina 1,407,787 3 0.27% QHG of South Carolina 1,980,729 3 0.45%
McLeod Regional Medical Center 1,286,551 4 0.25% PR Magnolia LLC 909,050 4 0.21%
PR Magnolia LLC 1,039,297 5 0.20% CSX Transportation 908,195 5 0.21%
CSX Transportation 962,797 6 0.19% Bellsouth Telecommunications 889,259 6 0.20%
WestRock RKT Company 806,460 7 0.16% SCE&G 872,174 7 0.20%
Spectrum Southeast LLC 796,340 8 0.15% McLeod Regional Medical Center 614,759 8 0.14%
Santee Electric 710,271 9 0.14% NUCOR 572,562 9 0.13%
Florence (Florence Mall) FMH 523,623 10 0.10% Florence (Florence Mall) FMH 504,434 10 0.11%
Total “$ 16,204,406 _ 3.14% "$ 12,844,471 2.91%

Total Gross Digest Assessment

Source: Florence County Auditor

* Actual

$515,463,176

174

Total Gross Digest Assessment

$440,642,830



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Tax Collections to Date
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collections
Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2013 $ 29,216,979 $ 28,442,895 97.35% $ 486,545 $ 28,929,440 99.02%
2014 31,040,981 30,259,781 97.48% 590,827 30,850,608 99.39%
2015 31,249,576 30,448,327 97.44% 501,085 30,949,412 99.04%
2016 32,740,720 31,901,285 97.44% 565,243 32,466,528 99.16%
2017 34,283,702 33,434,828 97.52% 486,298 33,921,126 98.94%
2018 34,850,908 34,074,791 97.77% 446,292 34,521,083 99.05%
2019 36,307,201 35,515,588 97.82% 499,435 36,015,023 99.20%
2020 37,230,645 34,708,280 93.23% 843,981 35,552,261 95.49%
2021 40,425,206 37,908,787 93.78% 1,003,452 38,912,239 96.26%
2022 40,923,443 38,967,814 95.22% - 38,967,814 95.22%

Source: Florence County Treasurer
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year General Bond Installment Business-type Total Percentage

Ended Obligation Anticipation Revenue Financed Purchase Lease Lease Primary of Personal Per

June 30 Bonds Note Bonds Purchases Revenue Bonds Liabilities Liabilities Government Income ' Capita
2013 $ 16,323,771 $ - $ 5,391,920 $ 19,620,000 $ - 8 $ - $ 41,335,691 1.0% $ 300
2014 151,828,240 - 4,752,744 16,648,000 - - 173,228,984 4.0% 1,254
2015 130,632,850 3,500,000 4,081,384 20,420,065 45,154,824 - 203,789,123 4.0% 1,468
2016 124,771,375 - 19,652,579 17,027,847 45,004,594 - 206,456,395 4.0% 1,488
2017 103,935,900 - 19,027,000 13,588,805 44,854,364 - 181,406,069 3.0% 1,309
2018 81,676,425 - 18,898,000 9,711,446 59,704,134 - 169,990,005 3.0% 1,227
2019 59,679,950 - 18,620,000 8,976,698 57,286,625 - 144,563,273 2.0% 1,045
2020 59,814,642 - 18,323,000 8,940,438 51,753,674 - 138,831,754 2.0% 1,004
2021 176,655,850 - 18,007,000 8,049,787 50,941,721 - 253,654,358 4.0% 1,834
2022 154,890,303 - 17,476,587 6,580,867 46,915,000 22,981 225,885,738 3.0% 1,502

Source: Florence County Finance Office

! See the table for Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data used for these calculations.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Year General Less: Amount Total Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Ended Obligation Available in Debt Net Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt Per

June 30 Bonds Service Fund Debt Assessed Value' Capita
2013 $ 16,323,771 $ 2,523,013 $ 13,800,758 0.17% $ 100
2014 151,828,240 16,617,959 135,210,281 1.63% 979
2015 130,632,850 12,803,291 117,829,559 1.39% 849
2016 124,771,375 17,478,793 107,292,582 1.24% 773
2017 103,935,900 13,889,625 90,046,275 1.03% 650
2018 81,676,425 20,982,111 60,694,314 0.69% 438
2019 59,679,950 19,817,241 39,862,709 0.45% 288
2020 59,814,642 22,923,262 36,891,380 0.41% 267
2021 176,655,850 43,018,039 133,637,811 1.42% 966
2022 154,890,303 51,393,191 121,439,713 1.27% 878

Source: Florence County Finance Department
' See the table for Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for
total taxable assessed value used for these calculations.

2 See the table for Demographic and Economic Statistics for the population used for these calculations.

Note:
Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percent Direct and
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable ' Overlapping Debt
Direct Debt:
Florence County $ 231,036,977 100.00% $ 231,036,977
Overlapping Debt:
Florence County School District #1 32,130,000 100.00% 32,130,000
Florence County School District #2 259,000 100.00% 259,000
Florence County School District #3 3,161,000 100.00% 3,161,000
Florence County School District #4 - 100.00% -
Florence County School District #5 363,717 100.00% 363,717
Total Estimated Share of Overlapping Debt 35,913,717
Total Estimated Share of Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 266,950,694

Sources: Florence County Finance Department and Florence County Auditor

! Estimated percent applicable is determined by the ratio of assessed valuation of real property subject to taxation in the overlapping
entity to the valuation of real property subject to taxation in the entire County.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2022

Assessed valuation

Add back: exempt manufacturing property

Total assessed valuation

Debt limit - eight percent of total assessed value

Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds

Debt qualifying for margin

Legal debt margin

Legal debt limit*
Net debt applicable to limit
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

$ 509,613,376
5,849,800

515,463,176

41,237,054

31,148,000
31,148,000

$ 10,089,054

Fiscal Year

2013

2014

2015

2016 2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

$ 35,251,426

16,323,771

$ 35,738,901

14,399,915

$ 36,848,319

13,745,000

$ 37,560,874 $ 37,743,267

22,234,000 8,690,000

$ 37,877,896

6,325,000

$ 38,444,856

4,318,000

$ 38,614,675

25,350,000

$

40,710,008

34,035,009

$ 41,237,054

31,148,000

$ 18,927,655

$ 21,338,986

$ 23,103,319

$ 15,326,874 _$ 29,053,267

$ 31,552,896

$ 34,126,856

$ 13,264,675

$

6,674,999

$ 10,089,054

46.31%

40.29%

Source: Florence County Auditor and Florence County Treasurer

* Calculated at eight percent of the total taxable assessed value.

Note:

37.30%

59.19% 23.02%

16.70%

11.23%

65.65%

83.60%

Under South Carolina Constitution Article X, Section 14, 7(a), Florence County's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 8 percent of the total assessed property value.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
Personal Per Capita
Income * Personal Unemployment
Year Population ' (in thousands) Income * Rate 2
2013 137,985 $ 4,772,861 $ 34,590 8.6%
2014 138,178 4,817,920 34,867 7.5%
2015 138,779 5,007,678 36,084 6.8%
2016 138,715 5,234,747 37,737 5.6%
2017 138,595 5,422,811 39,127 4.8%
2018 138,495 5,540,598 40,006 3.8%
2019 138,277 5,813,911 42,045 3.7%
2020 138,293 6,085,055 44,001 7.7%
2021 138,325 5,815,875 42,045 4.5%
2022 136,504 6,381,425 46,749 3.4%
Sources: ' US Census Bureau, Population Division

2us Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics
% US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

Note:

All data, except school enroliment, is based on calendar years and may be estimates or not
be available for the current year and some of the previous years.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2022 2013
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Company or Number of County Company or Number of County
Organization Employees Rank Employment Organization Employees Rank Employment
McLeod Regional Medical Center 6,000 1 9.30% McLeod Regional Medical Center 4,700 1 7.33%
Florence School District One 2,200 2 3.41% Florence School District One 2,149 2 3.35%
TRICARE PGBA 1,200 3 1.86% MUSC Hospital 1,840 3 2.87%
Ruiz Foods 1,200 4 1.86% JP Morgan Chase 1,100 4 1.71%
McCall Farms 1,100 5 1.71% TRICARE PGBA 1,100 5 1.71%
Assurant 1,100 6 1.71%  Assurant 893 6 1.39%
MUSC Hospital 1,100 7 1.71% Nanya 830 7 1.29%
Honda 1,000 8 1.55%  Florence County 782 8 1.22%
Nanya 850 9 1.32% Wal-Mart 761 9 1.19%
Florence County 800 10 1.24% ESAB Welding and Cutting 575 10 0.90%
16,550 25.66% 14,730 22.96%

Source: Florence County Economic Development Partnership
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Function/Program

General government

Public safety

Economic and physical development
Public works

Health

Culture and recreation

Utility system

E911 system

Total

Source: Florence County Budget

Note:

The above counts are based on the actual number of full-time employees at June 30 for each fiscal year.

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
284 298 303 303 305 300 298 299 297 299
272 278 278 279 283 294 305 304 306 310
4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49
81 97 97 97 101 120 121 121 121 121
98 112 113 113 115 116 116 117 117 118

1 1 1 1 - - - - - -
2 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 2
791 841 847 850 860 886 896 897 897 904
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

Function/Program 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Public Safety

Jail average daily population 439 317 274 294 332 365 365 334 327 385

911 calls dispatched 161,922 159,332 138,636 143,999 150,819 155,234 148,352 150,029 159,667 165,399
Public Works

Road miles lowed 9,398 10,463 9,448 9,245 8,867 8,386 11,223 8,183 6,315 4,976

Feet of pipe installed 2,250 3,560 3,272 3,890 3,004 4,526 3,912 977 5,210 3,050

Signs installed/repairs 1,450 1,132 1,049 1,124 1,287 744 658 1,988 808 399
Health

EMS transports 13,011 13,703 14,803 15,472 16,207 16,783 17,267 16,669 17,563 18,562

Source: Various governmental departments

Note:

Indicators are not available for the general government function
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

Function/Program 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Public Safety

Sheriffs stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Maximum jail bed capacity 520 520 520 520 520 520 520 520 520 520
Public Works

Road miles 625.2 625.1 625.6 625.6 630.6 630.7 630.7 630.7 630.7 630.7
Health

EMS stations 5 5 5 5 7 7 7 8 8 8

Ambulances 17 17 17 17 18 18 18 19 19 19
Culture and Recreation

Libraries 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

Acres of parks 696.6 696.6 696.6 696.6 696.6 721.6 721.6 721.6 721.6 721.6

Source: Various governmental departments

Note:
Indicators are not available for the general government function
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the County Council
of Florence County
Florence, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Florence County, South Carolina (the
“County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 21, 2023. Our report includes a reference to an emphasis of a matter relative to the change in accounting
principle resulting from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did
identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2022-001 that we considered to be a material weakness.

508 HAMPTON STREET, 15T FLOOR * COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29201 + 803-799-5810 « FAX 803-799-5554 « www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Florence County, South Carolina’s Response to the Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the County’s response to the
finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The
County’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any

other purpose.
Naddan ¢ Golines, XXE

Columbia, South Carolina
February 21, 2023

186



AULDIN
& JENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the County Council
of Florence County
Florence, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Florence County, South Carolina’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The County’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to County’s federal
programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the County’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
W eutdin. ¢ Gl xze

Columbia, South Carolina
February 21, 2023

189



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Federal Federal Grantor's/
Assistance Pass-through
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Program Title Listing Number Grantor's Number

Federal
Expenditures

Passed
through to
Subrecipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER
Direct Assistance
Investments for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities 11.300 04-01-07394
Total Economic Development Cluster

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through S.C. Department of Commerce

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 4-C|-20-007
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 4-CE-20-006
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 4-CE-21-010

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Assistance
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 N/A

Passed through S.C. Department of Public Safety
COVID-19: Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Program 16.034 ICF-20-075
COVID-19: Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Program 16.034 ICF-20-113

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER
Passed through S.C. Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20.205 PLA-04-13
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

HIGHWAY SAFETY CLUSTER
Passed through S.C. Department of Public Safety
12th Judicial Circuit Law Enforcement Network Grant 20.600 2JC21012
Total Highway Safety Cluster

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Direct Assistance
COVID-19: Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 N/A

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES
Direct Assistance
Highway Planning and Construction Grant 45.024 1860808-59-19

Passed through S.C. State Library

LSTA 45.310 1ID-ARPA-111
LSTA 45.310 1ID-21-307
LSTA 45.310 1ID-21-319
LSTA 45.310 IIDARPA-027
LSTA 45.310 IIDARPA-026
LSTA 45.310 1ID19--06& 20-04
LSTA 45.310 1ID-ARPA-025

TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES
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$ 1,021,583

1,021,583

1,021,583

454,661
5,000
6,500

466,161

466,161

27,460

1,247
120,000

121,247

148,707

115,748

115,748

670

670

116,418

2,250,007

2,250,007

2,095

2,000
1,144
1,000
4,050
4,700

50,000

19,489

82,383

84,478




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Federal Federal Grantor's/ Passed
Assistance Pass-through Federal through to
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Program Title Listing Number Grantor's Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through S.C. Department of Social Services
Child Support Enforcement Services Program 93.563 C-21022C $ 212,796 $ -
Social Services Block Grant 93.563 C-210212 36,868 -
Service of Title IV-D Process Program 93.563 C-210218 29,617 -
279,282 -
Passed through S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 PD-2-431 105,000 -
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 PD-2-287 2,339 -
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 PD-2-288 2,742 -
110,081 -
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 389,363 -
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through S.C. Emergency Preparedness Division
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 20EMPGO01 20,726 -
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 21EMPG-01 68,358 -
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 21-EMPG-ARPA 22,674 -
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 20-EMPG-S01 21,326 -
COVID-19 Supplies Grant 97.044 EMW-2020-FG-01455 774 -
133,858 -
Passed through S.C. Department of Emergency Management
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance - Florence 97.036 FEMA-4394-DR-SC 69,924 -
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance - Irma 97.036 N/A 19,500 -
CE Disaster and Emergency Prep 97.039 N/A 262 -
89,685 -
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 223,543 -
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Assistance
COMMUNITY FACILITIES LOANS AND GRANTS CLUSTER
Rural Development - Community Facilities Loans 10.766 N/A 50,000 -
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 50,000 -
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE EXPENDED $ 4,750,260 $ -
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
grant activity of Florence County (the “County”) under programs of the federal government for the
year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used
in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting - Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The County has elected not to use the 10 percent de Minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

SUBRECIPIENTS
The County did not have subrecipients during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

DISASTER GRANTS - PUBLIC ASSISTANCE PRESIDENTIAL DECLARED
DISASTER (HURRICANE FLORENCE AND HURRICANE IRMA)

Stafford Act funds are reported when the funds are approved by the Department of Homeland
Security (DHS)/FEMA. Accordingly, $89,424 included in the Schedule were costs incurred in a
previous fiscal year.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SECTION |

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? X Yes No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? Yes X _No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X _No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? Yes X _No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? Yes X _No
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for

major programs Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to

be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)? Yes X _No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number

21.027

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

U.S. Department of the Treasury
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds

$750,000

Yes X _ No
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SECTION II
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2022-001 Management and Reporting of Long-term Obligations

Criteria: Generally accepted accounting principles require long-term obligations to be recorded in the accounting
period in which they are incurred. Additionally, governmental accounting standards require liabilities reported in
governmental-type funds and whose liquidation does not require current financial resources to be reported only at
the government-wide level Statement of Net Position. Additionally, governmental accounting standards require that
governmental funds record proceeds from the issuance of long-term obligations in the period of issuance as well as
debt service expenditure and costs of issuance in the period paid.

Condition: The County did not properly record the activities associated with the issuance of the 2015 Series
Installment Purchase Revenue Bond.

Context: We addressed this matter with County officials, who worked diligently to determine the appropriate
amounts to be recorded for the installment purchase revenue bond as of July 1, 2021.

Effect: The County determined a restatement to decrease the beginning net position of the County’s governmental
activities in order to record the outstanding debt in the amount of $5,375,000 as of July 1, 2021.

Cause: There was a lack of appropriate controls implemented at the County during the prior fiscal year to ensure
that all long-term obligations were properly reported in the accounting period in which they were incurred.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County implement the necessary controls to identify all long-term
obligations that are issued in the name of the County to ensure such activities are properly reported in the period in
which they occur.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: We concur with the finding. We will implement
the necessary controls and procedures to identify all long-term obligations that are issued in the name of the County

to ensure such activities are properly reported in the period in which they occur.

SECTION Il
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SECTION IV
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

2021-001 — Prepaid Capital Expenditures

Criteria: Under GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources. Therefore, they are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

Condition: During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the County recognized the purchase of equipment as a
prepaid expense instead of capital outlay expenditures within its governmental fund financial statements.

Status: Resolved.
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BASE LEASE AGREEMENT

between

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
as Lessor

and

FLORENCE COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION
as Lessee

Dated as of December 1, 2023

BASE LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS BASE LEASE AGREEMENT dated as of December 1, 2023 (the “Base Lease”) made and
entered into by and between FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and political
subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “County”) as lessor, and FLORENCE COUNTY PUBLIC
FACILITIES CORPORATION, a non-profit corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of
South Carolina (the “Corporation”), as lessee,

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed under the provisions of Sections 33-
31-10 through 33-31-180, inclusive, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the County is a duly organized and existing county and political subdivision duly
formed under the laws of the State of South Carolina and is authorized under the provisions of Title 4,
Chapter 9, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”), to enter into this Ba